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In 2012, Vietnam’s economy continued facing many challenges which significantly exerted impacts on 
the financial and banking markets in general and VPBank in particular. For VPBank, the year 2012 also 
signified its most remarkable transformation progress in laying important foundations which gather 
momentum for a period of ambitious growth. In addition to executing business strategies, VPBank has 
focused on the comprehensive improvement of its foundation systems, including human resources 
management, risk management and technology investment, etc. This is one of the strategic prongs 
which ensure VPBank’s robust and sustainable development in the future and realize its ambition to 
be in Top 5 joint-stock commercial banks and Top 3 retail joint-stock commercial banks in Vietnam by 
2017. Therefore, we have decided to choose the following theme for VPBank’s 2012 annual report:

STRONG FOUNDATION FOR BREAKTHROUGH SUCCESS

The symbolic images selectively used throughout this year’s annual report are deep-rooted and 
high-reaching trees which express VPBank’s resolve to achieve sustainable development and 
ambitious success.
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By 2017, VPBank will become 

1
of the 5 leading joint-stock commercial banks in Vietnam

of the 3 leading retail joint-stock commercial banks in Vietnam

To maximize customers’ benefits, attach special importance to the interests of 
employees and shareholders, build a strong corporate culture, and contribute 

effectively to community development

Vision

Mission

Core Values
Customer Focus

Productivity

Ambition

People Development

Trust

Make the Difference
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Financial Highlights

Unit: VND million

tOtAl ASSEtS (VND million)    

59,807,023

82,817,947

102,576,275

5,204,731

5,996,245

6,637,017

SHAREHOldERS’ EquIty (VND million) 

lOANS tO CuStOMERS (VND million)

25,323,735

29,183,643

36,903,305

dEPOSItS FROM CuStOMERS (VND million)   

2010

2011

2012

23,969,645

29,412,135

59,514,141

2010

2011

2012

2010

2011

2012

2010

2011

2012

INdICAtOR  2010  2011  2012 

Total assets           59,807,023       82,817,947     102,576,275 

Shareholders’ equity             5,204,731         5,996,245        6,637,017 

Profit before tax                663,144         1,064,255           852,732 

Loans to customers           25,323,735       29,183,643       36,903,305 

Deposits           48,719,428       71,061,691       91,372,070 

   Deposits from customers           23,969,645       29,412,135      59,514,141 

  Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions           13,781,961       25,587,591      25,655,717 

   Issued valuable papers             9,631,647       15,042,115        4,766,100 

   Other deposits             1,336,175         1,019,850        1,436,112 

CAR 14.29% 11.94% 12.51%

Operating expense/total operating income 44.44% 52.36% 62.31%

ROAA 1.15% 1.12% 0.69%

ROAE 9.67% 14.28% 10.19%
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 Ngo Chi dzung

Chairman of the Board of Directors

dear valued customers, shareholders, investors and strategic partners,

The year 2012 ended with remarkable events in the banking sector: numerous changes of senior executives, restructuring 
of the operating model, enhanced strategic cooperation, and an emerging M&A trend for better operational efficiency. While 
exerting some pressure and short-term fluctuations, such changes will strengthen the competitiveness and stability of the 
banking sector in the long term, thus generating new opportunities and challenges.

For Vietnam Prosperity Joint-Stock Commercial Bank (VPBank), we also faced a number of difficulties, which are 
best illustrated by the  two following indicators:

• Profit before tax reached only 66% of the annual target;

• Credit growth (growth of loans to customers and corporate bonds) was 14%, compared to VPBank’s expected growth of 30%.

The above figures also reflected difficulties commonly faced by the banking sector in 2012, yet it is encouraging that they are 
relatively better than the average level of the top 15 biggest commercial banks.

Having overcome those challenges, VPBank has made some remarkable achievements:

• Raising its charter capital to VND5,770 billion in December 2012, with CAR standing at 12.51%. Total assets maintained a 
good growth rate relative to 2011 (24%);

• Implementing the strategic transformation program diligently with support from one of the world’s leading consulting 
companies,  with an aim to become one of the top 3 retail banks by 2017. At the end of 2012, VPBank’s units have finalized 
detailed strategic maps and got ready to implement their action plans;

• Appointing a number of senior executives, restructuring the operating model to strengthen governance, risk management, 
and sales, thus laying strong foundations for reaching strategic goals;

• Building up the Bank’s foundation systems, with core components expected to be completed in 2012-2013, by initiating major 
projects with support from leading consulting partners in areas such as corporate governance, information technology, risk 
management, human resources management, and distribution network;

• Making VPBank’s brand stronger and further trusted by customers. In 2012, VPBank was named one of the most outstanding 
national brands. 

In 2013, VPBank will focus on the following core duties:

• Building and further strengthening foundation systems, with an overall goal of improving operating model, enhancing 
human resources management, reinforcing risk management, and investing in advanced technologies, thus securing rapid, 
solid, and sustainable growth in the coming years under VPBank’s strategy for 2012-2017. 

• Establishing a dynamic and flexible business development model by enhancing the performance and quality of sales staff, 
renewing the business model, developing new distribution channels in addition to the traditional network, tailoring customer 
policies and products for each customer segment, all aimed at growing the customer base and gaining a breakthrough market 
share with regard to VPBank’s core customer segments, e.g., retail, SMEs and corporates. 

On behalf of VPBank’s Board of Directors, I would like to express my sincere thanks to valued customers, shareholders, 
investors and strategic partners for your support over the past years. We look forward to your continued support to VPBank 
on its journey to achieve strategic goals and become one of the leading commercial banks in Vietnam.
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dear valued customers, shareholders, investors and 
strategic partners,

We have witnessed the year of 2012 with many changes in 
Vietnam’s economy and the banking sector. Inflation control 
and macroeconomic stabilization policies have gained 
significant achievements, yet they also exerted impacts on 
the overall economic growth and business performance of 
the banking system. 

In that context, VPBank has tried its best to strengthen 
systems and keep reasonable and solid growth pace, 
which was illustrated by remarkable results below:

1. Customer deposits continued to grow, reaching close 
to VNd60 trillion and representing an increase of 102% 
compared to 2011. Deposit growth created diversity of 
funding sources, improved financial ratios of the whole 
bank significantly, and helped VPBank proactively manage 
its liquidity. 

2. Customer base continued to grow and strengthen. As 
of 31 December 2012, the number of customers doing 
transactions with VPBank increased by 42% compared to 
the end of 2011. 

3. Extensive investment has been spent on foundation 
systems such as human resources management, risk 
management, information technology, and operation 
systems, laying the foundation for a solid and secure 
expansion period in the years to come.

Firstly, the organisational structure has been restructured 
towards centralisation and specialization, spreading from 
key functions such as credit processing, debt collection, risk 
management, to supporting functions such as security, man-
agement of specialized vehicles, etc; high-quality employees 
have been recruited to quickly fill up positions in the new 
organizational structure. In 2012, VPBank also succeeded 
in standardizing its employee titles and human resources 
planning systems, establishing standard sets of KPIs, and 
building a corporate culture based on 6 core values with 
encouraging results.

Secondly, risk management has been considered a core task, 
with the establishment of an independent Risk Management 
Division. As the end of 2012, the organization structure and 
staffing for this Division were largely completed, and this 
Division played an important role in supporting the Board of 
Management to cope with macroeconomic fluctuations, 
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and effectiveness of money 
market activities, debt collection, and risks arising from the 
Bank’s daily operations given their increasing scale and 
complexity.

Message from the CEO
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Thirdly, information technology has been considered an essential link in the chain to meet the Bank’s growth expectations in 
the next 5 years. In 2012, VPBank successfully upgraded its T24 system and thoroughly reviewed the information technology 
strategic roadmap (IT Master Plan), which is the foundation for intensive and extensive investments from 2013 onwards. The 
Bank’s investment in technology will be directed to meet retail banking requirements with customer focus.

For 2013, VPBank set out very challenging targets which should be achieved to confidently join the top 3 retail banks. Two 
important strategies will be executed, including Retail Banking Strategy and SME Banking Strategy, with the following targets:

• Total deposits from customers at VND81,000 billion;

• Lending to customers at nearly VND48,000 billion;

• Profit before tax at VND1,110 billion, an increase of 30% from 2012;

• Number of new customers at 250,000, including both individuals and enterprises;

• Non-performing loans at below 3%;

• Customers, products and markets development: in 2013, VPBank will continue to enhance the performance and quality of 
sales staff, improve the business model, expand customer base and distribution channels, promote cross-selling, and tailor 
customer and product policies to each customer sub-segment;

• Building up a comprehensive risk management system and risk control system, with focus on credit risk and operational 
risk. International advisory services will be used to set out a specific roadmap for developing professional risk management 
systems, which meet international standards and are in line with requirements of Basel II;

• Debt collection in 2013 will focus on establishing processes and regulations on debt handling flows and responsibility of related 
parties; establishing monitoring and reporting systems to promptly provide full visibility of bad debt and debt collection;

• Completing the implementation of IT projects and initiatives. The Bank will further make use of features of the core banking 
system in accordance with the IT Master Plan, and deploy additional modules and other utilities to better serve business and 
management requirements;

• Enhancing the efficiency of network development strategy with an aim to establish new branches and ATM system in parallel.

The year 2013 is considered highly important in VPBank’s breakthrough growth strategy. We look forward to the 
continued support of our valued customers, shareholders, investors and strategic partners and commit to bringing 
in values commensurate with your trust.

Best regards,

Nguyen duc Vinh
CEO

VNd102,576 billion
total assets 
grow by 24% against 2011



Annual Report 2012

STRONG FOUNDATION FOR BREAKTHROUGH SUCCESS

Vietnam Prosperity Joint-Stock Commercial Bank (formerly 
known as Vietnam Joint-Stock Commercial Bank for Private 
Enterprises) was established on 12 August 1993. After nearly 
20 years of operation, VPBank has increased its charter 
capital to VND5,770 billion, raised the number of transaction 
points to over 200, and had a workforce of more than 4,000 
employees. 

As a member of the group of 12 leading banks in Vietnam 
(G12), VPBank is taking steps to reaffirm its reputation as a 
dynamic bank with stable financial capacity and responsibil-
ity to the community. To achieve this ambitious vision, VPBank 
has implemented an aggressive growth strategy for the period 
2012 - 2017 with the support of McKinsey, one of the world’s 
leading consulting companies. Accordingly, VPBank will focus 
on organic growth in targeted customer segments,  build up 
foundation systems expeditiously to serve its growth needs, 
and monitor opportunities in the market actively. 

The remarkable growth of VPBank is vividly illustrated by 
the expansion of its branch and transaction office network 

and the diversity of sales and distribution channels. With 
the motto of “all for customers”, the layout, service model 
and amenities of transaction points have been completely 
changed. The products and services of VPBank have always 
been improved and combined with many utilities to increase 
customers’ benefits, etc. These factors have contributed to 
satisfying existing customers, attracting new customers, 
thus expanding VPBank’s customer base at a fast pace.  

To prepare for a stable and sustainable growth, VPBank has 
conducted comprehensive measures to build foundation 
systems. The Bank has always been the market leader in 
applying advanced information technology to its products, 
services and operation system. Along with building a 
strong and effective corporate culture, core human 
resources management systems have been developed 
and successfully implemented at VPBank. In addition, 
the Bank has taken steps to develop an independent, 
centralized, and specialized risk management system 
which meets international standards and aligns with 
the Bank’s business strategy. While complying with 
international best practices in corporate governance, 
VPBank also refines its organizational structure according 
to a clear and transparent corporate governance policy. 

With constant efforts, VPBank’s brand has become increasingly 
stronger and reaffirmed by many prestigious awards such 
as: The Best Payment Bank awarded by Citibank and Bank 
of New York, Bank with the most satisfactory service quality 
for customers, National Brand in 2012, Top 500 biggest 
enterprises in Vietnam and many other awards. 

Introduction to VPBank

G12 as a member of the group of 
12 leading banks in Vietnam,   

VPBank is taking steps to reaffirm its 
reputation as a dynamic bank with stable 
financial capacity and responsibility to the 
community
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1. Announcement of VPBank’s development strategies for 
2012-2017. On 11 August 2012, VPBank announced its three-
pronged strategy to realize its vision to be in Top 5 Joint-stock 
Commercial Banks in Vietnam and Top 3 Retail Joint-stock 
Commercial Banks in Vietnam by 2017. 

2. Charter capital increased to VNd5,770 billion. On 2  
November 2012, the State Bank of Vietnam approved the increase 
of VPBank’s charter capital from VND5,050 billion to VND5,770 
billion. This is a step in the roadmap for strengthening VPBank’s 
financial capacity to implement its development strategy.

3. VPBank received many prestigious awards such as 
three awards for outbound growth, growth in number of 
transaction points and highest transaction activation points 
by Western Union; “Excellent International Payment Bank in 
2012” award by the Bank of New York Mellon (U.S.); Bank with 
the highest level of customers’ satisfaction; National Brand 
Award in 2012; and Strong Brand Award in 2012, etc. These 
awards have reaffirmed the quality of VPBank’s financial and 
banking operations, its superiority in product and service 
quality, and its firm position in consumers’ mind. 

4. developing and implementing debt Collection 
Strategy.  With consulting services of McKinsey, VPBank 
has developed an overall debt collection strategy, including 
analysis of the Bank’s current situation of debt collection, 
design of an overall debt collection model, establishment 
of debt collection processes, and staff recruitment for this 
model. This strategy will be further implemented in 2013 
with new initiatives to standardize and improve the efficiency 
of the Bank’s debt collection system. 

5. launching new branch layout. In an effort to strengthen 
its modern retail banking model, enhance brand identity, and 
improve service quality, VPBank has launched a new branch 
layout at VPBank My Dinh, Hanoi on 15 October 2012. This 
branch layout has been designed with a dynamic and custom-
er-focused style, which is in line with one of VPBank’s core 
values - “Customer Focus”. 

6. developing and implementing Alternative Channels 
Strategy, which includes the Integrated Direct Conversa-
tion (Alpha), Worksite Banking (Beta) and Distributor Tie-ups 
(Gamma) channels – shortly referred to as A/B/G. These 
channels are closely integrated with each other and with 
VPBank’s branch network in sales and customer care stages. 
Being operational for the last 6 months of 2012 though, A/B/G 
channels have played their roles effectively, contributing to 
VPBank’s growth of new customers by 42% from 2011.  

7. Scaling up Credit Processing Centralization Model. 
After the successful pilot phase, VPBank continued to scale 
up its credit processing centralization model through Credit 
Processing Centers (CPC) with two main objectives, i.e., 
improving the effectiveness of risk management and freeing 
up sales time for branches. By 31 December 2012, CPCs have 
been connected to all branches of VPBank in Hanoi, Hai Phong 
and Ho Chi Minh City. 

8. launching Corporate Culture Project. To lay foundation 
for a breakthrough growth period in the future, on 8 May 2012, 
VPBank kicked off its Corporate Culture Project. VPBank’s 
Cultural House has been established on a solid foundation 
of 6 core values and 18 behavioral orientations. 

9. Formulating Information technology Strategy (It 
Master Plan): In 2012, VPBank expeditiously formulated 
the Information Technology Strategy for 2013 – 2017 
with the support of the global consulting firm Pricewater-
houseCoopers (PwC). This is one of VPBank’s important steps 
to lay a robust and reliable information technology foundation 
to support the Bank’s ambitious growth strategy. 

10. Establishing the Risk Management division and 
strengthening risk management framework in order to 
put in place an independent, centralized, and specialized risk 
management system in accordance with international stand-
ards and aligned with the Bank’s business strategy. Concomi-
tantly, VPBank initiated the Pre Basel II Project, which is one of 
the key risk management projects in 2012 and a prerequisite 
for implementing Basel II Capital Accord in the future.

HIGHlIGHtEd 
events in 201210
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PERFORMANCE
REPORt



13

Financial Indicators

I. OVERVIEw OF tHE ECONOMy, BANkING 
SyStEM ANd POlICy CHANGES IN 2012

1. Overview of the economy and banking system in 
2012

The year 2012 ended with many macroeconomic uncertain-
ties and fluctuations in the banking system. The economy 
grew slowly, with full-year GDP growth rate reaching only 
5.03% and falling short of the Government’s target of 5.5%-
6%. Enterprises encountered lots of difficulties, widespread 
bankruptcy, and increasing inventory, which caused credit 
growth to stall. Banks’ bad debts became one of the most 
pressing issues in 2012. Credit growth of the entire banking 
system in 2012 merely reached 8.91%, much lower than 
previous years and less than the State Bank of Vietnam 
(SBV)’s credit growth controlling target of 10-12%.

In addition, operations of the banking system revealed many 
uncertainties. The restructuring of the banking system was 
initiated in the last months of 2011, with the merger of three 
banks, i.e., Sai Gon Commercial Bank (SCB), Vietnam Tin 
Nghia Bank (TinNghiaBank) and First Commercial Bank 
(Ficombank). Subsequently, Hanoi Building Commercial 
Joint Stock Bank (Habubank) was officially merged into 
Sai Gon – Hanoi Commercial Bank (SHB) in August 2012. 
However, this process took place at slow pace and not yet 
showed its impact clearly in 2012. 

2. Monetary policy volatilities and their impact on 
VPBank’s operations in 2012 

Interest rate policy 

The interest rate policy in 2012 embraced a lot of major and 
constant changes. The ceiling interest rate for short-term 
VND deposits was repeatedly lowered from 14% per annum 
in the early months of 2012 to 8% per annum at the end of the 
year. Also, the SBV in July provided guidance to commercial 
banks to keep lending interest rate under 15% per annum. 
The interest rate of short-term VND lending for agriculture, 
rural development, export, supporting industry, small and 
medium-sized enterprises fell from 13% to 12% per annum 
in December 2012.

The lowering of interest rates was urgently required to 
enhance trust of people in the local currency, reduce 
borrowing interest burden for enterprises, and created foun-
dation to help business and manufacturing activities to pick 
up. In  recognition of this, VPBank has always followed the 
SBV’s regulations on deposit interest rate, introduced various 
preferential credit packages to enterprises, and still managed 
to meet the Bank’s business goals. 

Directive 01 of the SBV and classification of banks 

In February 2012, the SBV’s promulgated Directive 01/CT-
NHNN and Letter No. 674/NHNN-CSTT on the implementa-
tion and organization of monetary policy in 2012. Accordingly, 
the SBV’s classified banks into four groups with four corre-
sponding credit growth limits in 2012: Group 1 with a limit of 
17%, Group 2 with a limit of 15%, Group 3 with a limit of 8%, 
and Group 4 with no credit growth. This regulation aims at 
classifying banks according to their respective financial 
soundness, controlling credit growth rate, and avoiding 
excessive credit growth by commercial banks without 
proper deposit base – a phenomenon that caused the 
banking system’s liquidity to fall into chaos in 2011.

Tightening the interbank markets 

Circular No. 21/2012/TT-NHNN issuing regulations on the 
interbank activities took effect on 1 September 2012. This 
Circular stipulated a number of tight provisions to control 
interbank deposit and lending activities. Accordingly, credit 
institutions will be restricted in borrowing if they incur 
overdue loans of more than 10 days with other credit 
institutions or branches of foreign banks, and provision 
should be set aside for interbank transactions. 

Tightening the foreign currency positions of 
commercial banks 

Circular No. 7/2012/TT-NHNN of the SBV stipulating foreign 
currency positions of credit institutions, branches of foreign 
banks  came into effect on 2 May 2012. Accordingly, foreign 
currency positions of credit institutions were narrowed 
down from +/-30% of equity to +/-20% of equity, which 
restricted speculation and investment opportunities of 
credit institutions in this area. 

Tightening regulations on gold market management 

The date of 25 November 2012 was considered a significant 
milestone for the gold market when the SBV required 
credit institutions to cease new gold deposit and gold 
lending activities. Only liquidity-strapped credit institutions 
were granted exception to get new gold deposits, the term of 
which however is limited to 30 June 2013.

The gold trading management policy of the SBV began to 
take shape, e.g., (i) SJC gold bar  became the national brand 
and the SBV had exclusive right to mint SJC gold, (ii) the 
gold deposit - lending activities shall be converted into 
safe-keeping or buying - selling activities.

Amid such volatilities of the economy and the banking system, 
VPBank’s management decided 2012 would be a year for 
the Bank to further strengthen its foundation systems, 
enhance the efficiency and safety of operations, and lay 
foundations for breakthrough growth in the years to come.
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II. ANAlySIS OF tHE PERFORMANCE ANd 
FINANCIAl INdICAtORS OF VPBANk IN 2012

1.  Asset structure

With robust growth in size as a goal in 2012, VPBank’s 
total consolidated assets reached VND102,576 billion, up 
by nearly VND20,000 billion, or 24%, compared to the end of 
2011. The growth of total assets was mainly attributed to the 

growth of loans to customers, investment securities, deposit 
and lending to other credit institutions. Specifically:

- deposit and lending to other credit institutions 
at the end of 2012 reached VND26,761 billion, up by 
VND3,800 billion, or 17%, compared to the end of 2011. Of 
which, deposits at credit institutions declined by VND5,243 
billion (a decrease of 23%) and lending to credit institutions 
grew by VND9,097 billion compared to the end of 2011.

- Investment securities increased by VND3,236 billion 
(an increase of 17%) compared to the end of 2011. The 
increase of investment securities was primarily attributed 
to those in Government securities, including Government 
bonds (an increase of VND4,766 billion), SBV bills (an 
increase of VND1,500 billion) and Treasury bills (an 
increase of VND1,240 billion). The portfolio of corporate 
bonds and bonds issued by credit institutions whereas 
shrank. This was in line with VPBank’s policy on optimizing 
the asset porfolio and building a stronger and more liquid 
balance sheet.

- loans to customers reached VND36,903 billion at 
the end of 2012, up by 26% compared to the end of 2011. 

VPBank was one of the banks with the highest customer 
lending growth rate in the banking sector. This growth rate 
also exceeded 10% of the target set out by the General 
Shareholders’ Meeting early in the year. In August 2012, 
VPBank’s 2012 credit growth limit was adjusted up to 30% 
by the SBV. This is the highest adjusted credit growth rate 
granted by the SBV, which reflected its appreciation of 
VPBank’s governing and risk management capacity. 

Loans are concentrated on customers with sound financial 
conditions, adequate collaterals, and good repayment 
capability. Thanks to its credit quality control and prudent 
lending policy, VPBank’s  NPL ratio at the end of 2012 was 
kept at 2.72%.

2012 marks a breakthrough for VPBank in terms of asset size. For the first time, VPBank joined the top banks 
with total assets of over VNd100,000 billion. the growth in size was accompanied by stronger asset quality, 
better liquidity, and safety of banking operations.

2010 2011 2012

Loans to customers 25,324 29,184 36,903

Annual growth 60% 15% 26%

Source: Audited consolidated financial statements 

Loans to customers

Securities

Deposits at SBV

Cash, gold

Other assets

Annual growth

120,000

100,000

80,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

2010                                                          2011                                                          2012

120%

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

117%

38%
24%

Source: Audited consolidated financial statements 

Unit: VND billion

Unit: VND billion

Deposits and loans to other 
credit institutions

Loans to customers
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2.  liabilities structure

Source: Audited consolidated financial statements 

Total liabilities as at 31 December 2012 were VND95,939 
billion, up by VND19,118 billion, or 25%, compared to 
31 December 2011. The increase was mainly attributed 
to customer deposit growth, whilst interbank deposits 
remained stable and issuance of valuable papers dropped 
significantly compared to 2011.

- Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions 
reached VND25,656 billion at the end of 2012, virtually 
equivalent to  those of 2011 (only up by VND68 billion 
against the amount of VND25,588 billion of 2011). The 
proportion of funds mobilized from interbank market 
out of total liabilities declined from 33% in 2011 to 27% 
in 2012, reflecting VPBank’s reduced dependence on 
interbank market whilst its size still recorded significant 
growth. 

- The value of issued valuable papers at the end of 2012 
was VND4,766 billion, down by VND10,276 billion, or 68%, 
compared to the end of 2011. The issuance of valuable 
papers declined due to robust growth of deposit from 
customers, which improved VPBank’s liquidity in 2012.

- Customer deposits reached VND59,514 billion, up by 102% 
compared to the end of 2011 and representing 129% of the 
target endorsed by the General Shareholders’ Meeting. This 
marked the top deposit growth rate in the market in 2012 and 
also the historically highest deposit growth rate of VPBank. 
The proportion of customer deposits out of total liabilities 
grew from 38% in 2011 to 62% in 2012. The robust growth 
of deposits was rooted in the bank’s strategy to enhance 
liquidity and safety of its operation, which  lays foundation 
for breakthrough growth in the years to come.

Source: Audited consolidated financial statements 

2010 2011 2012

Deposits from customers (VND billion) 23,970 29,412 59,514

Annual growth (%) 45% 23% 102%

Customer deposit growth

Regarding customer lending structure, corporate loans 
reached VND19,162 billion, up by 57% compared to the end 
of 2011; the proportion of corporate loans out of total 
outstanding loan was 52%; this ratio however was only 42% 
at the end of 2011 and merely 27% at the end of 2010. Of total 
corporate lending, loans to small and medium sized enter-
prises (SMEs) made up over 80% and became the main driver 
of lending growth. This was also in line with VPBank’s policy 

on growing the SME segment and with the SBV’s guidance on 
provision of capital support to enterprises and the economy. 
In 2012, VPBank repeatedly launched various lending 
programs and product packages to support enterprises, 
such as the preferential credit packages of VND5,000 billion 
for eligible enterprises, the preferential credit packages of 
USD100 million for  import-export enterprises, and the 
product package “SME Success” for SMEs.

Unit: VND billion

3. Analysis of customer lending and deposit

Customer lending reached VNd36,903 billion, an increase of 26% compared to the end of 2011. with this growth, 
VPBank is one of the banks with the highest customer lending growth rate in the system.

120,000

100,000

80,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

2010                                                        2011                                                           2012
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80%

60%

40%

20%

118%

41%

25%

Customer deposits 

Issued valuable papers

Other liabilities

Annual growth

Deposits and loans from other 
credit institutions

Loans from SBV
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Given its strategy to becoming one of the top retail 
commercial banks, VPBank has a large proportion of 
customer deposits coming from retail customers. In 2012, 
deposits from retail customers rose by 99% compared to 
2011 (a growth rate higher than previous years) and made 

up 64% of customer deposits at VPBank. In addition, 
VPBank has actively mobilized deposits from enterprises, 
economic entities and others, so as to enhance cross-
selling and increase the proportion of demand deposits out 
of total deposits of the Bank. 

2010
VND billion

weight 2011
VND billion

weight 2012
VND billion

weight

Personal loan 18,379 73% 16,947 58% 17,741 48%

Corporate loan 6,945 27% 12,237 42% 19,162 52%

deposits witnessed an impressive growth in terms of size and proportion to total liabilities, helping build a safe 
and more robust balance sheet as well as laying the foundation for VPBank’s breakthrough growth in the years 
to come. 

Structure of deposits by term and currency

Loan structure by customer

Customer deposits as at 31 December 2012 increased by 
102% compared to 2011, mainly attributed to the growth of 
VND deposits. The proportion of VND deposits rose sharp-
ly over recent years and represented about 95% of total 
deposits in 2012 (88% in 2010 and 90% in 2011). Meanwhile, 
deposits in foreign currencies virtually remained unchanged 
over the years. Regarding maturity, term deposits represented 

over 90% of total deposits over the last 3 years. Demand 
deposits made up only 9% of total deposits and are mainly 
denominated in VND. VPBank has adopted a lot of measures 
to raise the proportion of demand deposits and thus reduce 
the cost of funding. As such, while remaining modest, the 
balance of demand deposits grew sharply in 2012 (up by 
130% or VND3,158 billion compared to 2011).

Source: Audited consolidated financial statements 
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Unit: VND billion

VND Foreign currencies

2010                      2011                      2012 

Demand deposit 

2010
VND billion

weight 2011
VND billion

weight 2012
VND billion

weight

Corporate 5,411 23% 9,815 33% 17,300 29%

Individual 17,861 74% 19,048 65% 37,876 64%

Others 697 3% 549 2% 4,338 7%

Customer deposit structure by economic segment 

Term deposit

Source: Audited consolidated financial statements
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4. liquidity and operation safety 

the liquidity and operation safety made considerable improvements in 2012 thanks to VPBank’s strategy of 
building a more robust balance sheet.

In the context of economic difficulties and uncertainties of 
the banking system, the Board of Directors and the Board of 
Management of VPBank set out the primary goal for 2012  to 
enhance the efficiency and operation safety of the whole Bank. 
This was reflected by remarkable improvements of liquidity 
and prudential ratios compared to the previous years. Loan to 
deposit ratio (total loans to customers and corporate bonds 
divided by customer deposits - LDR) stood at 76% in 2012 
versus 134% in 2011, showing better liquidity position. The 
consolidated CAR reached 12.51%, an increase of 3.51% 
compared to the minimum level of 9% stipulated by the 
SBV. The ratio of short term funds used for the medium and 
long term lending stood at 15.19%, satisfying the SBV’s 
regulations. The daily liquidity ratio was always higher 

than 15%, which fulfills requirements on a daily basis, 
complying with the SBV’s provisions as well as internal 
limits on liquidity risk of VPBank.

In 2012, VPBank increased its charter capital from VND5,050 
billion to VND5,770 billion via issuing stock from retained 
earnings to pay dividends to existing shareholders. The capital 
increase was accepted by VPBank’s Annual General Sharehold-
ers’ Meeting, helping raise VPBank’s capital to  be commen-
surate with its growth and meet prudential ratios. This also 
reflected the resolve and commitment of shareholders in 
supporting VPBank’s long term strategies to become one of 
the  Top 5 joint-stock commercial banks in Vietnam and one of 
the Top 3 retail joint-stock commercial banks in Vietnam.

Loan to deposit ratio (LDR) and CAR

Source: Audited consolidated financial statements 
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Net interest income increased at a higher rate than total 
operating income. In 2012, net interest income reached 
VND2,967 billion, increasing by VND922 billion or 45% 
compared to 2011,  due to an increase of VND801 billion in 
interest income and a decrease of VND121 billion in interest 
expense compared to 2011. Net interest income accounted 
for 98% of total operating income.

In 2012, the yield on average earning assets (YEA) 
decreased by 2.83% from 15.82% to 12.99% while cost 
of funds decreased more (by 4.63% from 13.72% in 2011 
to 9.09% in 2012). As a result, net interest margin (NIM) 
reached 3.73%, up by 0.34% compared to 2011. NIM has 
continuously increased in recent years. This figure was 
3.73% in 2012, higher than the level of 3.39% in 2011 and 

5. Business performance in 2012

Business performance in 2012 has witnessed a reasonable growth in net operating income. total net operating 
income reached VNd3,019 billion, up by VNd531 billion, or 21% compared to 2011. the increase was mainly 
attributed to the growth of net interest income.

Indicator 
(VND billion)

2012 2011
VND billion %

I total  operating income 3,019 2,487 531 21%

Interest income 10,341 9,540 801 8%

Interest expense 7,374 7,495 (121) -2%

1 Net interest income 2,967 2,045 922 45%

Fee and commission income 672 845 (173) -20%

Fee and commission expense 401 437 (36) -8%

2 Net fee and commission income 271 407 (137) -34%

3 Net gain from trading of foreign currencies and gold (117) 13 (130) -1004%

4 Securities gains/losses (102) 22 (124) -563%

Extraordinary income 122 36 86 237%

Extraordinary expense 24 12 12 93%

II Net extraordinary income 98 24 74 312%

III Income from investments in other entities 17 4 13 313%

IV Operating expenses 1,881 1,302 578 44%

V Profit before provision expense 1,253 1,213 40 3%

Provision expense 400 149 251 169%

VI Profit before tax 853 1,064 (212) -20%

Income tax expense – current 215 265 (50) -19%

Income tax expense - deferred 5.6 0.04 5.56 14800%

VII total income tax expense 209 265 (56) -21%

VIII Profit  after tax 643 800 (156) -19%

Source: Audited consolidated financial statements

Net interest income

Change
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In 2012, VPBank invested heavily in foundation systems 
with focus on risk management, information technology, 
and human resources  development. Therefore, operating 
expenses increased by VND578 billion,  or 44% compared 
to 2011.

VPBank has identified human resources as one of the key 
success factors for the Bank’s profound restructuring and 
transformation program. In order to attract and retain 
high-quality human resources for the comprehensive 
restructuring and transformation of the Bank for 2012-2017, 

VPBank has constantly improved employees’ welfare. 
Therefore, staff expense in 2012 increased by VND110 
billion, or 16% compared to 2011. Staff expense also 
accounted for the largest share of total operating expense in 
2012 (42%). In addition, asset expense increased by VND93 
billion or 36% due to investment in network development, 
construction of business premises, technology and fixed 
assets; Marketing expense included in general administra-
tion expense increased by VND58 billion or 83% due to 
marketing and advertising activities to enhance the image of 
VPBank across the country.

2.87% in 2010. Also, the ratio of net interest income over 
total risk weighted assets increased from 5.35% in 2011 to 
6.46% in 2012. These figures demonstrated considerable 

improvements in interest income collection and reaffirmed 
the Bank’s right direction in diversifying credit products and 
action plans to improve service quality in 2012.

Source: Audited consolidated financial statements

Annual growth of operating expenses

2010 2011 2012

Net interest margin (NIM) 2.87% 3.39% 3.73%

Yield on earning assets 10.16% 15.82% 12.99%

Cost of fund (COF) 7.51% 13.72% 9.09%

Operating expenses

Source: Audited consolidated financial statements
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Provision expense in 2012 was VND400 billion, up by VND149 
billion or 169% compared to 2011. 2012 was the first year 
VPBank set aside general provisions for loans to other credit 

institutions (VND55 billion). Specific provision expense also 
increased by VND200 billion compared to 2011 as VPBank set 
aside more provisions to ensure operations safety.

Provision expense

Unit: VND billion

2009                                2010                                 2011                                 2012
Others

General administration 
expense
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Consolidated profit before tax in 2012 reached VND853 billion, down by VND212 billion or 20% compared to 2011.

The year 2012 was marked with lots of difficulties in the economy and the banking sector. VPBank’s business activities were in-
evitably undertaken in this context. Also, investments in the infrastructure systems are unavoidable in the first years of 
transformation, which resulted in soaring investment and operating expenses. These factors led to lower profit and profitability 
in 2012. Return on average equity (ROAE) decreased from 14% in 2011 to 10% in 2012. Operating expense to total operating 
income ratio increased to 62% from 52% in 2011. Whereas, earnings per share was VND1,115, decreasing by VND505 from the 
level of VND1,620 in 2011. 

However, a short - term decline in profitability was offset by a stronger capital - asset structure and a more secure operating 
system, indicated by lower  loan to deposit ratio, higher capital adequacy ratio and higher provisions as compared to 2011. This 
was consistent with the priority of VPBank’s Board of Directors and Board of Management in 2012, which was to enhance banking 
operation safety and strengthen foundation systems, including internal governance system, thus laying foundation for VPBank to 
achieve breakthrough growth in the years to come and its vision under the long - term growth strategy for 2012-2017.

Profit before tax

Source: Audited consolidated financial statements

2011
VND billion

2012
VND billion

Change from 2011
VND billion

General provision 47.11  98.46 51.35

General provision expense for customer loans 
and off-balance sheet commitments

 47.11 43.80  (3.31)

General provision expense for loans to other 
credit institutions

- 54.66  54.66

Specific provision 101.63 301.46 199.83

total provision expense for the year 148.74 399.92 251.18

Unit: VND billion
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Non-financial Indicators

As of 31 December 2012, VPBank had more than 250,000 customers, approximately 90% of which are individual customers 
and 10% are corporate customers. VPBank’s customer base grew at a remarkable rate of 42.2% in 2012. The Bank’s customers 
are concentrated mainly in Hanoi and Ho Chi Minh City, representing 55% of total customers. 

1. Customer base

1. Hanoi

2. Ho Chi Minh city

3. The North

4. North Central

5. South Central and 
Central Highlands

6. The South

 CUSTOMER DISTRIBUTION BY LOCATION                            %

35.3

19.7

18.5

14.7

6.0

5.8
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2
3
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5
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132,055

144,528

176,191

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

250,618

2009

2010

2011

2012

1

2

INDIVIDUAL/CORPORATE CUSTOMER RATIO                   %

1. Individuals

2. Corporates

90.6

9.4

1. Debit card 

2. Credit card

DEBIT/CREDIT CARD RATIO                                                              %

96

4

1

2

In 2012, VPBank’s card issuance grew by 35.3% to nearly 200,000 cards of all types.
Debit cards still accounted for a major proportion of the total number of issued cards and grew more rapidly than credit cards. 

2. Card issuance
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3. distribution network 

At the end of 2012, VPBank had 205 branches and transaction offices (TSOs) in 33 provinces and cities across the country. 
Branches and transaction offices are concentrated mainly in Hanoi and Ho Chi Minh City. 

REGION BRANCHES ANd 
tRANSACtION CENtER

tSOs & 
SAVINGS OFFICES

AtM

Hanoi 6 56 120

Ho Chi Minh city 2 36 58

North 11 29 42

North Central 6 26 34

South Central and Central Highlands 5 12 16

South East 3 2 6

South West 6 5 15

total 39 166 291

Note: there is one Transaction Center and 10 Saving Offices (8 in Hanoi, 1 in Nam Dinh, and 1 in Hai Phong).
In 2012, VPBank has also put into operation 58 new ATMs, an increase of nearly 25% compared to 2011. VPBank’s ATMs were 
mainly located in major cities to meet customers’ increasing needs for transactions.

51,314

4,435

DEBIT & CREDIT CARD GROWTH

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012 196,454

92,197

138,097

65,825
4,761

8,164

6,114

5,314

Debit card                         Credit card

422.2

 
26.6

CARD GROWTH                                                                                                   %

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012
41.9

38.1

47.9

Figures updated as at  31 December 2012
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Sales and distribution Network

Sales and distribution division (S&d) was established on 
20 June 2012 with the mandate of managing activities 
related to the sales and distribution system of VPBank 
with 205 transaction points and a number of business 
centers.

Established in a period of economic uncertainties, S&D 
Division has made great efforts in overcoming difficulties to 
perform its duties, which played a part in helping VPBank 
realize its ambitious goal of being in the Top 3 Retail Joint-
Stock Commercial Banks in Vietnam. In 2012, the Division 
has gained the following business achievements: 

• Deposits from individual customers and SMEs reached 
110% of the target.

• Outstanding loans to individual customers and SMEs grew 
by 17% as compared to 2011.

• In terms of debt handling and collection, targets for control-
ling and collecting bad debts have been surpassed in 2012, 
thus helping improve the Bank’s business performance 
significantly as well as ensure operations safety.

• In terms of service quality, focus has been centered on 
enhancing and differentiating service quality across 
distribution channels of VPBank, with service quality being 
considered a competitive advantage.

• In terms of information updating, market movements have 
been closely tracked to promptly propose adjustments, 
solutions and products to ensure the bank’s safety and high 
productivity.

• In terms of targets and tools for sales staff, sales targets 
and incentives have been designed and adopted smartly to 
motivate sales staff.

• A number of projects which are important to the execution 
of the Bank’s growth strategy have been implemented with 
the Division taking the leading and coordinating role, such as 
the branch network transformation, SME business strategy,  
Sales Stimulation Program/Value Proposition in 2012, etc.

The year 2012 is considered a pivotal one for S&D Division to 
set up its development strategies and action plans. The most 
remarkable achievement of the Division over the year was 
the maintenance of safe and stable operations of VPBank’s 
branch network despite the new S&D model. 

To further support business activities, S&D Division has 
refined its organizational structure by the end of 2012. 

of target for

 Organization chart of S&D Division

Sales Performance 
Management 
Department

With this structure, S&D Division has provided seamless 
guidance from Head Office to each sales staff member as 
well as received feedback and jointly solved sales problems 

in order to optimize the efficiency of its direct distribution 
channels, which consist of hundreds of transaction points in 
many key cities and provinces of the country.

Business 
Development 
Department

Sales and Service 
Excellence

Department

Primary Market
Mobilisation 

Support Department

S&d division

Overseas 
Remittances (WU)

Center

Business Regions
(7 regions)

H.O. Retail Banking 
Services Center

Priority Banking Center

deposits from individual and SME  customers

hitting

110%
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Retail Banking Services

2012 was a year of transformation towards a new dawn 
in the history of retail banking in VPBank. 

After the rapid growth of the past years, as the economy 
started slowing down, Retail Banking Division took time to 
take stock and built a detailed 5 year strategic plan, which 
defined the Bank’s ambition of becoming one of the top 3 
banks in Vietnam. It clearly identified that the upper mass 
and the mass affluent segments were the areas they wanted 
to operate in. A more granular and deeper understanding of 
the segments was done to identify profitable sub-segments 
and tailor products to suit their needs. A pilot was launched 
for the women’s segment in December 2012.

In 2012, VPBank’s Retail Banking Division has achieved 
significant results, including the addition of 70,000 new 
customers in 2012, a growth of nearly 50%. Deposits grew 
at a phenomenal rate of 77% to VND41,000 billion. 

The Household Business Loan, Home Equity Loan and the 
Unsecured Personal Loans were three new loan products 
added to the kitty, thus completing the loan product suite. 
Thanks to these efforts, even in this slowing economy, the 
loans grew to over VND15 trillion.

Diverse activities have been carried out by VPBank for 
convenience enhancement and improvement of customer 
services. Retail Banking Division worked with Vietnam 
Airlines to launch a co-brand credit card. This caters to the 
upper segment and allows customers to earn miles on 
Vietnam Airlines as they spend, either in Vietnam or 
outside. Besides, to support the ambitious growth plan, 
overall distribution was expanded by adding 6 new branches 
and 50 new ATMs. At the same time, an alternate channel 
for sourcing customers was established. These are direct 
sales agents - both on the street and telecalling - to acquire 
clients. By December 2012, the team had a total strength of 
450 people across Hanoi and Ho Chi Minh City.

Overall, Retail Banking Division is very well positioned to help 
VPBank become one of the top 3  retail banks of Vietnam in 5 
years time.

70.000 
new customers,  
an increase of nearly 50% 
against 2011
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To further support small and medium enterprise segment 
(currently representing 90% of total enterprises in Vietnam), 
VPBank established SME Banking Division in October 2012 
(by splitting the Retail & SME Banking Division). With a clear 
customer positioning strategy as well as products tailored 
to SME segment, this Division has achieved preliminary 
success regarding customer acquisition. Also, functional 
departments under the Division have performed their roles 
as contact points very well to provide support and advice to 
branches and business units in the entire system.

The organizational structure of SME Banking Division 
includes SME Product Development Department, 
Sales Campaign and Marketing Department, Business 
Development Department and SME Banking Centers in 
the North and the South with 150 employees in total. 

By the end of 2012, VPBank completed the construction of 
5 well-designed SME Banking Centers to improve customer 
service quality. Taking over more than 22,000 small and 

medium enterprises from the Bank, SME Banking 
Division has launched various interest rate support 
programs for customers, contributing significantly to the 
Bank’s accomplishment of its annual credit and loan targets. 
With international advisory services, VPBank has selected 
a number of key business sectors to focus its support, 
including Wholesale and Retail Trade; Transportation and 
Storage; Power and Energy; Accommodation and Food 
Services; Health and Social Services, etc. The Division also 
rapidly introduced SME enterprises with 10 core products 
in the following categories: deposits, loans, cash flow 
management and trade finance. This will be one of the key 
tools for SME Banking Division to launch business programs 
in the years to come.

In addition, the Division has expanded cooperation with its 
partners to increase customers’ benefits by sponsoring 
major events such as the Annual Customer Conference of 
Vietnam Airlines in Hanoi, the Tam Dao Golf Club Open 
Championship 2012, etc.

SME Banking Services

5 SME Banking Centers 
have been set up with state-of-
the-art and professional design 
to enhance customer service
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wholesale Banking Services

VPBank’s Wholesale Banking Division was established 
on 5 August 2011 and officially put into operation in early 
2012. After more than one year of operation and bold 
transformation, the Division has achieved outstanding 
results, affirming VPBank’s brand in the potential corporate 
banking segment.

The success of Wholesale Banking Division in 2012 was 
highlighted by impressive numbers such as a revenue of 
VND495 billion (an increase of 153% compared to 2011). 
Sales and active balances of the Division have seen 
remarkable growth, with respective deposit and credit 
balances growing at 205% and 72% per annum. In particular, 
FX sales to wholesale customers in 2012 increased by 68%, 
while those from international payment and guarantees 
grew at leapfrogging rate of 700% and 450%, respectively.

In 2012, Wholesale Banking Division focused on the 
improvement of marketing and acquiring customers in 
the context of aggressive competition by other credit 
institutions, especially foreign banks and state-owned 
banks. Thanks to its creative and flexible strategy, the 
total number of corporate customers has increased by 
84% compared to 2011, which included large economic 
groups from both state-owned and private sectors.

With the support of McKinsey, a leading consulting firm, 
Wholesale Banking Division has formulated a business 
strategy for 2012-2017, which is in line with the Bank’s 
overall development strategy. The strategy’s key 
contents cover targeted customer segments, operating 
model, and organizational structure, all aimed at ensuring 
consistency and efficiency. 

In terms of operation, the highlight in 2012 was that the 
Division successfully implemented the sales team model 
with relationship managers as the core, who work closely 
with experts in transaction banking and financial markets. 
In addition, the continued centralization of some wholesale 
banking operations through the establishment of Customer 
Services Centers (CS) helped reduce operational risks, 
improve operational efficiency, and save time and cost, all 
targeted towards a professional model. 

In addition, Wholesale Banking Division has made important 
progress in the development of new products, programs, and 
product packages to meet diverse needs of customers. Most 
remarkable are Cash Management and Trade Finance 
solutions such as the Comprehensive Online Payments for 
Customers (I2b), Centralized Cash Management (Sweeping), 
Distributor Finance, etc.

153% 
growth in wholesale customer 
revenue against 2011
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VPBank Consumer Finance Division (VPBCF) was launched 
by VPBank in 2011 to provide solutions for financial needs 
and make financial products accessible to millions of 
ordinary Vietnamese who desire to improve their living 
and lifestyle. Since then, the consumer finance business 
has spread its wings across the length and breadth of the 
country and expanded the business to more than 2,000 
points of sale and appointed more than 2,500 sales repre-
sentatives to distribute its products to the customers who 
wish to avail them. Currently, VPBank offers its consumer 
finance products in 58 provinces across Vietnam and has 
become a true leader in the industry serving more than 
200,000 customers with best-in-class products and services 
over the past 2 years.

The year 2012 was a year of significant growth and 
consolidation for the consumer finance business. The period 
saw a rapid expansion of the distribution network resulting 
in an unprecedented growth in sales by acquiring a large 

Consumer Finance Activities

58
200,000
VPBank is leading the consumer finance 
market in Vietnam

 customers

with its presence in

number of customers. Strong focus in Risk Management has 
also ensured the credit performance of the portfolio being 
under control and better than the levels budgeted for in the 
annual plan. Solid sales performance resulting in formidable 
revenue momentum, appropriate and minute focus on 
managing the risk and adequate control on costs ensure a 
robust performance at the bottom line by delivering better 
than the plan.

The focus of the management was centered on building a 
strong and durable infrastructure to create a foundation 
for the business that will support the growth in the future. 
As part of that effort, a new core lending system was 
implemented and the effort was recognized a world-beating 
achievement in using technology for innovation in the bank-
ing field by a renowned IT and Banking industry observer. 
Among other things, a well-designed business intelligence 
and analytics division (BI) was also set up during the year to 
support Consumer Finance’s business activities. 

During the year, the Personal Loan product was introduced 
to expand the product line by the addition of the product to 
finance purchase of motorcycles and electronic appliances. 
The launch was met with great success as more than 15,000 
customers availed the product in just less than 6 months 
during the later half of the year. Plans are ongoing for 
launching more products to help our potential 
customers with effective and affordable solutions to their 
financial needs and help them achieve their dreams of 
improving their living and lifestyle.

provinces and cities nationwide and
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treasury and Investment Activities

Treasury and Investment Division is a business unit of  
VPBank, which has the function of executing business 
strategies to maximize the Bank’s profit, maintaining a 
sound balance sheet and managing the Bank’s treas-
ury, ensuring liquidity, optimizing funding, and minimiz-
ing interest rate and liquidity risks. Despite difficulties 
and challenges in the market, Treasury and Investment 
Division still achieved encouraging results in 2012. 

As the result of tight monetary and interest rate policies 
of the State Bank of Vietnam (SBV) in 2012, the interbank 
market experienced changes in the opposite direction from 
previous years, putting great pressure on banks. However, 
VPBank managed to optimize its funding sources to finance 
activities with high profit margins.

In terms of liquidity management, VPBank constantly kept 
liquidity ratios in accordance with Circular No. 13 of the SBV 
and its internal liquidity ratio regulation in 2012. Therefore, 
the Bank promptly met customers’ payment needs even 
during periods of market difficulties.

In terms of bond trading, recognizing the downward trend 
of interest rates, the Division has bought bonds when appro-
priate in order to meet liquidity  ratios stipulated in Circulars 
No. 13 and No. 19 of the SBV and make profit. In 2012, 
VPBank’s bond trading grew significantly compared to 
previous years. Its year-end portfolio of government bonds 

and government-guaranteed bonds increased by three times 
from a level of VND4,000 billion. Its trading volume also 
increased remarkably, bringing VPBank to the group of top 
10 organizations with highest bond trading volume on Hanoi 
Stock Exchange (HNX) for the first time. As an active 
member of Vietnam Bond Market Association, VPBank has 
been recognized by the Ministry of Finance as an official 
member for special bond bidding with an online dealing 
system with HNX. 

Amid a market with lots of difficulties, VPBank took a 
prudent approach in its investment activities. In addition 
to new investments, the Bank focused on reviewing its 
previous investments, revaluating them, liquidating parts 
of its investments and requiring customers to put up 
additional collateral in order to minimize risks for the Bank.

In addition to remarkable business result with total 
operating income (TOI) 2.3 times as high as 2012 
target, the Division has also focused on establishing and 
improving its processes to enhance productivity and 
business performance. Notably, seven business processes 
have been upgraded, including those for funds request-
ing and reporting, interbank lending/borrowing, valuable 
papers issuance, forward trading of valuable papers, etc. 
Besides, the Division has also finalized its investment 
regulations and policies and a set of liquidity ratios for 
internal management. 

230%
growth of total operating 
income (tOI) 
against 2012 target
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Risk Management

In 2012, VPBank established its Risk Management 
Division and a risk management framework governing all 
risk management activities of the Bank. This reflected 
VPBank’s resolve in developing a risk management system 
which is independent, centralized, specialized, in accordance 
with international standards and in line with the Bank’s 
business strategy.   

Shortly after its establishment, Risk Management Division 
has done a diagnostic and developed an appropriate risk 
appetite for the Bank’s business strategy. Accordingly, 
material risks including credit, operational, liquidity and 
market risks have been regularly monitored and effectively 
controlled to ensure that the Bank always maintains its 
prudent capital adequacy.  

Regarding credit risks, with the support of McKinsey, 
VPBank has accomplished credit scoring and credit rating 
systems for credit products and customer segments and 
courageously applied advanced risk measurement 
techniques such as credit stress test, measurement of 
concentration risk and loan transition measurement by 
customer segment, etc. Credit risk instruments for credit 
portfolios have also been developed. In addition, the risk 
assessment system used for financial institution 
counterparties has been implemented. All risk policies and 
procedures have been regularly reviewed and systemized to 
facilitate risk management for stages of credit life cycle.

Regarding operational risks, VPBank has taken long-term 
approaches such as issuing policies and applying common 

tools including loss data collection system and key risk indi-
cators (KRIs) to monitor risk exposures. Besides, the Bank 
has implemented many initiatives to prevent and reduce the 
risk of fraud internally as well as externally, improve the 
internal control system, re-engineer work flow processes 
and invest in upgrading the information technology system.

VPBank is proud to be one of the pioneering banks in applying 
advanced liquidity risk management tools such as cash flow 
analysis tool MCO, liquidity stress test, liquidity contingency 
plan, customized liquidity monitoring indicators and thresh-
olds for timely warning, etc. These tools have actively 
supported the Bank in forecasting and responding effectively 
in different scenarios and maintaining sound liquidity position.

To control market risks, in 2012, VPBank has issued the 
market risk management policy setting core principles of 
market risk management and applied various measure-
ment techniques: PV01, Duration, Gap Analysis, EVE, etc. 
Centralization of market risk management activities to 
support Investment Council and ALCO has also been 
accomplished during the year.

In particular, two important strategic projects, Debt Collec-
tion and Pre Basel II have been launched in 2012 to prepare 
for the establishment of professionally centralized Debt Col-
lection Center at VPBank and set up action plans to improve 
the quality of risk management in 2013. This will give the 
Bank a solid foundation to  promote an overall risk strategy 
towards international standards, particularly those in Basel 
II Accord and commonly applied international standards.



31

Human Resources Management

2012 marked VPBank’s great efforts and success in the 
development and implementation of core human resources 
systems, which laid a strong foundation to support its 
business growth in order to achieve the Bank’s ambitious 
goals for 2012 – 2017.

Performance Management System (PMS) and Rewards 
System are among key HR initiatives, which have been 
implemented and communicated across the Bank in 
2012. This is the first important step for the development 
and application of advanced human resources management 
systems and models at VPBank, which helps raise the 
Bank’s people competitive advantages.

The outstanding feature of the newly-implemented PMS is 
not only the commitment of all individuals to the organiza-
tion through the development of standard objectives (KPI/
Balanced Scorecard) adherent to the strategic objectives 
of the unit and the Bank, but also the capability of fairly 
evaluating individual performance in operation cycles 
(mid-year and year-end), using relative assessment among 
peers and ensuring compliance with the bell-curved 
distribution of performance ratings.  

The new Rewards System offers a total competitive approach 
to compensation and benefits: in cash (base pay by position, 
incentives schemes, allowances for different positions and 
regions, etc.) and in non-cash short-term or long-term benefit 
programs for staff and their families. The implementation of 
“Aon Care” Medical Insurance Program has been highly 
welcomed and praised by the Bank’s employees.

2012 is also the year when VPBank gained remarkable 
achievements in talent attraction from various sources, 
leading to an increase of its workforce by 30% to more than 
4,000 employees. The key to this success is the Bank’s focus 
on recruitment process improvement as well as enhance-
ment of recruitment channel quality and interviewing skills, 
which effectively helps screen and find the most suitable 
candidates for all levels, from supporting staff, officer to 
senior management. Such improvements helped the Bank 
promptly meet the increasing demands for human resources 
growth in support of its business strategy implementation.

In addition to laying foundation systems, VPBank’s senior 
management has a clear strategy to make VPBank the 
second home for all employees. With the sponsorship of the 
Chairman of the Board of Directors, VPBank launched a set of 
6 core values across the organization in 2012: 1) Customer 
Focus; 2) Productivity; 3) Ambition; 4) People 
Development; 5) Trust; and 6) Make the Difference. 
Communication programs, including core values awareness 
contests and community activities, have been encouraged 
and promoted, which helped connect members of VPBank 
family to create an ideal and professional working 
environment with clear career paths, thus creating the 
attractiveness and differentiation of VPBank relative to its 
competitors.
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Information technology System

Information Technology (IT) is an essential part of the 
three-pronged strategy to create foundations for VPBank’s 
sustainable development. To keep pace with technology 
trends, VPBank has researched and flexibly applied 
technologies that tend to remain sustainable in the future. 
International best practices like ITIL and the middleware 
technology (the platform for SOA – Service Oriented 
Architecture) have been implemented at VPBank very 
early. Recently, independent assessments and studies 
have confirmed that the adoption of current technologies 
at VPBank is in line with advanced technology trends. 

For years, VPBank has targeted an overall IT architecture 
which effectively supports business operations. In 2012, 
VPBank continued strengthening IT foundations as well as 
maintaining system security. The key highlights of IT at 
VPBank in 2012 are: 

- In terms of strategy, VPBank has developed an IT strategy 
for 2013-2017 with advisory services provided by the global 
consulting firm PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC), which 
illustrated VPBank’s ambition and commitment to realizing 
its business strategy;

- In terms of operation, the delivery of IT products and 
services has been well performed across the Bank, meeting 
the needs of business development;

- In terms of security, VPBank has ensured the availability 
and security of IT systems.

typical It projects implemented by VPBank in 2012 are:

- The Loan Origination System (LOS) to enable centralized 
credit processing across the country;

- The Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI 
DSS) to enable compliance with the card data protection 
requirements by international card alliances;

- The IT Master Plan to provide roadmap for IT in the years 
to come;

- Upgrade projects or new projects to better support 
business operations such as core banking upgrade, 
management reporting system, etc.;

- Projects with third parties to enable new business 
opportunities such as bank-to-bank payment systems, 
merchant payment systems for card and internet banking, 
etc.;

- Other projects to improve infrastructure and employees’ 
performance such as network & storage upgrade, etc.
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VPBank Asset Management Company limited

Founded in 2006, VPBank Asset Management 
Company (VP AMC) has established and affirmed 
its position as a subsidiary company operating 
effectively in the field of debt and asset manage-
ment as well as providing value-added services for 
the Bank. 

The year 2012 has witnessed VP AMC’s comprehensive 
changes in the operating model and scale to be in line with 
VPBank’s strategy for 2012 - 2017.  By December 2012, the 
company’s workforce increased from 30 employees at the 
end of 2011 to more than 120 working in the Head Office in 
Hanoi and the representative office in Ho Chi Minh City. The 
organizational structure of the company has been modi-
fied to be highly specialized in each area of operation. With 
only two functions in late 2011, VP AMC has extended the 
scope of operation to cover nearly 10 different areas. 
Decision making, power delegation, and reporting 
processes have been put in place in accordance with best 
practices currently available in the market.

VP AMC’s main areas of activities are:

debt trading: Trading bad debts of other credit institutions 
or of asset management companies of other commercial 
banks in accordance with applicable laws; 

debt handling: Taking over and handling overdue debts, 
dealing with collateral associated with overdue debts 
that VPBank authorized VP AMC to handle, in order to 

recover capital for the bank as soon as possible;

Asset management: Managing and making use of VPBank-
owned assets efficiently;

warehouses and collateral management: Providing 
security services for warehouses which are used as collat-
eral for credit granted by VPBank;

Collateral evaluation: Evaluating collateral within 
VPBank’s system.

In 2012, the company also took over the design, manage-
ment and supervision of branch renovation across VPBank’s 
network. The company’s construction team has made re-
markable contribution to the success of the following pro-
jects: Branch Guideline Project – Phase 1, VPBank’s new 
Head Office Renovation Project (at 72 Tran Hung Dao). The 
renovation of VPBank’s premises has been undertaken by 
the company with a high level of quality and aesthetics.

The motto of the company is to constantly pay attention 
to “Professionalism, Trust, Perfect Services” and 
closely follow VPBank’s development strategy and the 6 
core values.

Key financial highlights in 2012:

- Net operating income:  VNd138.24 billion;

- Profit before tax:  VNd43.4 billion;

- Total assets: VNd2,997 billion;

- Number of employees:  127.
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VPBank Securities Company limited

Founded in 2006 with a charter capital of VNd50 billion, VPBank Securities Company (VPBS) has become one of 
the securities companies with the largest shareholders’ equity in the market after its capital  increased to VNd800 
billion in 2012. the company’s key areas of operations include Securities Brokerage, Securities trading, Financial 
Services, Corporate Finance Advisory and Research. with the support of VPBank as its parent bank, VPBS aims to 
become one of the leading securities companies in 2015, providing products, services and utilities of excellence. 
with 168 employees, the company has its offices in Hanoi, Ho Chi Minh City and da Nang with an ever-expanding 
transaction network and customer base. 

Highlights in VPBS’s activities in 2012

- Brokerage: VPBS has always been in the TOP securities 
companies which have the largest market shares for bond 
brokerage on 2 stock exchanges (HNX and HSX) in 2012. 
Also in 2012, the company has officially put into operation 
an advanced trading system called Home-trading to serve 
customers.

- Corporate Finance Advisory Service: The company con-
tinued promoting government bond trading advisory service 
and fund arrangement for big corporates, a typical example 
of which was the successful issuance of  3-year bonds worth 
VND500 billion for Vietnam Steel Corporation.

- Financial services: these services have been further 
expanded with automated and strict risk management 
processes.

- As of 31 December 2012, VPBS’ revenue reached VND529 

billion while profit before tax stood at more than VND76.4 
billion and total assets surpassed VND2,575 billion. Return 
on equity was 6.97%. The financial safety ratio of the 
company was 311.2%, exceeding the minimum 
requirements of the State Securities Commission.

Plan for 2013

- Profit before tax: VND175 billion.

- Business principles: Based on the principle of capital 
protection, risk mitigation, and business flexibility when 
market conditions become more favorable.

- Competitive Strategy: Focusing on the strategy named 
“Excellence and differentiation of products and services” 
in order to maintain and strengthen its competitive 
advantages; adopting concomitantly the cost-saving 
strategy to make use of the company’s resources most 
efficiently. 



35

ORGANIzAtION 
StRuCtuRE & 
MANAGEMENt 
PROFIlES



Annual Report 2012

STRONG FOUNDATION FOR BREAKTHROUGH SUCCESS



37

BOD’S OFFICE

Human 
Resources

Management

VPBank’s Organisation Structure

Finance

Strategy & 
Project 

Management

CEO’S OFFICE

CREDIT 
COUNCIL

RISK 
MANAGEMENT 

COMMITTEE

HUMAN 
RESOURCES 
COMMITTEE

EXCO

SUPERVISORY 
BOARD

BOARd OF 
dIRECtORS

CHIEF 
EXECutIVE 

OFFICER

INVESTMENT 
COUNCIL

ALCO

GENERAl 
SHAREHOldERS’ 

MEEtING

INTERNAL 
AUDIT

treasury 
& Investment

SME 
Banking

Retail
Banking

Consumer
Finance (CF)

Credit

Operation

Information
technology

legal Affairs &
debt Collection

Communication
& Brand

Management
Division

Center
Operation & Support  Units

Business Units

Advisory Units

Risk
Management

Commercial 
Banking 

(CMB)

wholesale 
Banking

Sales  &
distribution



Annual Report 2012

STRONG FOUNDATION FOR BREAKTHROUGH SUCCESS

Members of the Board of directors 
and the Supervisory Board

1. Mr.  NGO CHI dzuNG

Chairman of the Board of directors
Graduating from Moscow Geological Prospecting University 
since 1992, Mr. Dzung successfully completed his doctoral 
thesis at Institute of Social-Political Strategic Research un-
der the Russian Academy of Sciences in 2002. From 1996 
to 2004, he was a founding shareholder and appointed 
member of the Board of Directors of Vietnam International 
Bank (VIB). From 2005 to 2010, he was the Chairman of 
KBG Group (Russia) and Vice Chairman of Vietnam Techno-
logical and Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Techcombank). He 
joined the Board of Directors of VPBank in April 2010 and was 
elected Chairman of the Board of Directors until now. In 
addition, he was the Chairman of Human Resources 
Committee, Investment Council, high-level Credit Council, 
Vice Chairman of Risk Management Committee and a 
voting member of the Assets - Liabilities Management 
Council (ALCO) of VPBank. 

2.  Mr. BuI HAI quAN 

Vice Chairman of the Board of directors
After graduating in economics from Kiev National 
Economics University of Ukraine, Mr. Quan was an intern 
and collaborator of this university from 1991 to 1993. He is 
currently Director of Viet Hai Trading and Technical Service 
Co., Ltd, member of the Board of Directors of Long Viet MDF 
Wooden Technology Joint-stock Company, and Chairman of 
the Board of Directors of Hong Hai Company Ltd. He joined 
the Board of Directors of VPBank in April 2006 and was 
elected Vice Chairman in December 2008. He is now a 
member of Human Resources Committee, Investment 
Council, Assets - Liabilities Management Council (ALCO) 
of VPBank, Vice Chairman of the high-level Credit Council, 
Chairman of Risk Management Committee, and Chairman of 
the Members’ Council of VPBank Securities Company. 

3. Mr.  lO BANG GIANG 

Vice Chairman of the Board of directors
Mr. Giang obtained a Master Degree in Economics from 
Kiev National Aviation University, Ukraine in 2002. After 
that, he got his Bachelor Degree in Finance and Banking  
from Moscow Economics, Statistics and Information 
University, the Russian Federation in 2010. He held various 
management positions in Ukraine, such as General Director 
of Finman Company from 1995 to 2000, Chief Repre-
sentative of INVESTLINK Company from 2000 to 2005, and 
Chairman of the Board of Directors cum General Director 
of KBG Food Ukraine Company within 3 years from 2005 to 
2007. Since 2007, he has been the Chairman of Green Food 
Ukraine Company, Member of the Board of Directors of Hung 
Vuong Aqua-products Joint Stock Company, and Member of 
the Members’ Council of Delta-Valley BT Company Limited. 
He has also served as Head of the Supervisory Board of Delta 
Bank, Ukraine since 2009. Mr. Giang has been the Vice Chair-
man of the Board of Directors of VPBank since March 2010. 
Additionally, he is also a member of the Human Resources 
Committee, Investment Council, ALCO, the Members’ Coun-
cil of VPBank Securities Company and Risk Management 
Committee as well as Vice Chairman of the high-level Credit 
Council of VPBank.

4.  Mr. PHuNG kHAC kE

Independent Member of the Board of directors
After graduating from Hanoi University of National 
Economics in 1969, Mr. Ke was retained as a lecturer at the 
university for 2 years and then moved to work for the State 
Bank of Vietnam from September 1971. From 1983 to 1987, 
he was a research student on currency circulation and 
credit at Leningrad Institute of Economics and Finance, the 
former Union of Soviet Socialist Republics (USSR). Since 
June 1979, Mr. Ke held many managerial positions at the 
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State Bank of Vietnam such as Deputy Manager of the 
Issue and Vault Department and the Economics and 
Planning Department, Deputy Chief of the Governor’s Office, 
Manager of the Credit Department. From February 1998 to 
April 2002, he was appointed General Director of Vietnam 
Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade. From 
May 2002 to April 2008, Mr. Ke was Deputy Governor of the 
State Bank of Vietnam. From April 2011 to date, he has been 
an independent member of VPBank’s Board of Directors. He 
has also been a member of Risk Management Committee of 
VPBank since its establishment.

5. Mr.  luONG PHAN SON

Member of the Board of directors
Mr. Son graduated from Lvov Polytechnic National University, 
USSR with an Engineering Bachelor. From 1988 to 1993, he 
worked for Bechka company in Lvov city. After that, he came 
back  to Vietnam and took the position of Deputy General 
Director of Tan Hoang Minh Company from 1994 to 1997. 
From 1998 to date, he has been Deputy Director cum Chief 
Representative of INVESTLINK Company in Russian 
Federation. Mr. Son was a member of VPBank’s Board of the 
Directors from April 2012 to October 2012. He no longer held 
this position due to not being the representative of an institu-
tional shareholder making capital contribution to VPBank.

6.  Ms. NGuyEN quyNH ANH 

Head of the Supervisory Board 
Ms. Anh graduated from Moscow State Pedagogical 
University in 1994 with a Bachelor Degree in Russian 
Linguistics and Literature. She also obtained Master degrees 
in Educational Sciences and Business Administration, 
specializing in corporate governance model from the State 
University of Management, the Russian Federation. Ms. Anh 
was Deputy Editor-in-chief of the “Nhan Hoa” Newspaper – a 
newspaper under the Russian Press Committee from 1995 to 
2003. She then undertook positions of Accountant, Material 
Supplies Manager, Financial Director of BeePack Group, the 
Russian Federation from 2003 to 2008. From 2009 to Febru-
ary 2010, she was General Director of Lien Minh Investment 
Joint Stock Company. She was a member of the Supervisory 
Board of Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock 

Bank (Techcombank) from 2008 to March 2010 and Euro 
Capital Securities Company from 2009 to June 2010. She 
was elected Head of the Supervisory Board of VPBank from 
March 2010 to date and served as a full-time member. Ms. 
Anh has also acted as the Chief Supervisor of VPBank 
Securities Company since September 2011. 

7. Ms. tRINH tHI tHANH HANG

Full-time Member of the Supervisory Board
Graduating from the University of Natural Sciences – Hanoi 
National University with a Bachelor Degree in Information 
Technology and the University of National Economics with a 
Bachelor Degree in Finance and Banking, Ms. Hang worked 
as a teacher at Hong Bang High School, Hanoi from 1998 to 
1999. She then worked for Military Commercial Joint Stock 
Bank. She held the position of Information Technology 
Officer from 1999 to 2008 and Financial Officer from 2008 
to March 2010. Ms. Hang has been appointed member of the 
Supervisory Board since March 2010. Also, she has been 
appointed the Supervisor of VPBank Asset Management 
Company Limited since November 2010. 

8.  Ms. NGuyEN tHI MAI tRINH 

Member of the Supervisory Board
After graduating from Moscow Geological State University 
with a Bachelor Degree in Economics, Ms. Trinh received 
a bachelor degree on Law of Intellectual Property from 
University of Intellectual Property Law, the Russian Fed-
eration. She then obtained a Doctoral Degree in Economics 
Science from Moscow Geological Prospecting Institute, 
Russian Federation. She took various positions in Moscow, 
such as Accountant for Doninanta Service Company from 
1995 to September 1998 and King Lion Company from 
October 1998 to December 2002. She held the position of 
Chief Finance Officer (CFO) for Beepack Company within 5 
years from August 2004 to October 2008 and Accounting 
Officer for Interlogo Business Corp Company in Moscow – 
a company specialized in international financial investment 
- from August 2005 to December 2011. She was also the 
CFO of KBG Group from October 2008 to December 2011. 
Ms. Trinh has been a member of VPBank’s Supervisory 
Board since March 2012. 
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Members of the Board of Management

1. Mr. NGuyEN duC VINH

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
Mr. Nguyen Duc Vinh received his Master of Business 
Administration from HEC Business Administration 
University, France and other degrees in the United States. 
He worked as Deputy General Director for Vietnam Airlines 
Corporation (Vietnam Airlines) before taking his roles 
in the Board of Directors and the Board of Management 
for Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock 
Bank (Techcombank) with important positions such as: 
CEO, member of the Board of Directors cum CEO, Vice 
Chairman of the Board of Directors. From July 2012, Mr. 
Nguyen Duc Vinh has been the CEO of VPBank.

2. Mr.  NGuyEN tHANH BINH

deputy CEO, Head of Credit division
Mr. Nguyen Thanh Binh joined the Armed Forces of 
Vietnam from 1985 to 1988 before obtaining a Bachelor 
Degree in Finance and Banking from Hanoi University 
of National Economics and completing a post-graduate 
training course on Public Policies of the Fulbright Vietnam 
Program. Joining VPBank from 1994, he had held various 
managerial positions in the Credit Department, Research 
and Development Department, General Affairs and 
Branch Management Department, etc. before being 
appointed Deputy CEO in 2002. He is now Deputy CEO 
cum Head of Credit Division.

3. Ms. duONG tHI tHu tHuy

deputy CEO, Head of Sales and distribution division
Ms. Duong Thi Thu Thuy obtained her Bachelor Degree from 
the Hanoi Banking College, Bachelor Degree in Finance 
and Banking from the University of National Economics 
and a Bachelor Degree in English language from the Hanoi 
Foreign Languages University under the Hanoi National 
University. Since 2002, she worked at VPBank and held  
various managerial positions, such as Head of Corporate 
Customer Relationship Department – Branch Manager of 
VPBank Hanoi, Deputy CEO cum Director of Transaction 
Center. She has been Deputy CEO cum Head of Sales and 
Distribution Division since June 2012. 

4. Mr. PHAN NGOC HOA

deputy CEO, deputy Head of Sales and distribution 
division
After obtaining a Bachelor Degree in Finance from the 
University of Economics Ho Chi Minh City in 1994, Mr. Phan 
Ngoc Hoa joined VPBank. He had held various managerial 
positions at VPBank Ho Chi Minh and VPBank Sai Gon 
branches before being appointed Deputy CEO of VPBank in 
2010. He is now Deputy CEO cum Deputy Head of Sales and 
Distribution Division of VPBank. 
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5. Ms. duONG tHI tHuy

deputy CEO, Head of Information technology division
Ms. Duong Thi Thuy obtained a Bachelor Degree in Physics 
from Vietnam National University in 1993, and a Bache-
lor Degree in Electronics and Telecommunications from 
the National University in 2002. Ms. Duong Thi Thuy also 
held an MBA from the Columbia Southern University, the 
United States. Working for VPBank since 1996, Ms. Thuy 
served as Head of IT Center before being appointed Dep-
uty CEO of VPBank cum Head of Information Technology 
Division in February 2008.

6. Ms. NGuyEN tHI BICH tHuy

deputy CEO, Head of treasury and Investment 
division
With a Bachelor Degree in Accounting from the University 
of National Economics in 1994, Ms. Nguyen Thi Bich Thuy 
continued her education with a Master Degree in Finance 
and Banking in Paris Dauphine & ESCP University, France. 
She then served as Deputy Manager of the General Treas-
ury Department for the Asia Pacific Bank and Deputy CEO 
of Habubank. From June 2010 to date, Ms. Nguyen Thi Bich 
Thuy has been Deputy CEO of VPBank cum Head of Treas-
ury and Investment Division.

7. Mr. Vu MINH tRuONG

deputy CEO, Head of wholesale Banking division
Obtaining a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration 
from West Berlin University in Germany, Mr. Vu Minh 
Truong had served as Manager of the Corporate Banking 
Department of HSBC Bank, Director of Currency Trading, 
Foreign Exchange and Global Markets of Standard Char-
tered Bank in Vietnam, Global Markets Director for Viet-
nam and Director of Financial Institution in the Greater 
Mekong Region of ANZ Bank Vietnam. From July 2011 to 
date, Mr. Vu Minh Truong has been Deputy CEO of VPBank 
cum Head of Wholesale Banking Division.

8. Ms. luu tHI tHAO

deputy CEO, Head of Finance division
Ms. Luu Thi Thao graduated from the Banking Academy 
with a Bachelor Degree in accounting. She has been a 
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Account-
ants of UK (The ACCA UK) since 2002. She used to work 
for PricewaterhouseCoopers (Vietnam) Company Limited 
and KPMG Vietnam Company Limited before holding 
various management positions such as Head of Internal 
Audit, Compliance Department, ABN AMRO Vietnam 
Branch and Chief Financial Officer of ANZ Bank Vietnam. 
Ms. Luu Thi Thao has been Deputy CEO of VPBank cum 
Head of Finance Division since August 2011.
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9. Mr. kAlIdAS GHOSE

deputy CEO, Head of Consumer Finance division, Head 
of Retail Banking division 
Mr. Kalidas Ghose graduated from Jadavpur University 
(India) and then obtained a post-graduate certificate on 
Business Administration, XLRI School of Management 
and Human Resources, Jamshedpur (India). He has held 
various important positions such as: General Director of 
CitiFinancial India, President cum CEO of CitiFinancial Corp 
(Philippines), CEO of Prudential Vietnam Finance Company 
Limited, General Director of Retail Banking and Indi-
vidual Investment Management, Mekong Region of ANZ 
Vietnam. He joined VPBank in March 2011 and now served 
as Deputy CEO cum Head of 2 Divisions, i.e., Consumer 
Finance Division and Retail Banking Division of VPBank. 

10. Ms. luu tHI ANH XuAN

deputy CEO, Head of Commercial Banking division 
(CMB)
Ms. Luu Thi Anh Xuan obtained a Master Degree in Henley 
Management College, UK. She has extensive working experi-
ence in finance and banking in senior positions such as Vice 
Chairman, Director of Trade Finance at Deutsche Bank - 
Ho Chi Minh Branch, Customer Relations Manager of ABN 
ARMO Bank - Hanoi Branch and Deputy Director of Smart-
links Company, Vice Chairman cum Director of Trade Finance
of Citibank, and Deputy CEO of Techcombank. She joined 
VPBank in August 2012 and served as Deputy CEO cum Head 
of Commercial Banking Division (CMB).

11.  Mr. MAREk HOVORkA

deputy CEO
Mr. Marek Hovorka obtained a Bachelor Degree of Eco-
nomics from University of Economics (Czech Republic), 
Master of Business Administration (MBA) from Clemson 
University (USA) and a Certificate of Diploma in Business 
Study from University of Bradford (UK). He had served 
as Senior Manager of Boston Consulting Group in Czech 
Republic, Poland and Germany; Vice President in charge of 
Retail Banking of Raiffeisen International Bank Holding 
AG (Austria); Deputy CEO cum Director of Business 
Development of Delta Bank (Ukraine). Since November 
2010, he has served as Deputy CEO of VPBank.

12. Mr. PEtERJAN VAN NIEuwENHuIzEN

Head of Operation division
Mr. Peterjan Van Nieuwenhuizen obtained a Master 
Degree of Information Technology from Twente University 
(Holland), a Bachelor of Arts and Certificate of Advanced 
Study in Mathematics from the University of Cambridge 
(Pembroke College). He had extensive working experience 
at McKinsey & Company in senior positions such as Engage-
ment Manager, Associate Partner, etc., in the UK and a 
variety of countries in continental Europe, Canada, the U.S., 
Singapore, Indonesia, other South East Asian countries and 
North Africa. He joined VPBank in October 2012 and served 
as Head of Operation Division.
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13. Ms. NGuyEN tHI BICH HuyEN

Head of Human Resources division

Ms. Nguyen Thi Bich Huyen obtained a Bachelor Degree in 
Organic Chemistry from University of Technology (Czech 
Republic) and a Master Degree in Business Administration 
from Asian Institute of Technology (Thailand) in 1995. She 
had served as HR Director in large multinational compa-
nies. Before joining VPBank, she worked for HSBC Insurance 
Company (Vietnam) as an HR Consulting Expert. She has 
been Head of Human Resources Division of VPBank since 
January 2012. 

14. Mr. dAO GIA HuNG

Acting Head of Risk Managament division
Mr. Dao Gia Hung obtained a Master Degree in Development 
Economics from Netherland Institute of Social Science in 
National Economics University. He has extensive working 
experience in the banking sector in  senior positions at Tech-
combank, VIB such as Vice Director of Credit Division, Vice Di-
rector of Risk Management Division, Head of Individual Credit 
Management Center, Head of Risk Management and General 
Planning Department, etc. Joining VPBank in June 2012, he 
has been appointed Acting Head of Risk Management Division.

15. Mr. HOANG ANH tuAN

Head of legal Affairs and debt Collection Center

Mr. Hoang Anh Tuan obtained a Bachelor Degree from Hanoi 
University of Law and a Master Degree in Law from Vietnam 
National University, Hanoi in 2007. He is also a Lawyer of 
Hanoi Bar Association. He worked for AIC Law Company, 
Vietnam International Bank (VIB) before joining VPBank in 
April 2007 with the position of Vice Director of the Legal 
Department. Mr. Hoang Anh Tuan is now Head of Legal 
Affairs and Debt Collection Center. 

16. Mr. lE HOANG lAN

Head of Strategy and Project Management Center

Mr. Le Hoang Lan graduated from the Banking Academy 
in 1994. He had nearly 10 years working for the State 
Bank of Vietnam, with extensive experience in ODA 
projects and program management and international 
cooperation. While working for the State Bank of 
Vietnam, he obtained a Master Degree in Public Policies 
from the National Graduate Institute for Policies Studies 
(GRIPS) in Japan. From 2004, he worked as a consultant for 
Asian Development Bank (ADB) in public policy training. 
Joining VPBank in November 2010, he is now Head of 
Strategy and Project Management Center.

17. Ms. NGuyEN tHI HONG lAN

Head of Communication and Brand Management 
Center

Obtaining a Master Degree in Banking – Finance from 
ESCP-EAP University (France), a Master Degree in Market 
Research and Marketing Strategies from Nantes University 
(France), Ms. Nguyen Thi Hong Lan is now a postgraduate 
student at Vietnam University of Commerce. She has 
extensive working experience in banking and finance, 
brand management and communication. She has held 
various positions including: Assistant to General 
Secretary of Vietnam Banks Association, Senior Officer 
of Mizuho Bank (Japan) - Hanoi branch, Director of 
Communication and Brand Management for Vietnam 
International Bank (VIB), Manager of Marketing, Brand and 
Communication for Real Estate CEO Group. Since March 
2012, she has been Head of Communication and Brand 
Management Center of VPBank.
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Banking Licence No. 0042/NH - GP            12 August 1993

The banking licence was issued by the State Bank of Vietnam and was valid for 99 years 
from the date of the banking licence.

Business Registration
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0100233583             8 September 1993

The initial Business Registration Certificate and updates were issued by Hanoi 
Department of Planning and Investment, of which the most updated was issued 
on 14 January 2013.
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Management’s responsibility in respect of the consolidated financial statements

The Bank’s Management is responsible for the consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of VPBank’s 
consolidated status of financial affairs and its consolidated operating results and cash flows for fiscal years. In preparing the 
consolidated financial statements, the Bank’s Management is required to:

- Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

►- Confirm that applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained 
in the financial statements; and

►- Prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that VPBank 
will continue in business.

The Bank’s Management is also responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with reasonable 
accuracy at any time, the financial position of VPBank and to ensure that the accounting records comply with the applicable 
accounting system. The Bank’s Management is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of VPBank and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The Bank’s Management confirms that VPBank has complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial 
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Statement by Management

Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair 
view of the consolidated financial position of VPBank as of 31 December 2012 and of its consolidated results of operations and 
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese 
Accounting System applicable to credit institutions issued by the State Bank of Vietnam and the relevant statutory 
requirements.

The Board of Management of Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank is pleased to present this report and its 
consolidated financial statements of VPBank for the year ended 31 December 2012.

StAteMeNt OF the BOARD OF MANAgeMeNt

For and on behalf of the Board of Management:

Mr. Nguyen Duc Vinh
Chief  Executive Officer

Hanoi, 28 March 2013
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NOÄI DUNG

Kính göûi caùc Coå ñoâng vaø Hoäi ñoàng Quaûn trò
NGAÂN HAØNG THÖÔNG MAÏI COÅ PHAÀN KYÕ THÖÔNG VIEÄT NAM

Phaïm vi kieåm toaùn
Chuùng toâi ñaõ kieåm toaùn baûng caân ñoái keá toaùn hôïp nhaát ñính keøm cuûa Ngaân haøng Thöông maïi Coå phaàn Kyõ thöông Vieät Nam (“Ngaân haøng”) 
vaø caùc coâng ty con (goïi chung laø “Techcombank”) taïi ngaøy 31 thaùng 12 naêm 2011, baùo caùo keát quaû hoaït ñoäng kinh doanh hôïp nhaát vaø baùo 
caùo löu chuyeån tieàn teä hôïp nhaát lieân quan cho naêm keát thuùc cuøng ngaøy vaø caùc thuyeát minh keøm theo, ñöôïc Ban Laõnh ñaïo Ngaân haøng pheâ 
duyeät phaùt haønh ngaøy 22 thaùng 3 naêm 2012. Vieäc laäp vaø trình baøy baùo caùo taøi chính hôïp nhaát naøy thuoäc traùch nhieäm cuûa Ban Laõnh ñaïo 
Ngaân haøng. Traùch nhieäm cuûa chuùng toâi laø ñöa ra yù kieán veà baùo caùo taøi chính hôïp nhaát naøy caên cöù treân keát quaû kieåm toaùn cuûa chuùng toâi.

Chuùng toâi ñaõ thöïc hieän coâng vieäc kieåm toaùn theo caùc Chuaån möïc Kieåm toaùn Vieät Nam. Caùc chuaån möïc naøy yeâu caàu chuùng toâi phaûi laäp 
keá hoaïch vaø thöïc hieän coâng vieäc kieåm toaùn ñeå coù ñöôïc söï ñaûm baûo hôïp lyù raèng baùo caùo taøi chính khoâng chöùa ñöïng caùc sai soùt troïng yeáu. 
Coâng vieäc kieåm toaùn bao goàm vieäc kieåm tra, treân cô sôû choïn maãu, caùc baèng chöùng xaùc minh cho caùc soá lieäu vaø caùc thuyeát trình trong baùo 
caùo taøi chính. Coâng vieäc kieåm toaùn cuõng bao goàm vieäc ñaùnh giaù caùc nguyeân taéc keá toaùn ñöôïc aùp duïng vaø caùc öôùc tính quan troïng cuûa Ban 
Laõnh ñaïo Ngaân haøng, cuõng nhö vieäc ñaùnh giaù caùch trình baøy toång quaùt cuûa baùo caùo taøi chính. Chuùng toâi cho raèng coâng vieäc kieåm toaùn ñaõ 
ñöa ra nhöõng cô sôû hôïp lyù laøm caên cöù cho yù kieán cuûa chuùng toâi. 

YÙ kieán kieåm toaùn
Theo yù kieán cuûa chuùng toâi, baùo caùo taøi chính hôïp nhaát ñaõ phaûn aùnh trung thöïc vaø hôïp lyù, treân caùc khía caïnh troïng yeáu, veà tình hình taøi chính 
hôïp nhaát cuûa Ngaân haøng Thöông maïi Coå phaàn Kyõ thöông Vieät Nam vaø caùc coâng ty con taïi ngaøy 31 thaùng 12 naêm 2011, keát quaû hoaït ñoäng 
kinh doanh hôïp nhaát vaø löu chuyeån tieàn teä hôïp nhaát cho naêm keát thuùc cuøng ngaøy, phuø hôïp vôùi caùc Chuaån möïc Keá toaùn Vieät Nam, Heä thoáng 
Keá toaùn Vieät Nam aùp duïng cho caùc Toå chöùc tín duïng do Ngaân haøng Nhaø nöôùc Vieät Nam ban haønh vaø caùc quy ñònh phaùp lyù coù lieân quan.

Coâng ty TNHH KPMG
Vieät Nam
Giaáy Chöùng nhaän Ñaàu tö soá: 011043000345
Baùo caùo kieåm toaùn soá: 11-02-272/2

Nguyeãn Thuøy Döông Nguyeãn Minh Hieáu
Chöùng chæ kieåm toaùn vieân soá 0893/KTV Chöùng chæ kieåm toaùn vieân soá N.1572/KTV 
Phoù Toång Giaùm ñoác  
Haø Noäi, 22/03/2012

KPMG Limited
16th Floor, Pacific Place
83B Ly Thuong Kiet Street
Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi
The Socialist Republic of Vietnam

Telephone + 84 (4) 3946 1600
Fax + 84 (4) 3946 1601
Internet www.kpmg.com

BAÙO CAÙO KIEÅM TOAÙN ÑOÄC LAÄP

Nguyen Minh hieu
CPA No. N.1572/KTV

tran Dinh Vinh
CPA No. 0339/KTV

Deputy General Director 

Hanoi, 28 March 2013

KpMg Limited
46th Floor, Keangnam Hanoi Landmark Tower 
72 Building, Plot E6, Pham Hung Street,
Me Tri, Tu Liem, Hanoi city
The Socialist Republic of Vietnam

Telephone + 84 (4) 3946 1600
Fax + 84 (4) 3946 1601
Internet www.kpmg.com.vn

INDepeNDeNt AUDItORS’ RepORt 

To the Shareholders

VIetNAM pROSpeRItY JOINt StOCK COMMeRCIAL BANK

Scope

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank (“the 
Bank”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “VPBank”) as of 31 December 2012, the related consolidated statements 
of income and cash flows for the year then ended and the explanatory notes thereto which were authorised for issue by the 
Bank’s Board of Management on 28 March 2013 (“the consolidated financial statements”). The consolidated financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s Board of Management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.  
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Bank’s Board of 
Management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of VPBank 
as of 31 December 2012 and of its consolidated results of operations and  its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended, 
in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for credit institutions stipulated by 
the State Bank of Vietnam and the relevant statutory requirements.

KpMg Limited Vietnam 
Investment Certificate No: 011043000345
Audit Report No.: 12-02-108/2
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Note 31/12/2012 
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

A ASSetS

I Cash and gold on hand 4 799,402 1,020,923

II Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam 5 1,372,667 522,364

III Balances with and loans to other credit institutions 6 26,760,927 22,961,234

1 Deposits with other credit institutions  17,317,365 22,560,512

2 Loans to other credit institutions 9,498,221 400,722

3 Allowance for loans to other credit institutions (54,659) -

IV Securities held for trading 7 1,345,840 1,908,205

1 Securities held for trading 1,366,615 1,925,630

2
Allowance for diminution in the value of securities held for 
trading 

(20,775) (17,425)

V Derivatives and other financial assets 8 57,471 -

VI Loans and advances to customers 36,523,123 28,869,470

1 Loans and advances to customers 9 36,903,305 29,183,643

2 Allowance for loans and advances to customers 10 (380,182) (314,173)

VII Investment securities 11 22,254,016 19,018,216

1 Available for sale securities  22,263,016 19,018,216

3 Allowance for diminution in the value of investment securities (9,000) -

VIII Long-term investments 12 67,338 122,812

4 Other long-term investments 67,811 123,285

5 Provision for long-term investment (473) (473)

IX Fixed assets 458,197 370,704

1 Tangible fixed assets 13 251,800 214,769

a Cost 529,352 436,934

b Accumulated depreciation (277,552) (222,165)

2 Intangible fixed assets 14 176,840 155,935

a Cost 249,222 208,589

b Accumulated amortisation (72,382) (52,654)

3 Investment property 15 29,557 -

a Cost 29,916 -

b Accumulated depreciation (359) -

XI Other assets 12,937,294 8,024,019

1 Receivables 16(a) 10,130,725 5,844,602

2 Accrued interest and fee receivable 16(b) 2,454,983 1,839,688

3 Deferred tax assets 5,634 39

4 Other assets 16(c) 438,350 351,938

5 Allowance for other on-balance sheet assets 16(d) (92,398) (12,248)

total assets 102,576,275 82,817,947

Consolidated balance sheet 
as at 31 December 2012 

Form B02/TCTD-HN
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Note 31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

B LIABILItIeS AND ShARehOLDeRS’ eQUItY

Liabilities

I
Amounts due to the government and the State Bank 
of Vietnam

17 1,371,572 917,127

II Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions 18 25,655,717 25,587,591

1 Deposits from other credit institutions 15,542,886 25,587,591

2 Borrowings from other credit institutions 10,112,831 -

III Deposits from customers 19 59,514,141 29,412,135

IV Derivatives and other financial liabilities 8 - 2,541

V Other borrowed and entrusted funds 20 64,540 100,182

VI Valuable papers issued 21 4,766,100 15,042,115

VII Other liabilities 4,567,188 5,760,011

1 Accrued interest and fee payables 22(a) 1,186,701 1,125,997

3 Other liabilities 22(b) 3,366,249 4,617,916

4 Provision for off-balance sheet commitments 22(c) 14,238 16,098

total liabilities 95,939,258 76,821,702

Shareholders’ equity

VIII Capital and reserves 23 6,637,017 5,996,245

1 Capital 5,771,369 5,051,369

a Share capital 5,770,000 5,050,000

c Share premium 1,369 1,369

2 Reserves 233,031 151,380

5 Retained earnings 632,617 793,496

total Shareholders’ equity 6,637,017 5,996,245

total liabilities and Shareholders’ equity 102,576,275 82,817,947

Consolidated balance sheet 
as at 31 December 2012 (continued) 
Form B02/TCTD-HN
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Note 31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Off-balance sheet items

I Contingent liabilities

1 Borrowing guarantees - 546

2 Letters of credit 799,286 133,159

3 Other guarantees 2,036,303 1,822,743

II Other commitments

1 Conditional undrawn loan commitments 9,990,054 5,761,985

Consolidated balance sheet 
as at 31 December 2012 (continued) 

Form B02/TCTD-HN

Nguyen thi thu hang
Chief Accountant

Prepared by:

Luu thi thao
Deputy Chief  Executive Officer

cum. Chief Financial Officer

Approved by:

Nguyen Duc Vinh
Chief  Executive Officer

Hanoi, 28 March 2013
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Luu thi thao
Deputy Chief  Executive Officer

cum. Chief Financial Officer

Approved by:

Nguyen Duc Vinh
Chief  Executive Officer

Hanoi, 28 March 2013

Note 2012
VND million

2011
VND million

(restated)

1 Interest and similar income 24 10,340,939 9,539,693

2 Interest and similar expenses 24 (7,373,778) (7,494,584)

I Net interest income 24 2,967,161 2,045,109

3 Fee and commission income 25 671,852 844,608

4 Fee and commission expenses 25 (401,035) (437,276)

II Net fee and commission income 25 270,817 407,332

III
Net (loss)/gain from trading of foreign 
currencies and gold

(117,164) 12,964

IV
Net gain from trading of securities held 
for trading

26 73,913 48,385

V Net loss from investment securities 27 (176,112) (26,316)

5 Other income 28 121,668  36,143

6 Other expenses (23,953) (12,437)

VI Net other income 97,715 23,706

VII Income from investments in other entities 17,092 4,144

VIII Operating expenses 29 (1,880,776) (1,302,340)

IX
Operating profit before allowance and 
provision expenses 

1,252,646 1,212,984

X Allowance and provision expenses 30 (399,914) (148,729)

XI profit before tax 852,732 1,064,255

7 Income tax expense - current 31 (214,933) (264,606)

8 Income tax expense - deferred 31 5,595 39

XII total income tax expense 31 (209,338) (264,567)

XIII Net profit after tax 643,394 799,688

XV Basic earnings per share (VND/share) 32 1,115 1,386

Consolidated statement of income 
for the year ended 31 December 2012
Form B03/TCTD-HN
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Consolidated statement of cash flows 
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Form B04/TCTD-HN

2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Cash flows from operating activities

01 Interest and similar income received 9,725,669 8,481,452

02 Interest and similar expenses paid (7,312,366) (7,004,602)

03 Fee and commission income received 270,084 407,332

04 Net (paid)/ receipts from foreign currencies and gold trading activities (117,164) 12,964

05 Net (loss)/gain from securities trading activities (89,849) 6,180

06 Other income received 97,298 23,706

07 Operating and salary expenses payments (1,793,885) (1,027,282)

08 Income tax paid (256,026) (221,301)

Net cash inflows from operating activities before changes in 
operating assets and liabilities

523,761 678,449

Changes in operating assets

09 Balance with and loans to other credit institutions (2,634,633) (3,540,538)

10 Securities held for trading and investment securities (2,685,785) (7,361,331)

11 Derivatives and other financial instruments (57,471) 156

12 Loans and advances to customers (7,719,662) (3,859,908)

13 Utilisation of provision for loans and advances, securities, 
long term investments

(281,106) (53,893)

14 Other assets (4,342,126) 1,182,961

Changes in operating liabilities

15 Amounts due to the Government and SBV 454,445 (299,254)

16 Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions 68,126 11,805,630

17 Deposits from customers 30,102,006 5,442,490

18 Valuable papers issued (10,276,015) 5,410,468

19 Other borrowed and entrusted funds (35,642) (19,612)

20 Derivatives and other financial liabilities (2,541) 2,541

21 Other liabilities (1,170,365) (880,450)

22 Utilisation of reserves (6) (32)

I Net cash inflows from operating activities 1,942,986 8,507,677
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2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Cash flows from investing activities

01 Payments for purchases of fixed assets (167,468) (139,608)

02 Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 417 50,694

07 Proceeds from investments in other entities 55,474 25,295

09 Dividends received from long-term investments 17,092 4,144

II Net cash outflows from investing activities (94,485) (59,475)

IV Net increase in cash flows for the  year 1,848,501 8,448,202

V Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 16,139,484 7,691,282

VI Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (note 33) 17,987,985 16,139,484

NON-CASh INVeStINg AND FINANCINg ACtIVItIeS

2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Bonus shares 40,000 630,000

Dividend shares 680,000 420,000

Consolidated statement of cash flows 
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)
Form B04/TCTD-HN

Nguyen thi thu hang
Chief Accountant

Prepared by:

Luu thi thao
Deputy Chief  Executive Officer

cum. Chief Financial Officer

Approved by:

Nguyen Duc Vinh
Chief  Executive Officer

Hanoi, 28 March 2013
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Form B05/TCTD-HN

1. Reporting entity

Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank (herein 
referred to as “the Bank”) is a joint stock bank incorporated 
and registered in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.

The Bank was established pursuant to the Banking License 
No. 0042/NH-GP dated 12 August 1993 issued by the State 
Bank of Vietnam (“the SBV”) and the Business Registration 
Certificate No. 0100233583 dated 8 September 1993 issued 
by Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment. The Bank 
entered into operation on 12 August 1993 with an operation 
period of 99 years.  

The Bank has been established to provide banking services 
including mobilizing and receiving short, medium and long-
term deposits from organizations and individuals; mak-

ing short, medium and long-term loans and advances to 
organizations and individuals based on the nature and capa-
bility of the Bank’s sources of capital; also including foreign 
exchange transactions, international trade finance services, 
discount of commercial papers, bonds and other valuable 
papers, and providing other banking services allowed by the 
State Bank of Vietnam.

As at 31 December 2012, the Bank’s share capital is 
VND5,770 billion. Face value per share is VND10,000.

As at 31 December 2012, the Bank has one (1) Head Office, 
one (1) operation centre, thirty eight (38) branches, one 
hundred and sixty-six (166) transaction offices and savings 
funds nationwide. As at 31 December 2012, the Bank had 
two (2) subsidiaries as follows:

Subsidiaries Operating licence Nature of 
Business

% owned by
the Bank

VPBank Securities Company Limited 
(VPBS)

0104000621
Dated 28 November 2006 issued 
by Hanoi Department of Planning 
and Investment.

Securities 
activities

100%

VPBank Asset Management Company 
Limited (VP AMC)

0100233583-012
Dated 7 May 2012 granted by 
Hanoi Department of Planning and 
Investment.

Asset and 
Liabilities  
management

100%

2. Basis of financial statement preparation 

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, 
the Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions 
issued by the State Bank of Vietnam, and relevant statutory 
requirements.

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements, except for the 
consolidated statement of cash flows, are prepared on 
the accruals basis using the historical cost concept.  The 
consolidated statement of cash flows is prepared using 
the direct method. The Bank has consistently applied the 
accounting policies in the year and consistently applied 
the accounting policies in previous years, except for the 

issue disclosed in Note 3(f).

(c) Annual accounting period

The fiscal year of the Bank is from 1 January to 31 December.

(d) Accounting currency

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
and presented in Vietnamese Dong rounded to the nearest 
million (“VND million”).

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies have been 
adopted by the Bank in the preparation of these consolidated 
financial statements.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The Bank and its subsidiaries are hereinafter collectively called “VPBank”. As at 31 December 2012, VPBank had 4,326 
employees (31 December 2011: 3,548 employees).

These notes form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with, the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Bank. Control 
exists when the Bank has the power to govern the financial 
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits 
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting 
rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account. 
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in 
the consolidated financial statements from the effective 
date of control until the date the control ceases.

(ii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

Inter-company balances, transactions and unrealised gains 
on transactions between those subsidiaries and the Bank 
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial 
statements. Unrealised losses also eliminated unless 
transactions provide evidence of an impairment of the asset 
transferred. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been 
changed when necessary to ensure the consistency with the 
policies adopted by the Bank.

(b) Foreign currency transactions

The Bank maintains an accounting system that records all 
transactions in original currencies. Monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in currencies other than VND are 
translated into VND at the Bank’s exchange rates prevailing 
on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary foreign currency 
assets and liabilities are translated into VND using the 
exchange rate effective at the date of the transaction.  Income 
and expenses transactions incurred in foreign currencies 
are translated into VND using exchange rates on the dates 
of the transactions in the consolidated statement of income.

Translation adjustment arising from dealing activities as 
at the balance sheet date are recorded in the consolidated 
statement of income.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, gold on 
hand, balances with the SBV, other valuable papers which 
are eligible for discount and balances with other credit 
institutions with original terms to maturity not exceeding 
three months. 

Gold is revaluated at the balance sheet date and the 
differences arising on revaluation are recorded in the 
consolidated statement of income.   

(d) trading securities

(i) Classification and recognition

Trading securities include debt or equity securities and other 
securities that VPBank purchases and intends to sell in the 
short term for earnings from capital appreciation.

(ii) Measurement

Securities held for trading are initially recognised at cost at 
date of the transaction. They are subsequently measured at 
the lower of cost and market value. Gains or losses from the 
disposal of securities held for trading are recognised in the 
consolidated statement of income.

(e) Financial investments

(i) Investment securities

Investment securities are classified into two categories: 
available for sale investment securities and held to 
maturity investment securities. VPBank classifies investment 
securities at the purchase date. In accordance with Official 
Letter 2601/NHNN-TCKT dated 14 April 2009 issued by the 
State Bank of Vietnam, VPBank is allowed to reclassify its 
investment securities once after their purchase date.

Available-for-sale investment securities are  debt securities, 
equity securities or other securities, which are held for an 
indefinite period and may be sold at any time.   

Held-to-maturity investment securities are debt securities 
with fixed or determinable payment and fixed maturities 
where VPBank’s management has the positive intention and 
ability to hold until maturity.

Investment securities being debt securities are stated at 
cost including trading fee and other directly attributable 
costs. Then they are recognized at amortised cost (affected 
by premium/discount amortisation) less allowance for dimi-
nution in the value of investment. Premium and discount 
arising from purchases of debt securities are amortised 
to the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line 
basis over the period from acquisition date to maturity date.

Available-for-sale investments securities being equity 
securities are stated at cost; and are subsequently recognized 
at the lower of the cost and market value with the difference 
recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

(ii) Capital contribution and long-term investments

Other long-term investments 

Other long term investments include equity securities, other 
long term capital contributions whose  holding, withdrawing or 
paying term is for more than 1 year (in addition to investment 
securities).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Form B05/TCTD-HN

These investments are initially stated at cost of acquisition, 
then less allowance for diminution in value of investments. 
Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

(iii) Allowance for diminution in the value of financial investments

In accordance with Official Letter 7459/NHNN-TCKT issued 
by the State Bank of Vietnam on 30 June 2006, when the 
financial statements are prepared, if the market value of 
held-for-trading and available for sale securities is lower than 
their book value or there is indication of long-term diminution 
in the value of investments for held-to-maturity securities, 
VPBank makes allowance for each investment in securities 
in accordance with current requirements of allowance for 
diminution in the value of securities as requirement in accord-
ance with Circular No. 228/2009/TT-BTC dated 7 December 
2009 issued by Ministry of Finance (“Circular 228”). In case 
of lacking or unidentified the trading price data, unlisted 
securities are stated at cost.

In accordance with Circular 228, allowance for diminution in 
the value of investments in economic entities (such as limited 
liability companies, joint stock companies, partnerships, joint 
ventures and other long-term investments), are required if 
the economic entities suffer losses (except when the loss 
was anticipated in their business plan before the date of 
investment).

In accordance with Circular 34/2011/TT-BTC issued by the 
Ministry of Finance (“MoF”) on 14 March 2011, VPBank calculates 

risk allowance for financial investments in accordance with 
the requirements of Circular 228. 

(f) Loans and advances to customers and other credit 
institutions

Loans and advances to customers and other credit 
institutions are stated at the amount of the outstanding 
principal less any allowance for credit risk.

Short-term loans are those with a repayment date within 
one year of the loan disbursement date. Medium-term 
loans are those with a repayment date between one to five 
years of the loan disbursement date. Long-term loans are 
those with a repayment date of more than five years from 
the loan disbursement date.

Allowance for credit risk comprises a general allowance and 
a specific allowance, which are made at least once a quarter.

Decision No. 493/2005/QD-NHNN dated 22 April 2005 issued 
by State Bank of Vietnam (“Decision No.493”), which was 
amended and supplemented by Decision No. 18/2007/ QD-
NHNN dated 25 April 2007 issued by State Bank of Vietnam 
(“Decision 18”), requires specific allowance at the balance 
sheet date (31 December) to be calculated on the basis of 
outstanding principal less discounted value of collaterals 
assets multiplied by the allowance rate specified for each 
loan group, all as at 30 November, which is provided below:

Loan group Rate of allowance

Group 1 – Current 0%

Group 2 – Special mention 5%

Group 3 – Substandard 20%

Group 4 – Doubtful 50%

Group 5 – Loss 100%

The classification of loan groups as well as the basis for 
determination of the value and the discounted value for each 
type of collateral is specified in Decision 493 and Decision 18.

Effective from 23 April 2012, the Bank adopted Decision 
No.780/QD-NHNN dated 23 April 2012 issued by State Bank 
of Vietnam (“Decision 780”) regarding the classification of 
loans being rescheduled or having the repayment terms 
extended under which such loans are classified in the same 
loan groups as before rescheduling or having the repayment 
terms extended if the borrower are assessed as having 
positive business potential and ability to repay well these 

loans. The Bank applied this change in accounting policy 
prospectively. The effect of this change is provided in Note 9.    

General allowance at the balance sheet date (31 December) 
is calculated at 0.75% of outstanding loans and advances to 
customers and  other credit institutions that are classified 
into Group 1 to Group 4 as at 30 November.

In accordance with Decision 493, loans and advances to 
customers and credit institutions are written off against 
the allowance when they have been classified to Group 5 or 
when the borrowers have declared bankruptcy or dissolved 
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(for borrowers being organisations or enterprises), or when 
the borrowers have been dead or missing (for borrowers 
being individuals).

(g) provision for off-balance sheet items 

Allowance for off-balance sheet items comprises a general 
allowance and a specific allowance and is made at least once 
a quarter.

In accordance with Decision 18, VPBank is required to 
classify guarantees, acceptances, loan commitments 
which are irrevocable and unconditional and have a 
specific performance date (herein referred to as 
“off-balance sheet commitments”) for these customers  
into 5 groups and make specific allowances accordingly 
using the method provided in Note 3(f).    

Besides, in accordance with Decision 493, general provision 
as at 31 December is calculated at 0.75% of total outstanding 
off-balance sheet commitments as at 30 November.

(h) tangible fixed assets

(i) Cost

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible fixed asset 
comprises its purchase price, including import duties and 
non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable 
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and 
location for its intended use, and the cost of dismantling 
and removing the asset and restoring the site on which 
they are located.  Expenditure incurred after the tangible 
fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs 
and maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally charged 
to the consolidated statement of income in the year in 
which the costs are incurred.  In situations where it can be 
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in 
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be 
obtained from the use of an item of tangible fixed assets 
beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, 
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of 
tangible fixed assets.

(ii) Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of items of tangible fixed assets.  The 
estimated useful lives are as follows:

• Buildings and structures                40 years

• Machineries and equipment         4 - 10 years

• Motor vehicles                                         8 years

• Office equipment                   5 years

• Others                              4 - 7 years

(i) Intangible fixed assets

(i) Land use rights

Indefinite term land use rights 

Indefinite term land use rights are stated at cost and are not 
amortised.  The initial cost of a land use right comprises its 
purchase price and any directly attributable costs incurred in 
conjunction with securing the land use right.

(ii) Software

The cost of acquiring new software, which is not an integral 
part of the related hardware, is capitalised and accounted for 
as an intangible asset.  Software costs are amortised on a 
straight-line basis from 3 - 8 years.

(j) Investment property

(i) Cost

Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation. The initial cost of an investment property 
comprises its purchase price, cost of land use rights and 
any directly attributable expenditures of bringing the 
property to the condition necessary for it to be capable 
of operating in the manner intended by management. 
Expenditure incurred after investment property has been 
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is 
charged to the consolidated statement of income in the 
year in which the expenditure is incurred. In situations 
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure 
has resulted in future economic benefits in excess of the 
originally assessed standard of performance of the 
existing investment property, the expenditure is capitalised 
as an additional cost of investment property.

(ii) Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over 
the estimated useful lives of investment property. The 
estimated useful lives are as follows:

• Buildings and structures 3 - 21 years

• Land use right  indefinite

(k) Other receivables

Receivables, other than loans to customers, are initially 
recorded at cost and less allowance for doubtful receivables. 

Other receivables are subject to review for allowance for 
doubtful receivables based on overdue periods of receivables 
or estimated loss arising from undue debts of which the 
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indebted economic organisations are bankrupt or undergoing 
dissolution procedures; debtors are missing, have fled, are 
prosecuted, detained or tried by law enforcement bodies, are 
serving sentences or have died. Increases or decreases to 
the provision balance are recorded in operating expenses in 

the consolidated income statement.

VPBank makes allowance for doubtful receivables in 
accordance with Circular 228 at the following, allowance 
rates over overdue receivables:

Overdue period Rate of allowance

From six (06) months to less than one (01) year 30%

From one (01) year to less than two (02) years 50%

From two (02) years to less than three (03) years 70%

Over three (03) years 100%

(l) provision  

A provision other than those described in Notes 3(e), 3(f), 
3(g) and 3(l) is recognised if, as a result of a past event, 
VPBank has a present legal or constructive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an 
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation.  Provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the liability.

(m) provision for severance allowance

Under the Vietnamese Labour Code, when employees who 
have worked for 12 months or more (“eligible employees”) 
voluntarily terminates their labour contract, the employer is 
required to pay the eligible employees severance allowance 
calculated based on years of service and employees’ 
compensation at termination. 

Pursuant to Law on Social Insurance, effective from 1 Janu-
ary 2009, VPBank and its employees are required to contrib-
ute to an unemployment insurance fund managed by the Vi-
etnam Social Insurance Agency.  The contribution to be paid 
by each party is calculated at 1% of the lower of the employ-
ees’ basic salary and 20 times of the general minimum sal-
ary level as specified by the Government from time to time.  
With the implementation of the unemployment insurance 
scheme, VPBank is no longer required to provide severance 

allowance for the service period after 1 January 2009.  
However, severance allowance to be paid to existing 
eligible employees as of 31 December 2008 will be 
determined based on the eligible employees’ years of 
service as of 31 December 2008 and their average salary for 
the six-month period prior to the termination date.

(n) Other payables

Other payables are stated at their cost.

(o) Share capital

(i) Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental 
costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares 
are recognised as a deduction from equity.

(ii) Share premium

On receipt of capital from shareholders, the difference 
between the issue price and the par value of the shares is 
credited to share premium account in equity.

(p) Reserves and funds

the Bank

The Bank is required to make the following allocations before 
distribution of profits:

Annual allocation Maximum balance

Reserve to supplement share capital 5% of profit after tax Share capital

Financial reserve 10% of profit after tax 25% of share capital
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Bonus and welfare funds are allocated from profit after 
tax at resolution by the shareholders in the Annual General 
Meeting and are used primarily to make payments to the 
Bank’s employees.  These funds are not required by law and 
are fully distributable.

Other equity funds are allocated from profit after tax. The 
allocation from profit after tax and the utilisation of the other 
equity funds are approved by the shareholders in the Annual 
General Meeting.  These funds are not required by law and 
are fully distributable.

the subsidiaries

- VPBank Asset Management Company Limited 

According to Circular 27/2002/TT-BTC dated 22 March 
2002 issued by the Ministry of Finance, asset management 
companies are required to make reserves and other funds 
from profit after tax based on the rates that the Bank 
currently applies.

- VPBank Securities Company Limited

According to Circular 11/2000/TT-BTC dated 1 February 
2000, issued by the Ministry of Finance, securities 
companies are required to make reserves and other funds 
from profit after tax based on the following rates:

The allocation from profit after tax will be made upon 
approval of Annual General Meeting. 

(q) Revenue recognition

(i) Interest income 

Interest income is recognised in the consolidated statement 

of income on an accruals basis, except for uncollected 

interest on loans classified in Group 2 to Group 5 as defined in 

Note 3(f) which is recognised upon receipt.

(ii) Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are recognized in the consolidated 

statement of income on an accrual basis.  

(iii) Dividend income

Dividends receivable in cash are recognized in the 

consolidated statement of income when VPBank’s right 

to receive payment is established.

In accordance with Circular No. 244/2009/TT-BTC dated 

31 December 2009, effective from 1 January 2010, issued 

by the Ministry of Finance, dividend received in the form of 

shares and shares distributed from retained earnings are 

recognized as an increase in the number of shares, not 

recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

(r) Interest expenses

Interest expenses are recognised in the consolidated 
statement of income on an accrual basis. 

(s) Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in 
the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are 
recognised in the consolidated statement of income as an 
integral part of the total lease expense.

(t) taxation 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises 
current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the 
consolidated statement of income. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income 
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted 
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable 
in respect of previous year.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, 
for temporary differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 
the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of 
deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of 

Annual allocation Maximum balance

Reserve to supplement chartered capital 5% of profit after tax 10% of chartered capital

Financial reserve 5% of profit after tax 10% of chartered capital
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realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets 
and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantially 
enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that 
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the asset can be utilised.  Deferred tax assets 
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
the related tax benefit will be realised.

(u) Basic earnings per share

VPBank presents basic earnings per share (EPS) for its 
ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the 
profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders 
of VPBank by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the year.

(v) Segment reporting  

A segment is a distinguishable component of VPBank that 
is engaged either in providing related products or services 
(business segment), or in providing products or services 
within a particular economic environment (geographical 
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are 
different from those of other segments. VPBank’s primary 
format for segment reporting is based on geographical 
segments. VPBank’s secondary format for segment 
reporting is based on business segments.

(w) Off-balance sheet items

(i) Foreign exchange contracts

VPBank enters into foreign exchange forwards and swaps 
which enable customers to transfer, modify or reduce their 
foreign exchange or other market risks and also trades these 
products for its own account.

Forward contracts are commitments to either purchase 
or sell a designated currency at a specific future date for 
a specific exchange rate and are settled in cash.  Forward 
contracts are recorded at nominal value on the balance sheet 
at the transaction date and are subsequently revaluated at 
exchange rate at the year end.  Realised or unrealised gain or 
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Swap contracts are commitments to settle in cash at a 
future date based on differentials between specified 
exchange rates, as applied to a notional principal amount.  

Swap contracts are subsequently revaluated on the balance 
sheet date; the difference on revaluation is recognised in the 
consolidated statement of income.

(ii) Commitments and contingent liabilities

VPBank has outstanding credit commitments. These commit-
ments are approved and unutilised loans and overdraft facili-
ties. VPBank also provides financial guarantees and letters of 
credit to guarantee the performance of customers to third 
parties.  Many of the contingent liabilities and commitments 
will expire without any advanced payment, in whole or in part. 
Therefore these commitments and contingent liabilities do 
not represent expected future cash flows.

(x) Classification of financial assets and liabilities for 
disclosure purpose

(i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

In accordance with Circular 210/2009/TT-BTC (“Circular 
210”), financial assets are classified into the following 
categories for disclosure purpose in the consolidated 
financial statements:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include 
financial asset held for trading and derivatives. A financial 
asset is classified as held for trading if:  

• It is purchased mainly for the purpose of resale in a short 
term; or

• There is evidence that such instrument is traded for the 
purpose of gaining short-term profits.

Held-to-maturity investments:

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial 
assets with fixed or identifiable payments and fixed 
maturity periods which VPBank has the intent and ability 
to hold until maturity, with the exceptions of:

• Financial assets that, upon initial recognition, were 
categorized as such recognized at fair value through profit 
or loss statements;

• Financial assets already categorized as available for sale; 

• Financial assets that meet the definitions of loans and 
receivables.
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Loans and receivables:

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets 
with fixed or identifiable payments and not listed on the 
market, with the exceptions of:

• Financial assets that, upon initial recognition, were 
categorized as such recognized at fair value through 
profit or loss statements;

• The amounts categorised by VPBank as available for sale 
upon initial recognition; or

• The amounts whose holders cannot recover most of the 
initial investment value not due to credit quality impairment 
and which are categorised as available for sale.

Available-for-sale investments:

Available-for-sale assets are non-derivative financial 
assets that are designated as available for sale or are not 
classified as:

• Loans and receivables;

• Held-to-maturity investments;

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

In accordance with Circular 210, financial liabilities are 
classified into the following categories for disclosure 
purpose in the consolidated financial statements:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities recognised at fair value through profit or 
loss include derivative financial liabilities. 

Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost:

Financial liabilities which are not recognised at fair value 
through profit or loss are classified into financial liabilities at 
amortised cost. 

The classification of financial assets and financial liabilities 
as mentioned above is only for the disclosure purpose in the 
consolidated financial statements. This classification does 
not impact the recognition, measurement or classification in 
VPBank’s consolidated balance sheet. 

(ii) Measurement and disclosures of fair value

In accordance with Circular 210, VPBank discloses fair 
value of its financial assets and financial liabilities to 
compare with the carrying value.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, 
or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties 
in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date. 

When available, VPBank measures the fair value of an 
instrument using quoted prices in an active market for 
that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted 
prices are readily and regularly available and represent 
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an 
arm’s length basis.
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4. Cash and gold on hand 

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Cash on hand in VND 357,276 446,171

Cash on hand in foreign currencies 281,150 195,575

Valuable papers in foreign currencies 107 167

Gold on hand 160,869 379,010

799,402 1,020,923

5. Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam 
These consist of a compulsory reserve requirement (“CRR”) for liquidity and a current account.

Under the State Bank of Vietnam’s regulations on the 
compulsory reserve, banks are permitted to maintain a 
floating balance for CRR.

The monthly average balance of the current account 
must not be less than the monthly balance of compulsory 

reserves. The amount of monthly compulsory reserve is 
calculated by the preceding month average balances of 
deposits multiplied with respective CRR rates. 

The effective CRR rates applied at the year end were as 
follows:

Deposits in scope
31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Preceding month’s average balances of:

Deposits in foreign currencies with term of less than 12 months 8% 8%

Deposits in foreign currencies with term of and more than 
12 months  

6% 6%

Deposits in VND with term of less than 12 months 3% 3%

Deposits in VND with term of and more than 12 months 1% 1%

Effective year-end annual interest rates were as follows:

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Current account and compulsory reserve 1,372,667 522,364

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Deposits in VND

Within the compulsory reserve requirement 1.2% 1.2%

Exceeding the compulsory reserve requirement 0% 0%

Deposits in USD

Within the compulsory reserve requirement 0% 0%

Exceeding the compulsory reserve requirement 0.05% 0.05%

CRR rates
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6. Balances with and loans to other credit institutions 

2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Opening balance - -

Allowance made during the year (Note 30) 54,659 -

Closing balance 54,659 -

(i) Movements in general allowance for loans to other credit institutions were as follows:

Effective year-end annual interest rates were as follows:

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Current accounts 11,060,515 11,736,094

     Current accounts in VND 8,043,991 10,155,341

     Current accounts in foreign currencies 3,016,524 1,580,753

term deposits 6,256,850 10,824,418

     Term deposits in VND 4,941,640 9,422,662

     Term deposits in foreign currencies 1,315,210 1,401,756

Loans 9,443,562 400,722

     Loans in VND 9,124,478 400,722

     Loans in foreign currencies 373,743 -

     General allowance for loans to other credit institutions (i) (54,659) -

26,760,927 22,961,234

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Term deposits in VND 9% - 13.5% 8% - 27%

Term deposits in foreign currencies 2.5% - 3.5% 0.01% - 10%

Loans in VND 6.5% - 15% 13.1% - 25.6%

Loans in foreign currencies 0.1% - 2.5% -
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Listing status of securities held for trading were as follows:

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Debt securities 1,268,805 1,831,627

Unlisted 1,268,805 1,831,627

equity securities 97,810 94,003

Listed 37,333 33,533

Unlisted 60,477 60,470

1,366,615 1,925,630

(i) Allowance for diminution in the value of securities held for trading were as follows:

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Debt securities 1,268,805 1,831,627

Government bonds 350,512 408,421

Bonds issued by local credit institutions 126,556 10,974

Bonds issued by local economic entities 791,737 1,412,232

equity securities 97,810 94,003

Shares issued by local economic entities 97,810 94,003

1,366,615 1,925,630

Allowance for diminution in the value of 
securities held for trading (i)

(20,775) (17,425)

1.345.840 1.908.205

2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Opening balance 17,425 26,049

Allowance made during the year (Note 26) 19,942 -

Reversal of allowance during the year (Note 26) (16,592) (8,624)

Closing balance 20,775 17,425

7. Securities held for trading
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9. Loans and advances to customers 

(*) Loans under sponsored funds and trusted funds include loans supported by trusted funds from national development 
assistance programs of Ministry of Finance. VPBank directly received the loans from leading bank which is Joint Stock 
Commercial Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam (“BIDV”). VPBank receives the funds, manages and makes 
use of these loans and bears all risks relating to the loans. In case of the loan become insolvent, VPBank is responsible to 
repay BIDV as committed in the signed contract (Note 20).

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Loans to local economic entities and individuals 36,820,307 29,091,542

Treasury bills discounts 7,083 -

Payment on behalf of customers 2,337 1,412

Loans financed by sponsored, trusted funds (*) 65,334 85,835

Loans to foreign economic entities and individuals 8,244 4,854

36,903,305 29,183,643

8. Derivatives and other financial assets/(liabilities)

total contract nominal value 
(at foreign exchange rate at 

balance sheet date)

VND million
Assets

VND million
Liabilities

VND million
Net value

VND million

As at 31 December 2012

Derivatives financial instrument 10,812,268   4,245,393 (4,187,922) 57,471

Foreign exchange forward contracts 5,716,778 2,848,259 (2,829,820) 18,439

Foreign exchange swap contracts 5,095,490 1,397,134   (1,358,102) 39,032

As at 31 December 2011

Derivatives financial instrument 225,486   485,105 (487,646) (2,541)

Foreign exchange forward contracts 12,623   222,238 (223,479) (1,241)

Foreign exchange swap contracts 212,863   262,867 (264,167) (1,300)

total carrying value 
(at foreign  exchange rate 

at balance sheet date)
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Loan portfolio by loan group was as follows:

31/12/2012 
VND million

%
31/12/2011
VND million

%

Current 32,969,671 89.34% 26,305,198 90.14%

Special mention 2,930,347 7.94% 2,346,075 8.04%

Substandard 257,505 0.70% 274,557 0.94%

Doubtful 554,257 1.50% 68,113 0.23%

Loss 191,525 0.52% 189,700 0.65%

36,903,305 100% 29,183,643 100%

The above classification of loan portfolio is made in accordance with Decision 493 and Decision 18 except for those loans are 
applied Decision 780 (Note 3(f)). Outstanding loan balances of customers whom Decision 780 was applied as at 31 December 
2012 were as follows:

Loan portfolio by term was as follows:

31/12/2012
VND million

%
31/12/2011
VND million

%

Short term 22,745,669 61.64% 20,279,497 69.49%

Medium term 10,211,494 27.67% 5,707,593 19.56%

Long term 3,946,142 10.69% 3,196,553 10.95%

36,903,305 100% 29,183,643 100%

31/12/2012 
VND million

Loan balance retained in loan group 1 319,242

Loan balance retained in loan group 2 1,197,867

1,517,109
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Effective year-end annual interest rates were as follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Loans and advances in VND 8% - 18% 9% - 20.4%

Loans and advances in foreign currencies 2.3% - 7% 4% - 10%

Loan portfolio by type of borrowers was as follows:

Loan portfolio by industry sectors was as follows:

31/12/2012
VND million

%
31/12/2011
VND million

%

State-owned enterprises 1,273,255 3.46% 459,736 1.58%

Limited liability companies 9,129,350 24.74% 6,326,375 21.68%

Joint stock companies 8,038,951 21.78% 4,860,509 16.65%

Foreign invested companies 130,446 0.35% 16,192 0.05%

Private businesses 590,401 1.60% 574,215 1.97%

Individuals and others 17,740,902 48.07% 16,946,616 58.07%

36,903,305 100% 29,183,643 100%

31/12/2012
VND million

%
31/12/2011
VND million

%

Agriculture and forestry 1,006,350 2.73% 223,593 0.77%

Trading, manufacturing and processing 21,539,001 58.37% 24,486,359 83.90%

Construction 5,999,742 16.26% 2,118,103 7.26%

Warehousing, transportation,  and communications 1,145,692 3.10% 562,316 1.93%

Personal service activities and others 7,212,520 19.54% 1,793,272 6.14%

36,903,305 100% 29,183,643 100%
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Movements in specific allowance for loans and advances to customers were as follows:

2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Opening balance 101,469 53,732

Allowance made during the year (Note 30) 335,146 125,801

Reversal of allowance during the year (Note 30) (33,687) (24,171)

Utilization of provision (279,282) (53,893)

Closing balance 123,646 101,469

10. Allowance for loans and advances to customers 

Movements in general allowance for loans and advances to customers were as follows:

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

General allowance 256,536 212,704

Specific allowance 123,646 101,469

380,182 314,173

2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Opening balance 212,704 175,469

Allowance made during the year (Note 30) 78,738 43,267

Reversal of allowance during the year (Note 30) (33,082) (6,032)

Utilization of provision (1,824) -

Closing balance 256,536 212,704
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11. Investment securities

(i) The year-end term and interest of debt securities at the balance sheet date are as follows:

term Interest rate term Interest rate

Government bonds 2 years - 5 years 8.8% - 13.2% 2 years - 5 years 7.9% - 13.3%

Treasury bills 3 months 6.75% - 6.8% - -

Treasury notes 6 months - 1 year 8.15% - 8.5% - -

Bonds issued by local economic entities

     Bonds issued in VND 2 years - 5 years 10% - 18% 2 years - 5 years 12.5% - 24%

Bonds issued by local credit institutions

     Bonds issued in VND 2 years - 10 years 10% - 13% 6 months - 1 0 years 8.1% - 15.3%

     Bonds issued in USD 3 months 4% 1 year 3.2% - 4.9%

As at 31 December 2012, VPBank has pledged VND5,825,889 million of Government bonds (31 December 2011: VND884,888 
million) at the State Bank of Vietnam as collaterals for borrowings from the State Bank of Vietnam (Note 17).

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Available for sale securities

Debt securities (i)

Government bonds 6,127,692 1,362,028

Treasury bills 1,500,196 -

Treasury notes 1,240,000 -

Bonds issued by local economic entities 7,269,606 8,780,000

Bonds issued by local credit institutions 6,035,522 8,786,188

Equity securities 

Unlisted shares 90,000 90,000

22,263,016 19,018,216

Allowance for diminution in value of available for sale securities (ii) (9,000) -

22,254,016 19,018,216

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
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(ii) Movements in allowance for diminution in the value of available-for-sale securities were as follows:

12. Long-term investments 

(i) Other long-term investments - cost comprise:

(ii) Movements in allowance for diminution in the value of long term investment were as follows:

2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Opening balance - 6,896

Allowance made during the year (Note 27)  9,000 -

Reversal of allowance during the year (Note 27) - (6,896)

Closing balance 9,000 -

31/12/2012 
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Other long-term investments - cost (i) 67,811 123,285

Allowance for diminution in the value of long-term investment (ii) (473) (473)

67,338 122,812

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Investment in unlisted financial institutions 35,036 38,000

Investment in unlisted economic entities 32,775 85,285

67,811 123,285

2012 
VND million

2011
VND million

Opening balance 473 842

Reversal of allowance during the year (Note 27) - (369)

Closing balance 473 473
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13. tangible fixed assets 

For the year ended 
31/12/2012

Buildings and 
structures

VND  million

Machinery and 
equipment

VND  million

Motor 
vehicles

VND  million

Office 
equipment
VND  million

Others

VND  million

total

VND  million

Cost

Opening balance 66,058 51,855 81,350 143,594 94,077 436,934

Additions

     Purchases during 
    the year

785 12,921 30,619 34,814 18,359 97,498

     Other additions - 1,039 737 365 9,618 11,759

Decreases

     Disposals - (67) (499) (955) (872) (2,393)

     Other decreases (39) (1,602) (4,759) (2,311) (5,735) (14,446)

Closing balance 66,804 64,146 107,448 175,507 115,447 529,352

Accumulated 
depreciation

Opening balance 14,603 18,526 43,324 96,197 49,515 222,165

Charge for the year 2,213 7,844 14,661 13,563 22,231 60,512

Other additions 692 203 56 6,954 1,802 9,707

Decreases

     Disposals - (60) (316) (37) (796) (1,209)

     Other decreases (241) (477) (3,005) (869) (9,031) (13,623)

Closing balance 17,267 26,036 54,720 115,808 63,721 277,552

Net book value

Opening balance 51,455 33,329 38,026 47,397 44,562 214,769

Closing balance 49,537 38,110 52,728 59,699 51,726 251,800
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For the year ended 
31/12/2011

Buildings and 
structures

VND  million

Machinery and 
equipment

VND  million

Motor 
vehicles

VND  million

Office 
equipment
VND  million

Others

VND  million

total

VND  million

Cost

Opening balance 61,718 47,750 59,102 129,058 76,001 373,629

Additions

     Purchases during 
    the year

4,127 11,879 28,021 12,236 18,434 74,697

     Other additions 446 3,648 2,338 3,775 6,647 16,854

Decreases

     Disposals - (722) (681) (598) (1,136) (3,137)

     Other decreases (233) (10,700) (7,430) (877) (5,869) (25,109)

Closing balance 66,058 51,855 81,350 143,594 94,077 436,934

Accumulated 
depreciation

Opening balance 10,485 13,977 29,291 85,877 34,938 174,568

Charge for the year 2,430 4,570 15,700 9,882 12,528 45,110

Other additions 2,190 1,655 2,250 2,934 4,653 13,682

Decreases

     Disposals (290) (655) (472) (748) (712) (2,877)

     Other decreases (212) (1,021) (3,445) (1,748) (1,892) (8,318)

Closing balance 14,603 18,526 43,324 96,197 49,515 222,165

Net book value

Opening balance 51,233 33,773 29,811 43,181 41,063 199,061

Closing balance 51,455 33,329 38,026 47,397 44,562 214,769
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14. Intangible fixed assets 

For the year ended 
31/12/2012

Land use rights
VND million

Software
VND million

total
VND million

Cost

Opening balance 68,277 140,312  208,589 

Additions 21,855 18,199 40,054

Other increases 579 - 579

Closing balance 90,711 158,511 249,222

Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance 868 51,786  52,654  

Charge for the year - 19,706 19,706

Other increases 9 13 22

Closing balance 877 71,505 72,382

Net book value

Opening balance 67,409 88,526  155,935 

Closing balance 89,834 87,006 176,840

For the year ended 
31/12/2011

Land use rights
VND million

Software
VND million

total
VND million

Cost

Opening balance 55,906 130,181 186,087

Additions 12,371 52,540 64,911

Other decreases - (41,933) (41,933)

Written off - (476) (476) 

Closing balance 68,277 140,312 208,589

Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance 868 34,391 35,259

Charge for the year - 17,563 17,563

Other decreases - (2) (2)

Written off - (166) (166)

Closing balance 868 51,786 52,654

Net book value

Opening balance 55,038 95,790 150,828

Closing balance 67,409 88,526 155,935
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15. Investment property 

For the year ended 
31/12/2012

Land use rights
VND million

Buildings, structures
VND million

total
VND million

Cost

Opening balance - - -

New acquisitions 20,075 9,841 29,916

Closing balance 20,075 9,841 29,916

Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance - - -

Charge for the year - 359 359

Closing balance - 359 359

Net book value

Opening balance - - -

Closing balance 20,075 9,482 29,557

16. Other assets 
(a) Receivables

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Internal receivables

Advanced for operations 65,844 36,775

Advanced for salaries, per diem 2,926 718

Others 69,325 41,477

external receivables

Receivable from investor for securities trading 1,155,812 1,028,819

Receivable from securities trading activities 289,920 75,710

Receivable from securities co-investment contracts 34,690 168,109

Entrusted funds on fixed-income securities  (i) 2,194,150 2,562,550

Advanced to State Budget 11,088 15,421

Security, pledge, mortgage 219,390 83,773  

Receivables from the entrusted loan contract (Note 22 (b)) 197,400 -

Deposits for office rental 995,907 320,609

Deposits for office purchase 896,668 1,128,443

Other receivables 3,997,605 382,198

10,130,725 5,844,602  
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(d) Allowance for other on-balance sheet assets

17. Amounts due to the government and the State Bank of Vietnam 

This represents borrowings from SBV which were secured by Government bonds amounting to VND5,825,889 million 
(31/12/2011: VND884,888 million). These borrowings have the original term of 7 days and bear an annual interest rate of 7%/
year (31/12/2011: original term of 14 days and annual interest rate of 14%/year) (Note 11).

(i) These are entrusted funds provided to fund managers to purchase securities with the contractual term ranging from 12 to 
33 months and the fixed interest rate ranging from 10% to 12.9% p.a. without any collateral (31/12/2011: term ranging from 7 
days to 12 months and fixed interest of 6% to 24%/year or floating interest). 

(b) Interest and fee receivable

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Interest receivable from the deposits 749,760 417,705

Interest receivable from the securities investment 1,182,197 939,572

Interest receivable from credit activities 510,932 481,161

Interest receivable from the derivative instruments 12,069 1,250

Fee receivables 25 -

2,454,983 1,839,688

(c) Other assets 

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Materials 7,188 2,262

Prepaid expenses 313,546 230,495

Foreclosed assets awaiting resolution 117,614 117,614

Others 2 1,567

438,350 351,938

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Opening balance 12,248 11,592

Allowance made during the year (Note 29) 80,150 656

Closing balance 92,398 12,248

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Borrowings from SBV

Borrowings secured by valuable papers 1,371,572 917,127
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18. Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions 

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Demand deposits 10,324,557 11,223,198 

Demand deposits in VND 8,443,016 9,949,393 

Demand deposits in foreign currencies 1,881,541 1,273,805 

term deposits 5,218,329 14,364,393 

Term deposits in VND 3,903,119 12,913,116 

Term deposits in foreign currencies 1,315,210 1,451,277 

Borrowings 10,112,831 -

Borrowings in VND 8,403,925 -

Borrowings in foreign currencies 1,708,906 -

25,655,717 25,587,591 

Effective year-end annual interest rates were as follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Term deposits in VND 9% - 14% 8.8% - 19%

Term deposits in foreign currencies 2.5% - 3.5% 1.2% - 5.6%

Borrowings in VND 8% - 11% -

Borrowings in foreign currencies 2% - 3.8% -

19. Deposits from customers 

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Current accounts 5,586,859 2,428,826

Current accounts in VND 5,357,391 2,297,132 

Current accounts in foreign currencies 229,468 131,694

term deposits 53,691,334 26,805,182

Term deposits in VND 50,725,261 23,931,957

Term deposits in foreign currencies 2,966,073 2,873,225

Deposits for special purposes 9,133 1,047 

Deposits for special purposes in VND 9,052 965 

Deposits for special purposes in foreign currencies 81 82 

Marginal deposits 226,815 177,080

Marginal deposits in VND 174,267 156,198 

Marginal deposits in foreign currencies 52,548 20,882 

59,514,141 29,412,135
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Fund received from Bank for Investment and Develop-
ment of Vietnam (“BIDV”) represents the funds financed 
by World Bank (via International Development Asso-
ciation) to facilitate Rural Development Finance Project 
Phase II according to Loan Agreement dated 9 September 
2002 between the Socialist Republic of Vietnam and Inter-
national Development Association. The Bank signed off a 
sub-contract with BIDV whose total credit limit granted by 
BIDV will be revised and based on disbursement capabil-
ity of BIDV and the ability to use fund of the Bank; specific 
repayment schedules depend on maturities of specific or 

connected loans under particular contracts. 

The interest rate on funds received in VND is floating and will 
be revised on monthly basis. This interest rate equals the 
basic rate minus a margin but not less than 5% per annum. 
The interest rate for the year 2012 varies from 9.48% - 
13.92% per year (2011: 11.64% - 13.68% per year).

For loans in USD, the Bank applies LIBOR 6 months plus a 
margin; current applying interest rate for the year 2012 is 
0.75% per year (2011: 0.75% per year).

Deposits from customers by type of customers were as follows:

Effective year-end annual interest rates were as follows:

20. Other borrowed and entrusted funds 

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Economic entities 17,300,260 9,815,457

Individuals 37,876,118 19,047,655 

Others 4,337,763 549,023 

59,514,141 29,412,135

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Term deposits in VND 2% - 11% 3.37% - 14%

Term deposits in foreign currencies 0.05% - 2% 0.5% - 6.2%

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Fund received in VND 62,893 98,408 

Fund received in gold, foreign currencies 1,647 1,774 

64,540 100,182
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21. Valuable papers issued 

Valuable papers issued are categorised by term as follows:

Valuable papers of VPBank consist of bills and bonds dominated in VND and bore annual interest rates from 9% to 14% 
(31/12/2011: 12% - 14% per annum); interest is paid at maturity.

22. Other liabilities 
(a) Accrued interest and fee payables

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Interest payable for deposits 937,089 646,088

Interest payable for the issuance of valuable papers 188,276 443,086

Interest payable for borrowings 6,074 -

Interest payable for other borrowed and entrusted funds 33,199 33,631

Interest payable for derivative instruments 21,815 2,236

Fee payables 248 956

1,186,701 1,125,997

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Up to 12 months 2,166,100 9,372,085 

From 12 months up to 5 years 2,600,000 5,670,030 

4,766,100 15,042,115
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(b) Other payables and liabilities

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Internal payables

Payable to employees 105,890 180,769

Reserves for severance allowance - 3,161

Bonus and welfare funds 1,496 4,619

external payables

Provision for taxation (Note 36) 78,878 103,900

Dividend payables 2,530 2,530

Remittance payables 41,842 57,566

Payables to OCBC Bank – Singapore (Note 34) 64,658 65,319

Entrusted funds (i) 800,000 3,199,854

Gold held on behalf 371,752 378,273

►Payables for loans to customers purchased from other 
credit institution

1,206,241 -

Payables for entrusted fund contracts (Note 16) 197,400 -

Deferred interest expenses on bonds 66,326 -

Payables for securities investors 77,129 480,431

Other payables 352,107 141,494

3,366,249 4,617,916

(i) Represent the entrusted funds with the contractual terms ranging from 12 to 25 months, and the fixed interest rates ranging from 12.5% to 

24.5% (31/12/2011: contractual terms ranging from 9 to 36 months, and the fixed interest rates ranging from 12.5% to 24.5%).

(c) provision for off-balance sheet commitments

Movements in general provision for off-balance sheet commitments were as follows:

2012 
VND million

2011 
VND million

Opening balance 16,098 6,234

Provision made during the year (Note 30) 7,883 14,648

Reversal of provision during the year (Note 30) (9,743) (4,784)

Closing balance 14,238 16,098
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Share
capital

Share
premium

Reserve to 
supplement 

capital

Financial 
reserve

Investment 
and 

development 
fund

Retained 
profits

total

VND million VND million VND million VND million VND million VND million VND million

Balance at 
1 January 2011

4,000,000 617,389 6,348 81,688 35 499,271 5,204,731  

Net profit for the year - - - - - 799,688 799,688

Appropriations to 
equity funds

- - 27,365 51,519 - (78,884) -

Appropriations to bonus 
and welfare funds

- - - - - (8,142) (8,142)

Utilisations of 
reserves

- - - (32) - - (32)

Bonus shares 630,000 (616,020) (13,980) - - - -

Dividend shares 420,000 - (1,563) - - (418,437) -

Balance at 
1 January 2012

5,050,000 1,369 18,170 133,175 35 793,496 5,996,245

Net profit for the year - - - - - 643.394 643.394

Appropriations to 
equity funds

- - 41,866 79,791 - (121,657) -

Appropriations to bonus 
and welfare funds

- - - - - (2,422) (2,422)

Utilisations of 
reserves

- - - (6) - - (6)

Bonus shares 40,000 - (40,000) - - - -

Dividend shares 680,000 - - - - (680,000) -

Others - - - - - (194) (194)

Balance at 
31 December 2012

5,770,000 1,369 20,036 212,960 35 632,617 6,637,017

23. Capital and reserves 
a. Consolidated statements of changes in equity
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b. Share capital 

Number of shares VND million Number of shares VND million

Authorised share capital 577,000,000 5,770,000 505,000,000 5,050,000

Issued share capital

Ordinary shares 577,000,000 5,770,000 505,000,000 5,050,000

Shares in circulation

Ordinary shares 577,000,000 5,770,000 505,000,000 5,050,000

Nominal value of VPBank’s ordinary share is VND10,000. Each share is entitled to one vote at meetings of VPBank. 
Shareholders are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. All ordinary shares are ranked equally with regard 
to VPBank’s residual assets.

24. Net interest income 

2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Interest and similar income from

Balances with and loans to SBV and other credit institutions 1,618,639 1,982,286

Loans and advances to customers 5,723,016 5,648,461

Investments in debt securities 2,766,615 1,880,590

Other interest income 232,669 28,356

10,340,939 9,539,693

Interest and similar expenses for

Deposits from customers (4,112,588) (4,111,781)

Deposits and borrowings from the SBV and other credit institutions (1,637,765) (1,933,748)

Valuable papers issued (1,312,050) (1,422,274)

Other interest expenses (311,375) (26,781)

(7,373,778) (7,494,584)

Net interest income 2,967,161 2,045,109

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
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25. Net fee and commission income 

2012
 VND million

2011
 VND million

Fee and commission income from

Guarantee services 23,224 89,412 

Settlement and cash services 71,247 290,548 

Trustee and agency services 338,224 400,687 

Consulting services 64,313 18,634 

Insurance agency services 17,006 -

Securities trading activities 21,916 15,420 

Other agency 135,922 29,907 

671,852 844,608 

Fee and commission expenses for

Settlement and cash services (43,598) (29,100) 

Communication charges (14,485) (11,736) 

Trustee and agency services (116,927) (319,482)

Consulting services (3,154) (21,222)

Other services (222,871) (55,736) 

(401,035) (437,276) 

Net fee and commission income 270,817 407,332 

26. Net gain from trading of securities held for trading 

2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Gain from trading of securities held for trading 118,944 128,262 

Loss from trading of securities held for trading  (41,681) (88,501) 

Allowance for diminution in the value of securities held 
for trading (Note 7)

(19,942) -

Reversal of allowance for diminution in the value of 
securities held for trading (Note 7)

16,592 8,624 

Net gain from trading of securities held for trading 73,913 48,385 
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27. Net loss from investment securities  

2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Gain from trading of investment securities 88,567 23,488 

Loss from trading of investment securities (255,679) (57,069)

Allowance for diminution in the value of investment securities 
(Note 11)

(9,000) -

Reversal of allowance for diminution in the value of investment 
securities (Note 11)

- 6,896 

Reversal of allowance for diminution in the value of long-term 
investment (Note 12)

- 369

Net loss from investment securities (176,112) (26,316)

28. Other income

2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Income from penalty for breaking contracts 81,674 13,381

Income from office and warehouse leasing 8,490 13,994

Other incomes 31,504 8,768

121,668 36,143
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29. Operating expenses 

2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Other taxes and fees 7,863 6,966 

Salary and related expenses 797,556 687,647 

In which:

     (a) Salary, wages and allowances 674,084 581,549 

     (b) Salary based expenses 72,630 42,661 

     (c) Allowances 1,968 30,514 

     (d) Social activities expenses 375 773 

     (e) Meal allowances 48,499 32,150 

Expenses on assets 352,322 259,410

In which: Depreciation and amortisation 80,577 68,099 

Management expenses 293,653 182,341 

In which:

     (a) Per diem 18,227 11,529 

     (b) Marketing expenses 127,980 69,897 

     (c) Expert hiring expenses 2,349 250 

     (d) Expenses for activities of Trade Union 1,888 1,695 

     (e) Others 143,209 98,970

Provision expenses (Note 16) 80,150 656

Insurance expenses 34,086 28,524 

Other expenses 315,146 136,796

1,880,776 1,302,340

30. Allowance and provision expenses 

Note 2012
VND million

2011
VND million

General allowance for loans and advances to other credit institutions 6 54,659 -

General allowance for loans and advances to customers 10 78,738 43,267

Specific allowance for loans and advances to customers 10 335,146 125,801

Reversal of general allowance for loans and advances to customers 10 (33,082) (6,032)

Reversal of specific allowance for loans and advances to customers 10 (33,687) (24,171)

General provision for off-balance-sheet commitments 22(c) 7,883 14,648

Reversal of general provision for off-balance-sheet commitments 22(c) (9,743) (4,784)

399,914 148,729
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31. Income tax 
(a) Recognised in the statement of income 

2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Current tax expense

Current year 214,933 264,606

Deferred tax income

Origination of temporary difference (5,595) (39)

Income tax expense 209,338 264,567

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Profit before tax 852,732 1,064,255

Adjustments for

     Tax exempt income (15,946) (8,166)

     Non deductible expenses 22,538 2,325

     Impact to current year taxable income of the tax  
     authorities’ finalisation of previous years

(3,373) -

taxable income 855,951 1,058,414

Tax at VPBank’s tax rate (25%) 213,988 264,606

Deferred tax assets recognised (5,595) (39)

Under provision of previous year’s tax payables 945 -

total income tax expense 209,338 264,567

(c) Applicable tax rate

VPBank has an obligation to pay the government CIT at the rate of 25% of taxable profit. The CIT computation is subject of the 
review and approval of the tax authorities.
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32. earnings per share 

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2012 was based on the profit after tax of 
VND643,394 million (31/12/2011: VND799,688 million) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 
577,000,000 shares (2011: 505,000,000 shares), as follows:

(i)  Net profit after tax

2012
VND million

2011
VND million

Net profit after tax 643,394 799,688

(ii) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Restated Previously stated

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year 505,000,000 400,000,000 400,000,000 

Effect of bonus shares issued in 2012 72,000,000 72,000,000 -

Effect of bonus shares issued in 2011 - 105,000,000 105,000,000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for 
the year

577,000,000 577,000,000 505,000,000

 (iii) Basic earnings per share

33. Cash and cash equivalents 

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Cash and gold on hand 799,402 1,020,923 

Balance with SBV 1,372,667 522,364 

Demand deposit with other credit institutions 11,060,515 11,736,094 

Balances with other credit institutions with original 
terms of not exceeding three months

4,755,401 2,860,103

17,987,985 16,139,484

Restated Previously stated

Basic earnings per share 1,115 1,386 1,584

20112012

2011
VND

2012
VND
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34. Significant transactions with related parties 
As at the year-end, there was the following significant balance with related parties:

                                                                      

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Other payables

OCBC Bank - Singapore, shareholder (Note 22 (b)) 64,658 65,319

35. employee benefits 

2012 2011

Number of employees as at 31 December (employees) 4,326 3,548 

Employees’ income

     1. Basic salaries (VND million) 674,084 581,549

     2. Allowances (VND million) 50,467 62,664

724,551 644,213

Average annual salary (VND million) 156 164 

Average annual income (VND million) 167 182 

36. Obligations to the State Budget 

For the year ended 
31 December 2012

31/12/2011
VND million

Incurred
VND million

paid
VND million

31/12/2012
VND million

Value added tax 1,137 57,286 51,877 6,546

Corporate income tax 93,680 214,933 256,026 52,587

Other taxes 9,083 62,806 52,144 19,745

103,900 335,025 360,047 78,878

For the year ended 
31 December 2011

31/12/2010
VND million

Incurred
VND million

paid
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Value added tax 2,598 22,776 24,237 1,137

Corporate income tax 50,375 264,606 221,301 93,680

Other taxes 7,037 35,199 33,153 9,083

60,010 322,581 278,691 103,900

Balances
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37. Segment reporting 
Geographical segments

VPBank has monitored segment information by main regions in Vietnam as follows:

VND million the North
31/12/2012

the Central
31/12/2012

the South
31/12/2012

elimination
31/12/2012

total
31/12/2012

Assets 86,732,448 4,493,146 13,043,185 (1,692,504) 102,576,275

Liabilities 79,809,241 4,404,425 12,503,096 (777,504) 95,939,258

Fixed assets 298,299 98,897 61,001 - 458,197

VND million the North
2012

the Central
2012

the South
2012

elimination
2012

total
2012

Revenue 9,419,011 810,421 1,904,748 (130,830) 12,003,350

Expenses 8,899,388 578,733 1,741,450 (68,953) 11,150,618

Profit before tax 519,623 231,688 163,298 (61,877) 852,732

Business segments

VPBank operates in the retail banking, asset management, and securities trading segments.

VND million Retail 
Banking

31/12/2012

Asset 
management

31/12/2012

Securities 
trading

31/12/2012

elimination

31/12/2012

total

31/12/2012

Assets 98,696,210 2,996,909 2,575,660 (1,692,504) 102,576,275

Liabilities 92,192,041 2,821,907 1,702,814 (777,504) 95,939,258

Fixed assets 403,331 35,686 19,180 - 458,197

VND million Retail 
Banking

2012

Asset 
management

2012

Securities 
trading

2012

elimination 

2012

total

2012

Revenue 11,215,897 389,212 529,071 (130,830) 12,003,350

Expenses 10,421,158 345,813 452,600 (68,953) 11,150,618

Profit before tax 794,739 43,399 76,471 (61,877) 852,732

38. Financial instrument disclosure 

(a) Fair value disclosure

Circular 210 requires disclosing on fair value determination method and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities to have a 
comparison between fair value and carrying value.  

The following table sets out the carrying value and fair value of VPBank’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 December 2012:
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Fair value 
through profit 

and loss

held to 
maturity

Loan and 
receivables

Available 
for sale

Other 
amortised 

cost

total 
carrying 

value

Fair value

Financial assets

I Cash and gold on 
hand

- - 799,402 - - 799,402 799,402

II Balances with the 
SBV

- - 1,372,667 - - 1,372,667 *

III Balances with 
and loans to other 
credit institutions

- - 26,760,927 - - 26,760,927 *

IV Derivatives 57,471 - - - - 57,471 *

V Trading securities 1,345,840 - - - - 1,345,840 *

VI Loans and 
advances to 
customers 

- - 36,523,123 - - 36,523,123 *

Investment 
securities 

- - - 22,254,016 - 22,254,016 *

Long term invest-
ments 

- - - 67,338 - 67,338 *

IX Other financial 
assets 

- - 12,327,602 - - 12,327,602 *

1,403,311 - 77,783,721 22,321,354 - 101,508,386

Financial 
liabilities

I Deposits and 
borrowings from 
the SBV and other 
credit institutions

- - - - 27,027,289 27,027,289 *

II Deposits from 
customers

- - - - 59,514,141 59,514,141 *

III Other borrowed 
and entrusted 
funds

- - - - 64,540 64,540 *

IV Valuable paper 
issued

- - - - 4,766,100 4,766,100 *

V Other financial 
liabilities

- - - - 4,297,830 4,297,830 *

- - - - 95,669,900 95,669,900

VII

VIII

* VPBank has not determined fair value of these balances because there is no sufficient guidance on measurement of fair value 
under Vietnamese Accounting Standards.  Fair value of these instruments may be materially different from their carrying value. 

CARRYINg VALUe  
VND million
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(b) Financial risk management  

VPBank has exposure to the following risks from financial 
instruments:

- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risks

This note presents information about VPBank’s exposure to 
each of the above risks, VPBank’s objectives, policies and 
processes for measuring and managing risk, and VPBank’s 
management of capital.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors (“BOD”) has overall responsibility for 
the establishment and oversight of VPBank’s risk management 
framework. To facilitate this oversight function, VPBank’s BOD 
has established an Assets and Liabilities Committee (“ALCO”) 
and a Risk Committee (“RCO”) which are responsible for 
developing and monitoring key risk management policies for 
specific areas authorised by the BOD and periodically report 
to the BOD on their activities.  These committees include both 
executive and non-executive members.

VPBank’s risk management framework is established to 
form key principles in managing and controlling significant 
risks arising from VPBank’s activities. Based on this, specific 
policies and regulations for each type of risk are established 
to assist VPBank in analysing and determining appropriate 
risk limits and control and monitoring measures and ensuring 
adherence to the limits.

VPBank’s risk management policies are established to identify 
and analyse the risks faced by VPBank, to set appropriate risk 
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to 
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products 
and services offered. VPBank, through its training and 
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a 
disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations.

(i) Credit risk

VPBank is subject to credit risk through its lending and investing 
activities and in cases where it acts as an intermediary on 
behalf of customers or other third parties or issues guarantees. 
The risk that counterparties might default on their obligations 
is monitored on an ongoing basis. To manage the level of credit 
risk, VPBank attempts to deal with counterparties of good 
credit standing, and, when appropriate, obtains collateral. 

VPBank’s primary exposure to credit risk arises through its 
loans and advances. The amount of credit exposure in this 
regard is represented by the carrying amounts of the assets 
on the balance sheet.  In addition, VPBank is exposed to off 
balance sheet credit risk through commitments to extend 
credit and guarantees issued.

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the one that exerts the largest impact on 
VPBank’s income and capital. VPBank has established a 
credit risk appetite on the basis of managing credit activities 
in a prudent manner and in compliance with pre-determined 
limits including the credit concentration risk limits and 
adhering to VPBank’s risk tolerance. In principle, VPBank 
refuses to get involved in credit activities or credit products 
until sufficient understanding of such and appropriate control 
measures are obtained. To keep credit risks under control, 
VPBank’s policy is to engage in transactions with reliable 
partners, and request its partners to take guarantee 
measures as and when required.

The credit risk management system is operated based on the 
principles of independence and centralisation. Accordingly, 
the development of risk management policies, determination 
of risk limits and risk monitoring, risk reporting and risk control 
are implemented independently and centrally at the Risk 
Management Division. The reports from the Risk Management 
Division are a basis for RCO to issue key credit decisions.  

VPBank measures credit risks, make provisions and comply 
with safe ratios for loan and advances to customers and 
to other credit institutions in accordance with relevant 
regulations of the State Bank of Vietnam provided in Decision 
No. 493 and Decision No. 18.

VPBank’s overall approach to credit risk is a risk based 
approach. Accordingly, credit approval or credit valuation 
decisions as well as the behavioural methods in monitoring 
and classifying credits and controlling credit risks are 
being designed following the risk levels of customers. 
To this end, key activities being implemented by VPBank 
include the followings:

- Implementing a centralised credit approval mechanism 
for the system as a whole. The concept of centralised 
approval at VPBank is advised by an international advisory 
firm and will consistently be implemented according to a 
full centralisation roadmap from now to 2013;

- Focusing on completion of data infrastructure used for 
developing credit rating and risk classification systems in 
accordance with international standards;
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- Developing and completing the credit rating system and the 
scorecard system;

- Gathering and reviewing credit policies/documents of the 
whole system to reassess the integrity and responsiveness 
to the requirements specified in the policies of Risk 
Management Framework;

- Completing the credit quality monitoring mechanism for the 
entire life cycle of a loan;

- Developing an early credit risk warning system; and

- Developing a debt recovery and restructuring system.

Set out below is the credit exposure of VPBank’s balance 
sheet, excluding collateral or credit support:

At 31 December 2012 Neither past due 
nor impaired

VND million

past due but not 
impaired

VND million

past due and with 
allowance made

VND million

total

VND million

Balances with and 
loans to other credit 
institutions - gross

26,815,586 - - 26,815,586

Balances with other 
credit institutions

17,317,365 - - 17,317,365

Loans to other credit 
institutions

9,498,221 - - 9,498,221

Securities held for 
trading - gross

1,366,615 - - 1,366,615

Loans and advances to 
customers - gross

32,969,671 817,629 3,116,005 36,903,305

Investment securities 
- gross

22,263,016 - - 22,263,016

Available for sale 
securities 

22,263,016 - - 22,263,016

Other assets 12,393,646 -   26,354 12,420,000

95,808,534 817,629 3,142,359 99,768,522
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At 31 December 2011 Neither past due 
nor impaired

VND million

past due but not 
impaired

VND million

past due and with 
allowance made

VND million

total

VND million

Balances with and 
loans to other credit 
institutions - gross

22,930,542 - 30.692 22,961,234

Balances with other 
credit institutions

22,529,820 - 30.692 22,560,512

Loans to other credit 
institutions

400,722 - - 400,722

Securities held for 
trading - gross

1,925,630 - - 1,925,630

Loans and advances 
to customers - gross

26,305,198 755,571 2,122,874 29,183,643

Investment securities 
- gross

19,018,216 - - 19,018,216

Available for sale 
securities

19,018,216 - - 19,018,216

Other assets 7,562,726 26,554   - 7,589,280

77,742,312 782,125 2,153,566 80,678,003

Carrying value of collaterals held by VPBank was as follows:

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Real estate 68,257,551 209,184,520

Movable assets 8,573,758 10,284,344

Valuable papers 10,299,386 4,988,568

Other secured assets 392,207 13,762,316

87,522,902 238,219,748

VPBank does not hold collateral that can be sold or pledged to third parties when the owners still be able to repay debt.
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(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that VPBank will not be able to meet 
its financial obligations as they fall due, or, the risk that 
VPBank might have to face unacceptable material losses in 
order to meet those obligations. Liquidity risk may lead to 
negative effect on VPBank’s profit, reputation, equity, even 
causes VPBank’s bankruptcy.

Liquidity risk management

VPBank maintains a specific portfolio and volume of high-liquid 
assets, which may includes but not limited of cash, gold, 
interbank deposits, Government bonds and other high-liquid 
assets in order to meet its liabilities when due under both 
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaccep-
table losses or risking damage to VPBank’s reputation. 
VPBank will establish specific liquidity gap and follow 
strictly on each period based on Assets and Liabilities structure.

VPBank understands the interrelation of credit risk and 
market risk and how they may have impacts on the Bank’s 
liquidity. VPBank also realizes that liquidity risks come 
from two sides of its balance sheet. Therefore, VPBank’s 
approach to managing liquidity is to constantly focus on 
diversification of investment and credit activities and 
increases of accessibility to capital markets by raising 
fund through various tools and products.

ALCO Support Department under the Finance Division is 
responsible for oversight of VPBank’s compliance with 
liquidation limits and ratios and submission of the Bank’s 

consolidated liquidity reports to ALCO for review and making 
decisions that are compatible with the development strategy 
of VPBank and the business status and market developments 
in different periods. VPBank adopts both of the common 
approaches to managing liquidity, namely Stock Approach 
and Flow Approach. Accordingly, VPBank monitors on a 
daily basis the compliance with adequate liquidity ratios and 
forecast movements of cash flows which may have impact 
on VPBank’s liquidity position in the future to ensure compli-
ance at any time with all the regulations of SBV as well as its 
internal regulations.

Liquidity risk limits are established based on results of 
VPBank’s liquidity forecast in normal and stressed market 
conditions. Regular liquidity stress testing is conducted 
under a variety of scenarios covering adverse conditions.  
At the same time, VPBank also issues specific regulations 
on a Liquidity Contingency Plan (“LCP”) which clearly 
specify the roles and responsibilities of each unit and 
individual and a coordination process for implementation 
when there appear signs of a possible stressed liquidity 
event.

The liquidity ratios according to the regulations of the State 
Bank of Vietnam were as follows:

- The minimum liquidity ratio between highly liquid assets 
such as cash and cash equivalent, government bonds, listed 
bonds over total liabilities is 15%.

►- The minimum ratio between assets receivable and liabilities 
payable within the next 7 business days is one.

The following table provides an analysis of the monetary assets and liabilities of VPBank into relevant maturity groupings 
based on the remaining period from the balance sheet date to repayment date. 

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Liquidity ratio within the next 7 days (%)

At 31 December 125.34% 115%

Liquidity ratio within the next 1 month (%)

At 31 December 75.23% 20.83%
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As at 31 
December 2012
(VND million)

Overdue 
more than 
3 months

Overdue 
less than 
3 months

Up to 
1 month

From 1 to 3 
months

From 3 to
12 months

From 1 year 
to 5 years

Over 5 
years

total

Assets

Cash and gold on 
hand

- - 799,402 - - - - 799,402

Balances with the 
SBV

- - 1,372,667 - - - - 1,372,667

Balances with 
and loans to other 
credit institutions 
- gross  

- - 16,618,946 2,485,000 5,124,000 2,587,640 - 26,815,586

Securities held for 
trading - gross

- - 102,264 175,300 18,790 997,408 72,853 1,366,615

Derivatives and 
other financial 
liabilities

- - - - 57,471 - - 57,471

Loans and 
advances to 
customers - gross

1,003,287 2,930,347 2,470,591 5,786,207 16,586,310 6,873,298 1,253,265 36,903,305

Investment 
securities - gross

- - 911,784 1,600,196 2,740,000 17,011,036 - 22,263,016

Long term 
investments - gross 

- - 67,811 67,811

Other financial 
assets - gross 

- 26,354 4,235,697 1,928,465 5,153,754 1,075,730 - 12,420,000

1,003,287 2,956,701 26,511,351 11,975,168 29,680,325 28,545,112 1,393,929 102,065,873

Liabilities

Amounts due to 
the Government 
and the  SBV

- - 1,371,572 - - - - 1,371,572

Deposits and 
borrowings from 
other credit 
institutions

- - 17,178,924 3,559,659 4,917,134 - - 25,655,717

Deposits from 
customers

- - 30,819,243 12,212,616 15,873,722 603,441 5,119 59,514,141

Other borrowed 
and entrusted 
funds

- - - 64,540 - 64,540

Valuable papers 
issued

- - - 166,100 2,000,000 2,600,000 - 4,766,100

Other financial 
liabilities

- - 2,067,747 1,140,864 262,483 826,736 - 4,297,830

- - 51,437,486 17,079,239 23,117,879 4,030,177 5,119 95,669,900

Net liquidity gap 1,003,287 2,956,701 (24,926,135) (5,104,071) 6,562,446 24,514,935 1,388,810 6,395,973
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As at 31 
December 2011
(VND million)

Overdue 
more than 
3 months

Overdue 
less than 
3 months

Up to 
1 month

From 1 to 3 
months

From 3 to
12 months

From 1 
year to 5 

years

Over 5 
years

total

Assets

Cash and gold on 
hand

- - 1,020,923 - - - - 1,020,923

Balances with the 
SBV

- - 522,364 - - - - 522,364

Balances with 
and loans to other 
credit institutions 
- gross

- - 11,949,147 1,554,625 2,593,602 6,858,140 5,720 22,961,234

Securities held for 
trading - gross

- - 390,061 - - 912,981 622,588 1,925,630

Loans and 
advances to 
customers - gross

532,371 2,346,075 1,457,727 502,371 16,198,939 5,683,650 2,462,510 29,183,643

Investment 
securities - gross

- - - - 6,861,980 9,971,570 2,184,666 19,018,216

Long term 
investments - gross

- - - - - - 123,285 123,285

Other financial 
assets - gross 

26,554 - 1,320,716 1,755,995 3,546,076 934,078 5,861 7,589,280

558,925 2,346,075 16,660,938 3,812,991 29,200,597 24,360,419 5,404,630 82,344,575

Liabilities

Amounts due to 
the Government 
and the  SBV

- - 917,127 - - - - 917,127

Deposits and 
borrowings from 
other credit 
institutions

- - 13,988,516

 

1,981,745 6,966,330 2,571,000 80,000 25,587,591

Deposits from 
customers

- - 1,645,259 19,550,384 6,146,110 2,070,045 337 29,412,135

Derivatives and 
other financial 
liabilities

- - 2,541 - - - - 2,541

Other borrowed 
and entrusted 
funds 

- - - - - 99,382 800 100,182

Valuable papers 
issued

- - - 9,566 9,362,519 5,670,030 - 15,042,115

Other financial 
liabilities

- - 1,589,744 121,725 2,546,009 1,191,456 - 5,448,934

- - 18,143,187 21,663,420 25,020,968 11,601,913 81,137 76,510,625

Net liquidity gap 558,925 2,346,075 (1,482,249) (17,850,429) 4,179,629 12,758,506 5,323,493 5,833,950
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(iii) Market risks

Market risk is the risk that negative changes in prices and 
market-related values will adversely affect VPBank’s income 
and capital. Some market risks include interest rate risk, 
currency risk and price risk. The objective of market risk 
management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing 
the return on risk.

Market risk management

Management of market risks is vested in the Market Risk 
Department under the Risk Management Division. The 
Department is responsible for the development of detailed 
market risk management policies and process, guidance 
on market risks management measures, propose inde-
pendent market risks limits for review and approval by the 
Management and control market risks limit on daily/monthly 
basis according to VPBank’s regulations.

During the year 2012, the issued market risk management 
policy provides fundamental principles and a system of 
tools, market risk limits on trading activities (Trading 
book) and other interest rate risk positions in the Banking 
Book, with controls in the Trading Book such as the Net FX 
Exposure, PV01, Cash Flow Exposure, Duration gap, etc. 
and in the Banking Book such as maturity gap measurement 
(using the Repricing Model – Revaluation Gap). When required 
condition of infrastructure and data are available, VPBank 
will adopt more advanced methods such as VaR, Monte Carlo 
model, etc. to accurately measure risks and compute capital 
to be necessarily allocated for market risk under the Basel 
II standards.

Market forecasts also play an important role in market risk 
management. The Market Risk Management Department in 
combination with other specialized units gathers and analyzes 
information and data to generate forecasts regarding 
potential market movements. Accordingly, VPBank is 
provided with a sufficient basis for making decisions on 
effective risk prevention measures.

In the upcoming time, VPBank plans to actively research risk 
measuring models for financial derivatives in order to ensure 
preparedness for controlling associated risks when VPBank 
decides to provide the products in Vietnam market.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risks are the risks that cause negative effects 
on VPBank’s income and capital due to adverse fluctuations 
of the interest rate. Interest rate risks arise when there is 
a difference in term or in amount between interest-earning 

assets and interest-bearing liabilities that are mobilised to 
finance such assets. The main activities of VPBank to create 
interest rate risk, including: lending, deposit, investment.

Management of interest rate risks

Interest rate risks are measured based on the Repricing 
Model to analyse and review through the following two main 
methods:

• Analysis of changes in net interest income: on the 
basis of calculating accrued interest due to changes in 
interest rate under various scenarios. The method of 
analysing the changes in net interest income is reviewed as to 
short-term effects.

• Economic value effect analysis (EVE): this value represents 
the effects of interest rate fluctuations on the economic 
value of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet and off-
balance sheet assets. The method of analysing the effects of 
economic value of equity is reviewed as to long-term effects 
on VPBank in respect of interest rate fluctuations.

The following tables show VPBank’s assets and liabilities 
categorised by the contractual re-pricing or maturity date 
from the balance sheet date.
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As at 31 
December 2012 
(VND million)

Overdue Free of 
interest

Up to
1 month

From 1 to 3 
months

From 3 to
6 months

From 6 to
12 months

Over 
1 year

total

Assets

Cash and gold on 
hand

- 799,402 - - - - - 799,402

Balances with the 
SBV

- - 1,372,667 - - - - 1,372,667

Balances with 
and loans to other 
credit institutions 
- gross

- 132,450 16,432,496 2,485,000 1,760,000 3,364,000 2,641,640 26,815,586

Securities held for 
trading - gross

- 97,810 4,454 175,300 - 18,790 1,070,261 1,366,615

Derivatives and 
other financial 
assets

- 57,471 - - - - - 57,471

Loans and 
advances to 
customers - gross

3,933,634 - 7,390,301 12,066,171 5,225,450 3,239,240 5,048,509 36,903,305

Investment 
securities - gross

- 90,000 821,784 1,600,196 1,540,000 1,200,000 17,011,036 22,263,016

Long term 
investments - gross

- 58,966 - - - - 8,845 67,811

Other financial 
assets - gross

26,354 3,689,399 546,266 1,928,465 2,056,786 3,097,000 1,075,730 12,420,000

3,959,988 4,925,498 26,567,968 18,255,132 10,582,236 10,919,030 26,856,021 102,065,873

Liabilities

Amounts due to 
the Government 
and the SBV

- - 1,371,572 - - - - 1,371,572

Deposits and 
borrowings from 
other credit 
institutions

- - 17,178,924 3,559,659 2,971,246 1,945,888 - 25,655,717

Deposits from 
customers

- - 25,716,294 10,565,323 6,318,035 10,586,389 6,328,100 59,514,141 

Other borrowed 
and entrusted 
funds

- - - - 64,540 - - 64,540

Valuable papers 
issued

- - - 166,100 - 2,000,000 2,600,000 4,766,100

Other financial 
liabilities

- 3,223,236 (14,625) - 197,400 65,083 826,736 4,297,830

- 3,223,236 44,252,165 14,291,082 9,551,221 14,597,360 9,754,836 95,669,900

total interest 
sensitivity gap

3,959,988 1,702,262 (17,684,197) 3,964,050 1,031,015 (3,678,330) 17,101,185 6,395,973
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As at 31 
December 2011 
(VND million)

Overdue Free of 
interest

Up to
1 month

From 1 to 3 
months

From 3 to
6 months

From 6 to
12 months

Over 
1 year

total

Assets

Cash and gold on 
hand

- 1,020,923 - - - - - 1,020,923 

Balances with the 
SBV

- - 522,364 - - - - 522,364 

Balances with 
and loans to other 
credit institutions 
- gross

- - 11,880,747 1,723,025 1,720,200 773,402 6,863,860 22,961,234

Securities held 
for trading - gross

- 94,003 296,058 - - - 1,535,569 1,925,630 

Loans and 
advances to 
customers - gross

2,878,445 - 186,002 17,485,537 2,778,298 5,284,684 570,677 29,183,643

Investment 
securities - gross

- - - - 2,200,000 4,661,980 12,156,236 19,018,216 

Long term 
investments - gross

- 123,285 - - - - - 123,285 

Other financial 
assets - gross 

26,554 3,096,958 380,932 1,091,176 938,895 1,234,689 820,076 7,589,280

2,904,999 4,335,169 13,266,103 20,299,738 7,637,393 11,954,755 21,946,418 82,344,575

Liabilities

Amounts due to 
the Government 
and the SBV

- - 917,127 - - - - 917,127 

Deposits and 
borrowings from 
other credit 
institutions

- - 14,738,516 1,981,745 4,412,000 2,554,330 1,901,000 25,587,591 

Deposits from 
customers 

- - 1,645,259 19,550,384 4,686,525 1,459,585 2,070,382 29,412,135

Derivatives and 
other financial 
liabilities

- 2,541 - - - - - 2,541 

Other borrowed 
and entrusted 
funds

- - - - - - 100,182 100,182 

Valuable papers 
issued

- - - 9,566 4,697,696 4,664,823 5,670,030 15,042,115

Other financial 
liabilities 

- 344,858 1,799,252 119,251 919,626 1,626,383 649,564 5,448,934

- 337,399 19,100,154 21,660,946 14,715,847 10,305,121 10,391,158 76,510,625

total interest 
sensitivity gap

2,904,999 3,997,770 (5,834,051) (1,361,208) (7,078,454) 1,649,634 11,555,260 5,833,950
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The table below represents the sensitivity of profit or loss within one year from the assumed increases in lending and funding 
interest rates in customer market as at 31 December 2012. The opposite result is for the assumed decreases in lending and 
funding interest rates:

For the year ended 
31/12/2012

Increase in 
interest rate

Impact on profit 
and loss before tax

 VND million

Impact 
on equity

VND million

VND 3% 160,612 120,459

USD 1.5% 13,072 9,804

For the year ended 
31/12/2011

Increase in 
interest rate

Impact on profit 
and loss before tax

 VND million

Impact 
on equity

VND million

VND 3% 92,553 69,415

USD 1.5% (853) (640)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. VPBank 
was incorporated and operates in Vietnam, with VND as its reporting currency. Meanwhile, the Assets – Resources Structure 
of VPBank includes other currencies (e.g. USD, EUR, AUD, etc.) and thus VPBank has currency risks.

Currency risk management

VPBank’s management has set limits on positions by currency in accordance with VPBank’s internal risk assessment system 
and the SBV’s regulations. The major currency in which VPBank transacts is VND. VPBank’s loans and advances were mainly 
denominated in VND with the remainder mainly in USD. However, some of VPBank’s other assets are in currencies other than 
the reporting currency and USD. Positions are monitored on a daily basis and hedging strategies used to ensure positions are 
maintained within established limits.
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As at 31 December 2012
(VND million)

VND USD eUR gold Other 
currencies

total

Assets

Cash and gold on hand 357,288 110,692 158,049 160,869 12,504 799,402

Balances with the SBV 1,219,665 153,002 - - - 1,372,667

Balances with and loans to 
other credit institutions 
- gross 

22,110,109 4,115,921 570,868 - 18,688 26,815,586

Securities held for trading 
- gross

1,366,615 - - - - 1,366,615

Derivatives and other 
financial assets

100,797 (1,241,243) 902,395 - 295,522 57,471

Loans and advances to 
customers  - gross

35,091,419 1,807,114 4,772 - - 36,903,305

Investment securities
- gross

22,054,816 208,200 - - - 22,263,016

Long term investment
- gross 

67,811 - - - - 67,811

Other financial assets
- gross 

11,307,773 895,490 3,624 212,962 151 12,420,000

93,676,293 6,049,176 1,639,708 373,831 326,865 102,065,873

Liabilities

Amounts due to the 
Government and the SBV

1,371,572 - - - - 1,371,572

Deposits and borrowings 
from other credit 
institutions

20,750,060 4,631,447 274,210 - - 25,655,717

Deposits from customers 56,266,945 1,565,341 1,362,786 - 319,069 59,514,141

Other borrowed and 
entrusted funds

62,893 1,647 - - - 64,540

Valuable papers issued 4,766,100 - - - - 4,766,100

Other financial liabilities 3,801,501 109,814 11,910 373,138 1,467 4,297,830

87,019,071 6,308,249 1,648,906 373,138 320,536 95,669,900

FX position 6,657,222 (259,073) (9,198) 693 6,329 6,395,973
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As at 31 December 2011
(VND million)

VND USD eUR gold Other 
currencies

total

Assets

Cash and gold on hand 446,172 127,132 63,730 379,978 3,911 1,020,923

Balances with the SBV 331,824 190,540 - - - 522,364

Balances with and loans to 
other credit institutions
- gross 

19,978,725 2,957,476 18,860 - 6,173 22,961,234

Securities held for trading
- gross

1,925,630 - - - - 1,925,630

Loans and advances to 
customers - gross

27,187,362 1,972,078 24,203 - - 29,183,643

Investment securities
- gross

17,756,236 1,261,980 - - - 19,018,216

Long term investment - gross 123,285 - - - - 123,285

Other financial assets - gross 7,495,912 93,128 53 - 187 7,589,280

75,245,146 6,602,334 106,846 379,978 10,271 82,344,575

Liabilities

Amounts due to the 
Government and the SBV

917,127 - - - - 917,127 

Deposits and borrowings 
from other credit institutions

22,862,509 2,725,082 - - - 25,587,591 

Deposits from customers 26,382,392 2,542,550 467,177 3 20,013 29,412,135

Derivatives and other 
financial liabilities

184,267 180,944 (376,195) - 13,525 2,541 

Other borrowed and 
entrusted funds

98,408 1,774 - - - 100,182 

Valuable papers issued 13,780,135 1,261,980 - - - 15,042,115 

Other financial liabilities 4,693,904 695 373,257 378,273 2,805 5,448,934

68,918,742 6,713,025 464,239 378,276 36,343 76,510,625

FX position 6,326,404 (110,691) (357,393) 1,702 (26,072) 5,833,950
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With assumptions that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant, the table below represents the sensitivity 
of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2012 when:

VND appreciates 5% against USD:

VND depreciates 5% against USD:

39. Commitments 

Leases

The minimum lease payments under operating leases commitments are as follows:

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

Within one year 20,600 56,127

Within two to five years 61,799 190,803

More than five years 169,946 219,216

252,345 466,146

                                                                                                                                                                 Sensitivity of profit/(loss) before tax

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

USD 12,954 5,535

                                                                                                                                                              Sensitivity of profit/(loss) before tax

31/12/2012
VND million

31/12/2011
VND million

USD (12,954) (5,535)

Nguyen thi thu hang
Chief Accountant

Prepared by:

Luu thi thao
Deputy Chief  Executive Officer

cum. Chief Financial Officer

Approved by:

Nguyen Duc Vinh
Chief  Executive Officer

Hanoi, 28 March 2013
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I. REFINEMENt OF tHE BANk’S CHARtER
The best practices of corporate governance require an 
organization to establish a corporate governance 
framework, firstly through the Charter and other internal 
documents such as Regulations on the Board of Directors 
and Regulations on Corporate Governance, etc.

VPBank’s Charter has been developed with great details and 
clear contents, reflecting objectives, fields and scopes of 
activities of the Bank. The Charter provides adequate 
information related to governance structure, rights of 
shareholders, information publicity, accounting regime, 
conflict settlement and corporate reorganization. All 
contents of the Charter have been developed in full 
compliance with applicable laws. 

From 2009 till now, the Bank has organized annual reviews 
and made amendments to the Charter’s contents so as to 
make it suitable with applicable laws and submitted to the 
Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting for approval. On 
24 April 2012, the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting 
decided to either amend or add 12 significant issues to the 
Bank’s Charter in compliance with new legal regulations. 
VPBank’s Charter of all versions has been registered with 
the State Bank of Vietnam (SBV) as required and widely 
published to shareholders and partners on VPBank’s 
website. VPBank will keep making amendment of the 
Charter to meet the Bank’s current needs as well as comply 
with the best practices and applicable laws.

II. INFORMAtION OF SHAREHOldERS ANd 
GENERAl SHAREHOldERS’ MEEtING

Shareholder is the owner of share in VPBank. As at 31 
December 2012, the Bank has 3,769 shareholders with the 
majority of which being individual shareholders. The rights 
and obligations of shareholders are specified in the Bank’s 
Charter and all shareholders have the right to access the 
Bank’s Charter at any time, which is uploaded in a section 
reserved for shareholders on the Bank’s website. 

In addition to the right of setting up a shareholder group 
owning more than 10% of common shares in 6 consecu-
tive months to nominate and self-nominate members in the 
Board of Directors, the Bank’s Charter also specifies the 
cumulative voting, which entitles minority shareholders to 
vote for their representatives in the Board of Directors.

The Bank only has common shares and no preferential ones. 
The Bank always respects rights and benefits of sharehold-

ers and exerts significant efforts in providing shareholders 
with important information on the Bank’s development 
process. The relationship with shareholders and information 
publishing to shareholders are performed by the Board of 
Directors’ Office. All contributing ideas and feedbacks from 
shareholders are received and processed by the Board of 
Directors’ Office or transferred to authorized persons for 
processing in accordance with regulations. 

VPBank is now revamping the Bank’s website to restructure 
this communication channel, ensure its compliance with the 
international standards, as well as facilitate shareholders and 
potential investors to get access to the Bank’s information. 

The General Shareholders’ Meeting, consisting of all share-
holders with voting rights, acts as the highest decision-
making agency of VPBank. The General Shareholders’ 
Meeting raises opinions and makes decisions in its annual 
and extraordinary General Meetings of the Shareholders by 
written votes. The General Shareholders’ Meeting is the 
opportunity for shareholders, at least once a year, to discuss 
important issues with members of the Board of Directors, 
Board of Management and make decisions on operating 
guidelines for the Bank in the upcoming fiscal year.

VPBank’s Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting in 2012 was 
organized on 24 April 2012 after the Financial Report of the 
previous year had been audited by an independent auditor.

The meeting invitation letter, enclosed with instructions on 
authorizing representatives to attend the meeting and other 
documents, were sent to all shareholders and fully published 
on the Bank’s website.

The agenda and procedures for convening and voting in the 
General Shareholders’ Meeting have fully complied with 
the relevant provisions in the Bank’s Charter. Besides, in 
this Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting, the Bank had 
submitted Regulations on organizing the General Meeting, 
Regulations on voting of resolutions in the General Meeting 
and Regulations on electing members of the Board of 
Directors, Supervisory Board (if any) to shareholders for 
endorsement and adoption. These Regulations were 
attached with the meeting materials and published on 
the Bank’s website at least 7 days prior to the meeting 
opening so that all shareholders have adequate time to 
review and provide feedback. 

In the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting 2012, such 
important reports as Performance Report of the Board of 
Directors, Performance Report of Supervisory Board and 

In 2012, VPBank has taken a number of essential steps in strengthening the Bank’s governance framework, which reflects 
important mechanisms for the functioning of  key governing bodies, the rights of shareholders, and the implementation of 
activities to prevent conflicts of interests and enhance information transparency of the Bank, specifically as follows:
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the Bank’s Business Performance Report were all presented 
and discussed by shareholders prior to approval. 

The Bank has also applied state-of-the-art information 
technology for shareholders to best supervise the results 
of delegate eligibility checking and voting results of issues 
discussed in the meeting as well as shorten the time of 
completing these tasks. 

The Bank’s Charter allows the General Shareholders’ 
Meeting to vote by obtaining written opinions for issues within 
its scope of authority, except for some issues which must be 
voted right in the Meeting at any time if the Board of Directors 
finds it necessary for the Bank’s interest. Documents 
requiring written opinions from shareholders are published 
on the Bank’s website. Accordingly, any shareholder not re-
ceiving the request for opinions can still access and print out 
these documents for voting from the website. The deadline 
for getting shareholder’s opinions in writing is usually set at a 
minimum of 30 days, which is adequate for shareholders to 
review and send back their opinions. The counting of votes 
must be done in witness of the members of Supervisory Board 
and the Minutes of vote checking is made public on the Bank’s 
website within 42 hours upon completion. In 2012, VPBank 
has asked shareholders twice for their written opinions on the 
Bank’s Head Office relocation and the expected number of 
additional members of the Board of Directors. 

III. BOARd OF dIRECtORS 

1. Roles and responsibilities of the Board of directors 

VPBank’s Board of Directors is established based on the 
Charter and Regulations on Organization and Operation of 
the Board of Directors adopted by VPBank. VPBank’s Board 
of Directors plays key roles in mapping out strategies for the 
Bank and providing guidance for Board of Management’s 
operation. Additionally, VPBank’s Board of Directors strictly 
exercises its supervising responsibility over the Chief Execu-
tive Officer (CEO) by attending the monthly business review 
meetings held by the  Board of Management; reviewing daily, 
weekly reports; thematic reports on risk management; as well 
as requesting for reports if necessary. Furthermore, the Board 
of Directors frequently conducts its monitoring by checking 
and processing information from the reports of Supervisory 
Board and Internal Audit Division over the Bank’s units and 
through activities of committees under the Board of Directors.

2. Organization structure of the Board of directors

VPBank’s Board of Directors has 5 members, including one 
independent member. Such number of members complies 
with applicable laws and suits  the Bank’s current scope and 
growth, making full use of the advantage of quick and 

efficient decision-making process. 

The term of office of VPBank’s Board of Directors is 5 years 
and the members of the Board of Directors can be re-elected 
for unlimited times. The term of 5 years is a reasonable 
period for the members to have a long-term vision and 
witness achievements earned from their efforts. The current 
term of office of VPBank’s Board of Directors started in 2010 
and will end in 2015.

The members of VPBank’s Board of Directors fully satisfy 
criteria, conditions of competency and experience as 
prescribed by the State Bank of Vietnam and VPBank. The 
current members of VPBank’s Board of Directors are those 
who have strengths in managerial experience in business and 
banking, with profound knowledge and in-depth understanding 
of their functions, tasks, rights and obligations. No mem-
ber of VPBank’s Board of Directors concurrently takes 
the managerial titles in the executive structure of the Bank. 

The members of VPBank’s Board of Directors also strictly 
follow regulations on not concurrently taking roles as per 
applicable law:

- Chairman of VPBank’s Board of Directors is not concurrently 
the manager of the Bank and other credit institutions.

- Members of VPBank’s Board of Directors are not con-
currently members of VPBank’s Supervisory Board and 
managers of other credit institutions.

Members of VPBank’s Board of Directors consist of:

- Mr. Ngo Chi Dzung: Chairman of the Board of Directors

- Mr. Bui Hai Quan: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

- Mr. Lo Bang Giang: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

- Mr. Phung Khac Ke: Independent Member of the Board of 
Directors

- Mr. Tran Trong Kien: Independent Member of the Board of 
Directors. Mr. Kien has resigned from this post, which 
officially took effective on 24 April 2012. 

- Mr. Luong Phan Son: Member of the Board of Directors. Mr. 
Son was elected by VPBank’s General Shareholders’ Meeting 
on 24 April 2012 yet ceased to be the member of the Board of 
Directors from 22 October 2012 as he was no longer the legal 
representative of an institutional shareholder of VPBank. 

At present, VPBank is conducting procedures to ask for 
approval of one additional member of the Board of Directors. 

3. Nomination, self-nomination and election 

The election of members of the Board of Directors shall be 
conducted when the former Board of Directors’ term of 
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office is due, and the additional election or replacement of 
members shall take place as soon as any member loses his/
her membership capacity in accordance with the laws, gets 
dismissal or removal, or for a reason could not continue being 
a member of the Board of Directors. 

The 2012 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting has elected 
one additional member of the Board of Directors. Accordingly, 
prior to the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting, the Board 
of Directors obtained written opinions from shareholders on 
the expected number of members to be additionally elected to 
the Board of Directors. The Supervisory Board then also 
notified the shareholders of the required conditions and 
criteria on the elected titles so that they could nominate, 
self-nominate persons to hold such positions as 
prescribed by laws and the Bank’s Charter. The deadline for 
receiving opinions from shareholders on nomination and 
self-nomination was specified in the request for opinion and 
set at a minimum of 30 days from the date of sending such 
request. The list of persons expected to be elected to the 
Board of Directors and their profiles had been sent to the 
State Bank of Vietnam for evaluation with regard to eligibility 
criteria and conditions and approval had been obtained prior 
to election at the General Shareholders’ Meeting. 

The election of members of the Board of Directors or 
Supervisory Board follows the principles of cumulative 
voting. Accordingly, each shareholder has the total number  
of votes corresponding to the total owned shares multiplied 
with number of candidates to be elected to  the Board of Direc-
tors or the Supervisory Board. A shareholder has the right to 
cumulate his/her total votes for a candidate or divide votes for 
several candidates. A person elected to the Board of Directors 
or the Supervisory Board should receive the number of votes 
representing more than 51% of total shares presented in the 
meeting at the time prior to the election. In case the number of 
candidates receiving the number of  votes of more than 51% is 
higher than the number of members to be elected to the Board 
of Directors or the Supervisory Board as per the General Share-
holders’ Meeting’s regulations, the candidates shall be selected 
in the order of highest votes until there are enough members 
of the Board of Directors or Supervisory Board per regulation 
of the General Shareholders’ Meeting. Exceptional cases shall 
follow the decision made by the General Shareholders’ 
Meeting.

4. Independent Members of the Board of directors 

As stipulated in VPBank’s Charter, the criteria for inde-
pendent members of the Board of Directors are defined 
as follows:

- Satisfy the required criteria and conditions for a member 
of the Board of Directors in terms of civil act capacity, 
professional ethics, competence, working experience and 
not concurrently hold posts as per relevant provisions of 
applicable laws.

- The independent member of the Board of Directors should 
also meet the following additional criteria and conditions:

a) Neither currently working for VPBank or VPBank’s 
subsidiary companies nor having ever worked for VPBank or 
VPBank’s subsidiary companies within 3 preceding years;

b) Not receiving salary or regular remunerations from 
VPBank other than allowances for members of the Board of 
Directors under regulations;

c) Not having a spouse, father, foster father, mother, foster 
mother, child, foster child, sibling or spouses of these 
persons who are major shareholders of VPBank, managerial 
officers or members of  the Supervisory Board of VPBank or 
VPBank’s subsidiary company;

d) Not being a manager or a member of the Supervisory 
Board of VPBank at any time within 5 preceding years; 

e) Neither directly nor indirectly owning or representing 
ownership of 1% or more of the chartered capital or the 
voting share capital of VPBank;

f) Not in conjunction with a related person as stipulated in 
Point p, Item 1, Article 1 of this Charter holding 5% or more 
of the chartered capital or the voting share capital of VPBank.

The independent member of the Board of Directors resigned 
from his post in VPBank in 2012 due to personal reason. 

The current independent member of the Board of Directors 
has extensive experience in executive management at the 
State Bank of Vietnam and fully meets requirements on the 
independence, competence and experience as per applicable 
laws and VPBank’s regulations. 

5. Activities of the Board of directors in 2012

The Board of Directors convened quarterly meetings accord-
ing to a meeting schedule specified and sent to members 
of the Board of Directors in early 2012. The Secretary of the 
Board of Directors sent the Chairman’s letter of invitation 
as well as materials related to a meeting of the Board of 
Directors 5 days prior to the meeting. All members of the 
Board of Directors had the right to ask for additional materials 
or suggest issues to be included in the agenda of the meeting. 
The members of Supervisory Board and CEO were all invited 
to attend the regular meetings of the Board of Directors and, 
in some cases, so were the Chief Financial Officer, Head of 
Human Resources Division or other senior executives, subject 



Annual Report 2012

STRONG FOUNDATION FOR BREAKTHROUGH SUCCESS

to each meeting’s agenda. The Bank also made ready techni-
cal and interpretation support, if needed, for such meetings. 
All meetings were recorded with minutes and all resolutions 
are documented, with meeting participants reviewing and 
signing on such minutes and resolutions. The meeting 
minutes and materials were properly filed for retrieval by  
the Board of Directors or other stakeholders. 

In 2012, with the support of a world-leading strategic 
consulting firm, which has been working closely with VPBank 
since 2010, VPBank’s Board of Directors refined and adopted 
the Bank’s 5-Year Development Strategy for 2012-2017. 
This strategy has been widely communicated to employees 
of the Bank several times and under various forms. In 2012, 
the Board of Directors of VPBank also played a vital role in 
developing the Bank’s core values through its Corporate 
Culture Project. The Board of Directors convened in total four 
quarterly meetings in 2012, endorsing the Bank’s overall 
development strategy as well as those of all business units for 
2012-2017, action plan and budget for the Bank in 2013, 
business plans and budgets for subsidiary companies of 
VPBank, e.g., VPBank Securities Company (VPBS) and VPBank 
Asset Management Company Ltd. (VP AMC). In these 
meetings, the Board of Directors also reviewed the amend-
ment of organization structures, functions and duties of 
departments within the Bank, and changes of senior 
executives. On a quarterly basis, the Board of Directors also 
reviewed and evaluated the performance of the Board of 
Management and made decisions to adjust action plans 
as appropriate. Additionally, the Board of Directors has 

endorsed, in the form of obtaining written opinions, 
issues within its authority such as the approval of credits 
exceeding limit granted to the Credit Council, approval of 
regulations on organization and operation of subordinated 
Councils and Committees as well as regulations and 
policies for business activities of the Bank. 

IV. ACtIVItIES OF COuNCIlS ANd COMMIt-
tEES uNdER tHE BOARd OF dIRECtORS

1. Commitees under the Board of directors

1.1.  Human Resources Committee

The Human Resources Committee’s tasks are to advise the 
Board of Directors on the scope and structure of VPBank’s 
Boards of Directors, Supervisory Board; counsel the Board of 
Directors in tackling personnel issues arising in the course of 
voting, appointment, dismissal, removal of members of the 
Board of Directors, Supervisory Board, executive managers 
of VPBank; advise and propose the remuneration, bonus and 
other benefits for members of the Board of Directors, Super-
visory Board, Chief Executive Officer; review and submit the 
annual budget for employees to the Board of Directors for ap-
proval; advise the Board of Directors and make decision within 
its authority on senior executives of the Bank; make decisions 
on policies, compensation and benefits for employees, training 
projects and human resources strategies, regulations on per-
sonnel recruitment and assessment; make decision on issues 
related to stock distribution plan to the Bank’s employees. The 
Human Resources Committee meets on a monthly basis. 

Ngo Chi dzung Chairman of the Board of Directors Chairman of the Committee

Bui Hai quan Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors Member

lo Bang Giang Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors   Member

Members of VPBank’s Human Resources Committee include:
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The Committee is tasked with advising the Board of 
Directors in the adoption of risk management strategies, 
processes, policies for all activities of the Bank. The Risk 
Management Committee also analyzes and provides 
warnings on the safety of VPBank against hidden and 
potential risks and recommends prevention measures; 
analyzes and decides the general risk level of the Bank; sets 
risk appetite and risk acceptance level for functional areas 
and the entire bank as well as supervises the execution of 

this policy within the Bank. The Risk Management 
Committee also takes responsibility for reviewing and 
deciding changes in the Bank’s risk management structure 
to meet risk management requirements of regulatory 
agencies; diffusing knowledge and a culture of risk 
management in the entire bank, etc. The Risk Management 
Committee organizes regular meetings once or twice a 
quarter or when arising issues fall under the jurisdiction of 
the Committee. 

Bui Hai quan Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors   Chairman of the Committee

Ngo Chi dzung Chairman of the Board of Directors Vice Chairman 

lo Bang Giang Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors   Vice Chairman

Phung khac ke Independent member of the Board of Directors    Member 

Nguyen duc Vinh Chief Executive Officer  Member 

Nguyen thanh Binh  Deputy Chief Executive Officer Non-voting member

dao Gia Hung Acting Head of Risk Management Division Non-voting member

luu thi thao Deputy Chief Executive Officer Non-voting member

Vu Minh quynh Deputy Head of Operation Division Non-voting member

Peterjan Van Nieuwenhuizen Head of Operation Division Non-voting member

Members of VPBank’s Risk Management Committee include:

1.2. Risk Management Committee

2. Councils & Committees under the Board 
of Management, with the participation of 
members of the Board of directors

2.1. Credit Council 

The Council performs the function of rating and approving 
credit applications or credit limits which exceed the decision 
authority of the Credit Boards at branches; reviewing loan 

restructurings as proposed by functional departments; 
considering the exemption of fees and interest rates related to 
credit in accordance with the Regulation on fees and interest 
rates exemption of VPBank; recommending the Board of 
Directors to adjust credit policies in accordance with the 
reality; and handling tasks related to credit activities of the 
Bank. So far, Credit Councils of all levels of VPBank have 
increased  meeting frequency, setting up daily meetings to 
promptly process credits under their respective authority.
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Ngo Chi dzung Chairman of the Board of Directors Chairman of the Council

Bui Hai quan Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors Member

lo Bang Giang Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors   Member

Nguyen duc Vinh Chief Executive Officer Member

List of members of VPBank’s Investment Council:

The ALCO’s functions are to research and propose 
strategies for balance sheet structure, manage the balance 
sheet structure of the Bank to maximize profits and minimize 
risks; develop and monitor financial and credit indicators in 
compliance with the Bank’s business strategy; control liquidity 
and liquidity risks, interest rate risk due to mismatches between 
interest-sensitive assets and liabilities; manage market risks 
against fluctuations in exchange rates and interest 
rates; guide the development, approval and execution of 

policies, processes, and systems for funds transfer pricing 
to ensure profitability for business units; manage owners’ 
equity to ensure the sustainable growth of the Bank. ALCO 
has organized monthly meetings to regularly assess 
macro-economic environment, activities of the banking 
sector and those of VPBank, make suitable decisions to 
ensure the Bank’s liquidity, interest rates and corresponding 
volumes for funds mobilization or utilization programs; and 
ensure prudential ratios in accordance with the laws. 

Ngo Chi dzung Chairman of the Board of Directors Chairman of the Council

Bui Hai quan Vice Chairman Vice Chairman

lo Bang Giang Vice Chairman Vice Chairman

Nguyen duc Vinh Chief Executive Officer  Vice Chairman

Nguyen thanh Binh Deputy Chief Executive Officer Member

dao Gia Hung Acting Head of Risk Management Division Member

luu thi Anh Xuan Deputy Chief Executive Officer Member

Ho thuy Nga
Director of Credit Monitoring Department 
(Risk Management Division)   

Member

List of members of VPBank’s Credit Council:

The Investment Council has the function of reviewing 
and approving investment projects of the Bank and its 
subsidiaries, whose value exceeds limits granted to the 
Chief Executive Officer or the Members’ Council of two 
subsidiary companies, e.g., VPBank Securities Company 
(VPBS) and VPBank Asset Management Company Ltd. 
(VP AMC), and other specific limits specified in the 

Bank’s Financial Regulations. The Investment Council of 
VPBank also makes decision on trading limits with credit 
institutions and investment proposals into promissory 
notes, bonds and other valuable papers. The Investment 
Committee meets on a quarterly basis and endorses 
proposals by obtaining written opinions.

2.2.  Investment Council

2.3. Assets/Liabilities Management Council (ALCO) 
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The EXCO performs the function of reviewing and 
proposing the Bank’s business strategies to the Board of 
Directors for approval; keeping regular updates of the busi-
ness performance; executing short-term action plans and 
solving difficulties facing the Bank’s units; making recom-
mendations on changes of organization structure, budgeting 
plan, business plan in line with realities and submitting them 
to the Board of Directors for approval; reviewing important 
project proposals of the Bank. The EXCO holds meetings 

twice a month, with discretionary participation of members 
of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board. 

Members of the EXCO consist of the Chairman of the Board 
of Directors and possibly other members of the Board of 
Directors as decided by the Chairman of the Board of 
Directors; members of the Board of Management, Heads  of 
Divisions, and Directors of Independent Centers. The Chief 
Executive Officer is the Chairman of the EXCO. 

Resolutions/Decisions adopted by the above Councils/Committees

Nguyen duc Vinh Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the Council

Ngo Chi dzung Chairman of the Board of Directors Voting member

Bui Hai quan Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors Voting member

lo Bang Giang Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors   Voting member

Nguyen thanh Binh Deputy Chief Executive Officer Voting member

Vu Minh truong Deputy Chief Executive Officer Voting member

Nguyen thi Bich thuy Deputy Chief Executive Officer Voting member

duong thi thu thuy Deputy Chief Executive Officer Voting member

luu thi thao Deputy Chief Executive Officer Voting member

kalidas Ghose Deputy Chief Executive Officer Voting member

dao Gia Hung Acting Head of Risk Management Division Voting member

Hoang Anh tuan Director of Legal Affairs Center Non-voting member

List of members of VPBank’s ALCO

COuNCIl /
COMMIttEE

NuMBER OF RESOlutIONS /
dECISIONS AdOPtEd duRING 
tHE yEAR

CONtENtS

Risk Management 
Committee

2 meeting minutes, with approximately 
10 decisions made

This Committee has been operational for about 
4 months. In its meetings, this Committee has 
adopted decisions directly related to risk 
management of the Bank, such as reviewing 
credit risk reports, operation risk reports, 
initiating some projects on risk management, 
considering recommendations regarding key risk 
management policies and  regulations and submit-
ting them to the Board of Directors for approval.

2.4. Executive Committee (EXCO)
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COuNCIl /
COMMIttEE

NuMBER OF RESOlutIONS /
dECISIONS AdOPtEd duRING 
tHE yEAR

CONtENtS

Human Resources 
Committee

12 meeting minutes, with 80 
decisions made

Through monthly meetings, the Human Resources Commit-
tee has made decisions related to human resource policies, 
large projects on human resource system development, and 
approved proposals on appointments and compensation 
policies for the managerial staff of the Bank.

Executive 
Committee (EXCO)

18 meeting minutes, with 
approximately 200 
decisions made

From 3rd quarter of 2012, the EXCO has convened regular 
meetings every two weeks. In its 18 meetings’ minutes, the 
EXCO  has made decision on many issues arising in the operation 
of the Bank, evaluated and updated the implementation 
progress of short-term action plans. 

Credit Council

Approving more than 1000 
credit applications and over 
700 applications for credit 
conditions adjustment

The Credit Council of all levels approve applications for 
credit whose value exceeds the authorized limit of credit 
approvers and credit processing centers of VPBank.

Assets/liabilities 
Management Council 
(AlCO) 

12 monthly meeting minutes, 
with approximately 50 
decisions made

These are the monthly resolutions of ALCO meetings, 
approving issues related to interest rates, currency trading 
limits, liquidity ratios, etc., and other issues within ALCO’s 
authority.

Investment 
Council

About 80 decisions have been 
already made

The approval has been made for the financial investment pro-
posals and for expenses which are beyond the authority of the 
Bank’s management and proposed by the Bank’s departments.

Nguyen quynh Anh Head of Supervisory Board, full-time member

trinh thi thanh Hang Full-time member

Nguyen thi Mai trinh Member (Additionally elected on 24 April 2012)

le Anh tuan Member (Released from duty on 24 April 2012)

The Supervisory Board of VPBank has 3 members, two of 
which are full-time members (FTEs), including the Head of 
Supervisory Board. All members of the Supervisory Board 
have full knowledge of accounting and finance to satisfy the 
required criteria and conditions set out by the laws and VPBank. 
On behalf of VPBank’s General Meeting of Shareholders, the 
Supervisory Board of VPBank shall monitor the performance 
and activities of the Board of Directors, and concomitantly 
play the role of the Auditing Committee in accordance with 
international practices, to control the Bank’s financial and 

business activities; check annual financial reports and other 
financial activities; supervise the compliance with applica-
ble laws and internal regulations of the Bank; supervise the 
internal auditing function by directly managing the Bank’s 
Internal Audit Division. VPBank’s Supervisory Board takes 
responsibility for reporting and making explanations to the 
General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with the laws. 
Nevertheless, the Supervisory Board works regularly with 
the Board of Directors to exchange views or advise on risks 
or key findings in the course of its operation. 

List of members of VPBank’s Supervisory Board:

V. SuPERVISORy BOARd

1. General Introduction
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2. Activities of VPBank’s Supervisory Board in 2012

The year 2012 marks a strong transformation in the organi-
zation chart and human resources structure of VPBank. The 
restructuring of business units by customer segments, the 
initial deployment of credit processing centralization, etc., 
have unfolded many risks hidden in operational activities. 
To best control risks in the Bank’s activities, the Supervisory 
Board has made adjustments of the Bank’s auditing function 
to assess, identify and timely remedy such risks.

The Supervisory Board has advocated the ongoing 
improvement of the operating model of the Internal Audit 
Department, which has been upgraded from a Department to 
a Division with the following structure: Division Head, Auditing 
Center for Retail & SME Banking Divisions and for Consumer 
Finance Banking Division; Auditing Department for Whole-
sale Banking Division and Treasury & Investment Division; 
Auditing Department of Functional Units and Subsidiaries; 
Department of Remote Supervision; Process and Regulation 
Development Department and General Support Unit. All units 
have been divided based on clear principles; i.e. the auditing 
of business units is separated from the auditing of functional 
units, which ensures in-depth auditing expertise and 
satisfaction of particular needs of each unit. 

In addition to strengthening the existing operating platform 
of the Internal Audit Division in terms of remote supervision 
(bank-wide daily monitoring through the core banking 
software), on-site audits (provision of more personnel and 
time for each audit, close coordination with Remote Supervi-
sion Department to timely evaluate the performance of each 
unit subject to audit), the Internal Audit Division, under the 
guidance of the Supervisory Board,  has recruited many 
qualified personnel and initially deployed the risk-driven 
auditing project, thus shifting from the compliance model to 
proactive identification of risks at an early stage to recom-
mend timely correction. The Supervisory Board has initially 
established and developed an IT Auditing Department; put 
into operation the Process and Regulation Department which 
is tasked with assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of 
VPBank’s internal regulations for each operational area to 
timely suggest the enactment of regulations on risk check 
points and mitigation. 

The Supervisory Board, with two full-time members working 
directly at the Bank, has closely guided the Internal Audit 
Division to exercise its functions and duties. Meetings 
between the Supervisory Board and the Internal Audit 
Division have been organized monthly to summarize the 
findings in the month, figure out action plans for the next 
month, and make plan adjustments where necessary.

The monitoring of correctional measures for risks identified 
through on-site audits has been paid attention to and strictly 
implemented. Meetings among the Supervisory Board, 
Internal Audit Division and the Board of Management have 
been convened monthly to discuss findings contained in the 
month’s audit reports and in daily remote supervision reports, 
and track progress of remedying systematic risks and 
compliance issues.

The Supervisory Board has frequently discussed important 
findings from audit and supervision activities with the Board 
of Directors so the latter has adequate information and 
capture material risks in the Bank’s operations. 

Twice a month, the Supervisory Board will join a meeting with 
the Board of Directors and the Board of Management. The 
Supervisory Board convenes regular meetings quarterly and 
participates in all regular meetings of the Board of Directors. 

VI. REMuNERAtION OF tHE BOARd OF 
dIRECtORS, tHE SuPERVISORy BOARd 

Total remuneration budget for the Board of Directors and 
the Supervisory Board in 2012, as approved by the General 
Shareholders’ Meeting, was equal to 1% of the consolidated 
profit before tax. With the business results in 2012, total 
remuneration budget for the Board of Directors and the 
Supervisory Board in 2012 was approximately VND8.5 
billion. 

The principle of setting remuneration for members of the 
Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board has been 
reviewed and jointly adopted by the Board of Directors for 
each member on a monthly basis, which includes fixed 
remuneration for each title and task-based remuneration as 
members participate in Councils or Committees under the 
Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board. 

In 2012, total remuneration paid to members of the Board 
of Directors and the Supervisory Board was VND6.01 billion, 
including VND4.46 billion paid to the Board of Directors and 
VND1.55 billion to the Supervisory Board. 
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VII. CORPORAtE GOVERNANCE PROGRAMS IN 
2012

The year 2012 is marked with profound transformation of 
VPBank’s corporate governance. Recognizing the 
importance of corporate governance to the Bank’s 
sustainable development, The Board of Directors has 
collaborated with the International Finance Corporation 
(IFC – this international organization is implementing large 
corporate governance projects in Vietnam) to perform an 
evaluation project on the implementation of corporate gov-
ernance and come up with a plan for corporate governance 
improvement for VPBank. This evaluation was conducted 
by experts from the Corporate Governance Program in the 
East Asia and Pacific Region of IFC in the form of interviews 
with major shareholders, senior management, and key staff 
of VPBank as well as based on analysis of materials provided 
by VPBank and information of VPBank on the mass media and 
external sources of information. The objective of this project 
is to advise VPBank’s Board of Directors on the current status 
of corporate governance at VPBank and develop necessary 
measures and specific plans for corporate governance 
improvement, moving towards an advanced corporate 
governance system in accordance with international best 
practices. 

Through this project, members of the Board of Directors also 
participated in seminars, training programs and presenta-
tions on corporate governance by leading international 
experts, which were exclusively organized for members of 
the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board, and the Board 
of Management of VPBank in June and December of 2012. In 
addition, with the support of Corporate Secretary, members 
of the Board of Directors were fully updated of new 
regulations on corporate governance such as Circular 
121/2012/TT-BTC on corporate governance applicable for 
public companies, Circular 52/2012/TT-BTC on information 
disclosure on the stock market, materials of a workshop titled 
“Corporate Governance Forum” held on 1 November in Hanoi, 
which was organized by the Hanoi Stock Exchange in 
collaboration with IFC, as well as materials of seminars 
introducing relevant regulations conducted by the State 
Securities Commission. 

VIII. PREVENtION OF CONFlICtS OF INtERESt

The disclosure of related interests of members of the Board of 
Directors, members of the Supervisory Board, and members 
of the Board of Management (CEO and Deputy CEOs) and the 
declaration of related persons shall be made at the beginning 
of each year and during the year upon changes happening 
relative to disclosed information. The Corporate Secretary 

under the Board of Directors’ Office shall gather information 
from members and send them the sythesized report as the 
basis for defining related persons of the Bank and following 
procedures in case the Bank have transactions with these 
persons. 

Regulations of the Bank stipulate that permitted transactions 
between the Bank, on one hand, and members of the Board of 
Directors, members of the Supervisory Board, members of the 
Board of Management, related persons of these members, on 
the other hand, shall be subject to endorsement by the Board 
of Directors or Councils/Committees under the Board of 
Directors based on the majority rule, with related members 
not having voting right. All such transactions shall be reflect-
ed in signed contracts or clear documentation as stipulated 
by the Bank on the principle of equality and voluntarism.  

During the year, under the provisions of the Law on Credit 
Institutions, the Bank did not grant credit to any member of 
the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board, or the Board of 
Management.

Although the Bank has already had several regulations on 
transactions with related persons, such regulations are not yet 
comprehensive. Accordingly, an important plan is to develop 
internal regulations and policies on transactions with related 
persons in order to enhance the clarity and transparency, with 
additional provisions on insider transactions.

IX. REPORtS ANd INFORMAtION dISClO-
SuRE

• Reports

VPBank has a reporting regime which is in compliance 
with the law on accounting and statistics, and submit 
regular operation reports as required by the State Bank 
of Vietnam (SBV). the reports already prepared by the 
Bank include:

- Financial reports on monthly, quarterly, semi-annual, and 
annual basis to the SBV.

- Within 120 days from the end of the fiscal year, VPBank 
shall prepare and submit the audited consolidated financial 
reports to the SBV as stipulated by accounting laws.

- Within 90 days from the end of the fiscal year, VPBank shall 
prepare and submit consolidated report on selling, buying, 
and other transactions between VPBank and its subsidiaries 
or affiliate companies.

VPBank’s subsidiaries and affiliated companies shall also 
submit their financial reports or operation reports to the SBV 
if required.
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In addition to the above reports, VPBank shall timely submit 
reports in writing to the SBV in the following circumstances:

- Changes in organization, governance, or financial situation 
of major shareholders within the year.

- Reports required by the SBV for monitoring and evalua-
tion purposes (regular or ad-hoc upon request).

The Bank is undertaking information technology investment 
projects to strengthen reporting capacity and quality, which 
enhances the reporting to the SBV, regulatory agencies, as 
well as internal reporting in support of its governance. 

• Information disclosure

VPBank follows the information disclosure regime applicable 
for credit institutions as stipulated by the SBV and the 
information disclosure regime applicable for large-scale 
public companies as stipulated in Circular No. 52/2012/
TT-BTC dated 5 April 2012, which provides guidance on 
information disclosure on the stock market. 

The Bank-related information, which is made available on 
its website, to the State Securities Commission, or on other 
mass media as required, includes: 

- Financial reports

+ Annual financial reports, consisting of consolidated and 
bank-only financial statements, which are audited by an 
authorized auditing firm and made available within 90 days 
from the end of the fiscal year. 

+ Semi-annual financial reports, consisting of consolidated 
and bank-only financial statements, which are reviewed and 
checked by an authorized auditing firm and made available 
within 60 days from the end of the first 6 months of the fiscal 
year. 

+ Quarterly financial reports, consisting of consolidated and 
bank-only financial statements, made available within 45 
days from the end of the quarter. 

- Annual report is released in both soft copy and hard copy for 
the Bank’s own purposes.

- Corporate governance report was made available every six 
months within 30 days from the end of the reporting period.

- Other information of the Bank is made available regularly or 
on an ad-hoc basis upon request.  

- Information related to major shareholders is also released 
in accordance with the laws.

In addition to information required to be made available by 
laws, the Bank also proactively makes available information 
on its strategies, new products, promotion programs, and 
major events which have impact on the Bank’s operation and 
social welfare, on the mass media and its own website. 

Information disclosure is undertaken in accordance with the 
Bank’s internal regulation on public speaking and informa-
tion disclosure, with the focal point being the Communication 
and Brand Management Center and the Board of Directors’ 
Office, after the diclosure of such information has been 
endorsed by relevant bodies of the Bank. 

X. SHARE tRANSACtIONS OF INtERNAl 
SHAREHOldERS 

As stipulated by laws, shareholders who are members of the 
Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board, or CEO are not 
allowed to transfer share during their respective term of 
office. As such, there has been no share transfer transaction 
of internal shareholders who are members of the Board of 
Directors, the Supervisory Board, or CEO in 2012.  

Deputy Chief Executive Officers are regarded senior 
managers of VPBank in accordance with provisions of the 
Bank’s Charter. The Corporate Secretary includes staff 
members of the Board of Directors’ Office. 



Annual Report 2012

STRONG FOUNDATION FOR BREAKTHROUGH SUCCESS

(1) The percentage is calculated by the amount of owned shares out of total shares of the Bank at the beginning of the reporting period (1 

January  2012), which stood at 505,000,000 shares. 

(2) The percentage is calculated by the amount of owned shares out of total shares of the Bank at the end of the reporting period (31 December 

2012), which stood at 577,000,000 shares. 

The transfer of shares by the major shareholder has been approved by the SBV in accordance with prevailing laws. 

tRANSACtOR INtERNAl 
SHAREHOldER/
RElAtIONSHIP 
wItH INtERNAl 
SHAREHOldER

NuMBER OF SHARES 
OwNEd At tHE 
BEGINNING OF 2012

NuMBER OF SHARES 
OwNEd At tHE 
ENd OF 2012

REASON FOR 
INCREASE/
dECREASE

Number of 
shares

Percentage 
(1)

Number of 
shares

Percentage 
(2)

Nguyen Thanh Binh Deputy CEO 538,973 0.11% 215,915 0.04%
Share dividends, 
bonus shares, and 
share transferring

Ngo Thi Khanh Hoa
Sister of 
Mr. Ngo Chi Dzung

25,220,570 4.99% - 0.00% Share transferring

Ngo Thanh Hang
Sister of 
Mr. Ngo Chi Dzung

393,242 0.08% - 0.00% Share transferring

Hoang Anh Minh
Spouse of 
Mr. Ngo Chi Dzung

17,522,832 3.47% 5,768,857 0.99%
Share dividends, 
bonus shares, and 
share transferring

Kim Ngoc Cam Ly
Spouse of 
Mr. Bui Hai Quan

1,180,175 0.23% 1,389,080 0.24%

Share dividends, 
bonus shares, and 
receipt of 
transferred shares

Lo Hai Yen Ngoc
Sister of 
Mr. Lo Bang Giang

- 0.00% 5,769,680 0.99%
Receipt of 
transferred shares

Nguyen Thi 
Ngoc Anh

Spouse of 
Mr. Nguyen Thanh 
Binh

89,993 0.02% 232,951 0.04%

Share dividends, 
bonus shares, and 
receipt of 
transferred shares

Nguyen Thi 
Thanh Nhan

Sister of Mr. 
Nguyen Thanh Binh

- 0.00% 399,900 0.07%

Receipt of shares 
transferred from 
Mr. Nguyen Thanh 
Binh and of share 
dividends and bonus 
shares 

Chau Tho 
Investment Joint-
stock Company 

Major shareholder 75,725,524 15.00% - 0.00%
Transferring shares 
to individuals

Share transactions of internal shareholders and related persons in 2012
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XI.  CONtRACtS OR tRANSACtIONS wItH 
INtERNAl SHAREHOldERS

In the first month of each year, the Board of Directors’ 
Office requires members of the Board of Directors, the 
Supervisory Board, CEO and Deputy CEOs (the senior 
management as prescribed in the Bank’s Charter) to make 
a written declaration of related persons and a declaration 
of related interests as stipulated in the Law on Credit 

Institutions, which will be made available to the entire 
Bank as the basis of defining transactions between the 
Bank and related persons. 

According to the Law on Credit Institutions, the Bank is 
not allowed to grant credit to members of the Board of 
Directors, the Supervisory Board, CEO, Deputy CEOs and 
equivalent titles as well as parents, spouses and siblings 
of these members. 

XII. EVAluAtION OF tHE IMPlEMENtAtION 
OF CORPORAtE GOVERNANCE REGulA-
tIONS    ANd PlANS FOR StRENGtHEN-
ING CORPORAtE GOVERNANCE CAPACIty 
OF VPBANk’S BOARd OF dIRECtORS

Based on the above reporting results, the corporate govern-
ance system within VPBank has been developed relatively 
well and strictly followed in accordance with the laws. All 
internal policies and regulations on corporate governance 
have been adopted in full compliance with requirements of 
the State’s regulatory agencies. With a desire to become one 
of top five commercial banks in Vietnam, however, VPBank’s 
Board of Directors is fully aware of the important role of 
corporate governance in ensuring sustainable growth and 
tackling challenges faced by the Bank in the course of 
development. Major shareholders of the Bank and members 
of the Board of Directors all show their willingness to improve 
corporate governance in line with international best practices.

In 2013, VPBank plans to enhance its corporate 
governance by:

- Revising the Bank’s Charter and several existing poli-
cies which reflect the Bank’s needs of improving corporate 
governance in line with best practices; listing the full rights of 
shareholders, including the right to be fairly treated among 
the Bank’s shareholders; adding provisions on additional 
election of members of the Board of Directors or the 
Supervisory Board in case of permature resignation; issuing 
additional regulations on managers, reporting regime, the 
disclosure and provision of information and annual report. 

VPBank’s Charter will also be translated into English for ease 
of reference by shareholders, investors and foreign partners.

- Developing, adopting, and communicating the Corporate 
Governance Regulation and Code of Conduct and Ethics 
across the Bank. 

-  Regarding General Shareholders’ Meeting: the Bank will 
consider some adjustments to enhance the quality of the 
General Shareholders’ Meetings and encourage shareholders 
to proactively provide feedback to the Bank, such as the 
delivery of materials to shareholders 15 days prior to the 
opening of the General Shareholders’ Meeting; adoption of 
alternative voting methods in case of shareholder’s absence, 
e.g., the adoption of advanced information technology to 
allow remote voting or online voting by shareholders; 
minutes and materials of the General Shareholders’ 
Meeting are prepared in both English and Vietnamese, etc. 

- Regarding the Board of Directors: The Board will better 
exercise its functions such as overseeing the management; 
supervising internal control environment including auditing 
and  risk management; strengthening the roles and functions 
of Risk Management Committee; developing performance 
evaluation mechanism for the Board of Directors and its coun-
cils and  committees; developing and proposing remuneration 
policies for members of the Board of Directors to the General 
Shareholders’ Meeting for review, ensuring that such policies 
will be linked to the Bank’s annual performance in a clear and 
fair manner and in line with long-term benefits of the Bank and 
its shareholders; seeking and appointing more members for 
the Board of Directors.

- Regarding supporting unit of the Board of Directors and 
the Corporate Secretary: personnel with strong expertise in 
corporate law and corporate governance regulations will be 
added; the functions of Corporate Secretary and those of 
assistants to members of the Board of Directors or its councils 

Full NAME
IdENtIty 
CARd NuMBER

RElAtIONSHIP 
wItH VPBANk 

CREdIt tRANSACtION wItH 
VPBANk/lOAN ACCOuNt dEtAIlS

lo Hai yen Ngoc 012581049 
Sister of Mr. Lo Bang  Giang – Vice 
Chairman of the Board of Directors

LD1210400233

transactions between VPBank and its related persons in 2012
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The total number of shares of the Bank as at 31 December 
2012 is 577,000,000 shares (in words: Five hundred seventy 
seven million shares). All of these shares are common and 

outstanding shares. The shareholders’ book for all of these 
shares is kept by VPBank Securities Company as per the share-
holder book management authorization contract since 2008.

As at 31 december 2012, the shares owned by members of the Board of directors, the Supervisory Board and CEO of 
VPBank were as follows:

tyPE OF SHARE NuMBER OF SHARE PERCENtAGE

Number of freely transferred shares  357,283,085 61.92%

Number of transfer-restricted shares as per applicable laws  86,696,034 15.03%

Number of transfer-restricted shares per commitment of owners 133,020,881     23.05%

total 577,000,000 100%

 

1. Freely transferred shares  

2. Transfer- restricted shares 
per commitment of owners

3. Transfer- restricted shares as 
per applicable laws

SHARE StRuCtuRE

62 

23

15

%
Note:

Number of transfer-restricted shares per applicable law:

According to clause 1, Article 56 of the Law on Credit 

Institutions No. 47/2010/QH11: “shareholders being 

individuals, organizations whose representatives are 

members of the Board of Directors, members of the 

Supervisory Board, CEO (Director) of credit institutions 

shall not be allowed to transfer their shares during their 

respective term of office.”

Full NAME
POSItIONS CuRRENtly 
HEld At VPBANk

NuMBER OF 
SHARES

PERCENtAGE OF COMMON 
SHARES OwNEd

Ngo Chi dzung Chairman of the Board of Directors 25,872,404 4.48%

Bui Hai quan Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors 8,936,112 1.55%

lo Bang Giang Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors 817,490 0.14%

Phung khac ke Independent member of the Board of Directors -   none

1

3

2

XIII. SHAREHOldER StRuCtuRE & OwNERS’ 
INVEStMENt CAPItAl CHANGES

 VPBank’s share structure as of 31 december 2012

1. Shares

or committees will be separated to enhance the supporting 
role of this group of personnel for corporate governance 
activities as well as for investor relations. 

- Regarding information transparency: The Bank is taking 
steps to provide adequate information to all stakeholders of 
interest, improving the quality and functions of its website; 

providing disclosed information in English; revising internal 
regulations on information disclosure to strengthen roles and 
responsibilities of the department in charge of information 
disclosure; proactively providing more information on the 
Bank’s overall strategies as well as information regarding 
members of the Board of Directors and its Committees. 
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The management and blockade of transfer-restricted shares are performed at VPBank Securities Company upon request of 
shareholders and stakeholders. 

3.  Owners’ investment capital changes

In 2012, VPBank distributed dividends in the form of shares 
and issued bonus shares from the reserve fund for charter 
capital supplementation to increase its charter capital from 
VND5,050 billion up to VND5,770 billion. 

The Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of VPBank had adopted 
a resolution on raising the charter capital by VND720 billion 
by distributing dividends in the form of shares from 2011 
retained earnings of VND680 billion and distributing bonus 
shares from the reserve fund for charter capital supplemen-
tation worth VND40 billion. 

This increase of charter capital has been approved by the State 
Bank of Vietnam per correspondence No. 7205/NHNN-
TTGSNH dated 2 November 2012 on the charter capital 
increase of Vietnam Prosperity Joint-Stock Commercial Bank 
and the Bank has completed the submission of reports to the 
State Securities Commission before undertaking this activity. 

The increased charter capital was distributed proportionately 
to all shareholders named in the shareholder list at the time 
of closing such list, in the principle of taking the integer part 
only and transfering the decimal part to the fund for talent 
acquisition managed by VPBank’s Trade Union. The total 
number of shares from decimal parts was 1,858 shares.

The completion date for charter capital increase was 25 
December 2012 on which Hanoi Department of Planning and 
Investment approved the updating of VPBank’s new charter 
capital in its business registration certificate.

4. transaction of treasury stocks 

VPBank had no transaction of treasury stocks during the 
report year.

5. Other securities

Except the issuance of shares indicated at point 3 above, 
VPBank did not have any other issuance of shares in the year. 

tyPE OF SHAREHOldERS NuMBER OF SHAREHOldERS NuMBER OF SHARES PERCENtAGE

Individual shareholders 3,732 431,054,569 74.71%

    VPBank staff 441 62,532,357 10.84%

   Domestic individuals 3,291 368,522,212 63.87%

   Foreign individuals 0 - 0.00%

legal entities 37 145,945,431 25.29%

   Domestic legal entities 36 60,114,974 10.42%

   Foreign legal entities 1 85,830,457 14.88%

total 3,769 577,000,000 100.00%

2. Shareholder structure

Shareholder structure of VPBank as at 31 December 2012

Full NAME
POSItIONS CuRRENtly 
HEld At VPBANk

NuMBER OF 
SHARES

PERCENtAGE OF COMMON 
SHARES OwNEd

Nguyen quynh Anh Head of the Supervisory Board 22,720,834 3.94%

Nguyen thi Mai trinh Member of the Supervisory Board 28,349,194 4.91%

trinh thi thanh Hang Member of the Supervisory Board -   none

Nguyen duc Vinh CEO  -   none

total 86,696,034
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STRONG FOUNDATION FOR BREAKTHROUGH SUCCESS

Along with developing its business and improving the 
quality of products and services, VPBank has always 
focused on fulfilling its commitment to corporate social 
responsibility and pursuit of sustainable development val-
ues. By practical actions in many areas such as social se-
curity, charity,  voluntary work, protection of environment 
and natural resources, etc., VPBank wishes to contribute 
to the development of a better community for a society of 
equality, civilization and prosperity.

In 2012, VPBank continued to carry out activities which have 
been maintained for many years: taking care of war invalids, 
families under preferential policies, revolution contributing 
families. In its effort to support the poor and the disadvan-
taged, VPBank has always joined a charity program named 
“Circle of Unity” organized by Vietnam Fatherland Front. The 
Bank has also actively supported many Funds for the poor 
such as those of Thai Binh and Thua Thien Hue, Hanoi 
Association for Supporting the Handicapped and Orphans, 
etc.  In addition, by responding to events such as “Run for 
Children 2012”, “The Sympathetic Hearts” Program, etc., 
VPBank has partly financed heart surgeries for children 
with innate heart disease, construction of house of compas-
sion and presented savings books and gifts to children with 
fatal diseases, victims of Agent Orange, children with dis-
abilities across the country. Also in 2012, the Charity Fund 
named “Pink Lotus” established by VPBank has bridged 
the staff’s compassionate hearts to promptly assist 
disadvantaged people within and outside the Bank.

Having taken interest in the “national resources” and 
attached much importance to “developing people and nur-

turing talents”, VPBank has established the Prosperity 
Scholarship Fund for talented students of Banking Academy, 
National Economics University, and Foreign Trade University, 
etc. The Bank has also granted scholarships to scholarship 
funds and sponsored local schools’ construction for many 
times. Especially, VPBank in coordination with Saigon 
Economic Times and National Fund for Vietnamese Children 
held a program named “For Children’s Dreams” for disadvan-
taged children in Ho Chi Minh City and the Drawing Day for 
children at Le Van Tam Park in Ho Chi Minh City.

Recognizing the significance of the environment, VPBank 
has responded proactively to environmental protection 
activities. In particular, VPBank has been the main sponsor of 
the global campaign on climate change “350.org” in Vietnam. 
The Bank has also launched practical internal activities to 
reduce pollution such as encouraging bicycle commuting, 
saying “No” to drinking straws, planting trees, saving 
electricity, saving paper and minimizing printing, etc.

Apart from charity and voluntary work for the commu-
nity and society, VPBank has always paid attention to 
movements and programs for developing and defending 
the Fatherland, demonstrated its citizen’s responsibility 
and Vietnamese people’s traditional patriotism. In 2012, 
VPBank has sponsored the construction of Vietnam’s 
largest ceramic national flag and four sculptural relieves 
on Truong Sa Lon (Large Spratly) Island. Inaugurated in 
June 2012, these works have become the pride of VPBank 
in general and that of its employees in particular in 
contributing to the affirmation and protection of Vietnam’s 
sovereignty over its sea and islands.

Corporate Social Responsibility
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OutlINE OF 
BuSINESS PlAN 
FOR 2013
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STRONG FOUNDATION FOR BREAKTHROUGH SUCCESS

According to the Resolution of Vietnam National Assembly 
dated 8 November 2012, the key economic targets of 
Vietnam in 2013 include a GDP growth rate of around 5.5%; 
total export volume growth rate of 10%, trade deficit of about 
8%, consumer price index (CPI) growth rate of less than 8%; 
budget deficit of less than 4.8%; total investment capital 
equivalent to 30% of GDP. Therefore, the economic growth 
target for 2013 has been set higher than 2012 along with a 
reasonably controlled inflation rate, which demonstrates the 
Government’s direction in addressing economic difficulties.

Based on the objectives set by Vietnam National Assembly 
and the Government, the State Bank of Vietnam has planned 

to conduct its monetary policy prudently and effectively, 
using monetary policy tools flexibly, keeping monetary 
policy closely connected to fiscal policy to control inflation, 
strengthening macroeconomic stability and ensuring 
reasonable economic growth. The expected credit growth 
rate for 2013 is approximately 12%. The SBV has also 
demonstrated its determination in handling bad debts 
through specific tasks such as implementing bad debt 
resolution scheme approved by the Government, estab-
lishing and putting into operation the asset management 
company (VAMC), approving the support package worth 
approximately VND100,000 billion - VND150,000 billion 
mainly for addressing real estate bad debts.

The year 2013 is also expected to witness a robust restructur-
ing of the economy, the focus of which would be state-owned 
enterprises and the banking system. Accordingly, Vietnam’s 
banking system has been divided into 3 groups: Group 1 
including banks with strong financial position and large scale 
will be further developed into pillar banks; Group 2 including 
banks with healthy financial position but small scale will be 
assured of a controllable scale and sound operations in 

VNd120,000billion 
total assets target of VPBank in 2013
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certain segments by the SBV, and Group 3 including banks 
with financial difficulties will be restructured by the SBV by 
changing the shareholding structures or merging with other 
institutions. 

In spite of the uncertainties of the economy and the banking 
system, VPBank is persistent with its long-term strategy by 
focusing on the following two key objectives in 2013:

- To focus on building and strengthening foundation systems 
(with priorities being risk management,  human resources 
development and advanced technology systems) to ensure 
rapid but stable and sustainable growth for the next years.

- To develop a dynamic and flexible business development 
structure in order to expand the customer base and make a 
breakthrough in market share of key selected customer 
segments: retail customers, SMEs and corporate customers.

1. development of customers, products and markets

In 2013, VPBank will continue to enhance the performance 
and quality of sales staff, improve the business model, 
strongly expand the customer base, distribution channels, 
promote cross-selling of services, tailor customer and 
product policies for each customer segment, and focus on 
specific subsegments.

To expand customer base rapidly. To make a breakthrough in 
market shares of key segments: retail customers, SMEs, and 
corporate customers. 

- To customize customer and product policies for each 
customer segment. 

- To focus on deposits from the primary market.

- To target a controlled credit growth.

- To strengthen non-performing loan control and recovery.

- To focus on branch layout enhancement and relocation in 
order to improve the efficiency of the distribution network.

2. Strengthening foundation and internal manage-
ment systems

The overall objective is to further enhance the organization 
structure and business model to optimize resources, ensure 
the  seamless coordination among different processes 
and units, improve productivity and efficiency, minimize 
risks and best satisfy customers’ needs.

- To improve the organisation structure: to strengthen func-
tions, duties, structure, and personnel for each division in order 
to enhance its management and business supporting roles.

- To improve the efficiency of the distribution network 
through restructuring and relocation.

- To put in place risk management system and risk control 
system synchronously, with the focus being on credit and 
operational risk control system. To upgrade the system for 
monitoring and managing liquidity, market and operational 
risks across the Bank.

- To finalize the information technology master plan and 
implement IT initiatives and projects.

- To enhance business models through strengthening sales 
and marketing activities and improving customer services 
across the system.

- To improve management information system, strengthen 
accounting control, and implement fundamental projects 
such as IFRS, ERP, MIS automation, etc. 

- To develop a competitive remuneration policy to help 
attract and maintain highly qualified human resources. To 
build up corporate culture with VPBank’s identity.

- To centralize a number of supporting functions. To focus 
on strengthening and improving key operating processes of 
the Bank.

- To further strengthen communication and public relation 
activities to enhance VPBank’s new brand name, image, as 
well as brand identity.

VPBank’s key financial targets for 2013

Unit: VND billion

No. Metrics target for 2013

1 Total assets 120,000   

2 Deposits from customers 81,230   

3 Loans to customers 47,974   

4 NPL ratio < 3%

5 Consolidated profits before tax 1,110   

6 ROE 12%
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NỀN tẢNG VỮNG CHẮC – BỨt PHÁ tHÀNH CÔNG

VPBank’s Network

205 transaction points 
of VPBank nationwide








